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On the cover:

REELdeptn™ gamas faatuing Multi-Layer
Display® (ViLD®) technoiogy allow players
the flexibility 10 switch between traditional
3-, 4-, S-real slots, video slots and vides
noker — &l on the same maching — with
just the touch of a button. Exclusivaly
from IGT.

WHAT OUR

CUSTOMERS

ARE SAYING

"This is a technology investment
that will stand the test of time.
REELdepth™ embodies much
of what is best about IGT -
forward-looking technclogy
and engineering; design and
application of game content
with artistic flair, and the full

gamut of great slot games.”

Robert Allen,
Corporate Vice President of Slot Cparations
for Grand Casinos, Minnesoia.
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| A suffe of nine new AVP® machine modé's released
REELDEPTH™ RELEASED

REELdepth™ games featuring Mii-Layer Display® (VILD®)
technology released

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
Memorandum Of Understanding with MGM MIRAGE on
CityCenter ARIA casino

ACQUISITIONS COMPLETED

Cybenview™ and Million-2-1™ acquisitions completed

INTERNATIONAL OPERATING INCOME UP

International operating income improved 5%, driven by
increases in Eurcpe, Latin America, Australia and Africa

700 NEW GAME THEMES

700 new garme themes were released ~ including casino,
Class I, central determination systems (CDS), lotteries
and Internet markets

OVER 930,000 MACHINES

Noith America market install base is now over 930,000

machines, up 5% from last year




CEO LETTER

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Fiscal 2008 can best be summed
up as ayear of chalenges. The most
significant of these chalenges has
been and continues 1o be the dificult
economic backdrop that is negatively
mpacting nearly every ndustry, nciud-
ing the gaming industry. Historcaly,
garming has been viewed as relativaly
"racession-proof,” but as a resut of
the profiferation of gaming in North
Arnprica over the past two decadss,
our industry has become signiicanty
kess insulated from economic down-
tumns. Casino cparators ard suppliers
alka have entered uncharted wetters,
where the dignmeni of unfavorable
economic condiions has required
al of us 1o reevaluate our business
stralegies in oder to befter nevigaie
an unstable market environmeni.
We do, hoaever, ses positve sgns
for the fuiure and are teking the steps
necessary o better posiion 1GT or

long-term success. Ahough weve
felt the Impact of curent economic
conditions, we can't overook the
imporiant progress weve made.

Al of cur casino technology arcund
the word, from machines 1o games
to systems, now revolves around
AVP?, our powerfd, muti-funchional
platform. We continus to explore
emergng and/or atemative marksts,
sichas the Intemat and modle ganing,
to disirbxte KT conltent. Acoodngy,
our International business has
continued to increase s contribution
to the Compary's bottom line, and
we are prepaning to commercialy
launch the first tier of our server-
based products, sbX™, in the
LDCOMiINgG year.

Colectively, we retumned $855
milion to shareholders in fiscal
2008 through share repurchases
and diidends.

We are optristic yet consenvative
in our outook for fiscal 2008. Athough
the uncartain economic condiicns
persist, we expect to ganeraie stron-
ger comestic reglacement machnes
based on the infial strong response
to our new AVP® machine modes.
We will confinus to focus on gichd
opportunities and expanding our
ron-machne everue base, We ook
forward to the first foorwide deployrent
of our sbX™ technoiogy.

Cur chalengss continue for fiscal
2009, bt we are readly to mest those
chalenges head-on. Curcommirment
to technology, innovation, quality

and senvice, combined with our
neople - the smartest and most
talented in the business — wil
continue 1o diive ur SUoCess.

In the pages that follow, youl read
ahout the progress weve made n
games, systems, products anc
technciogy in fiscal 2008 and what
we'Te exciied 1o bing to market in
fiscal 2008.

On behalf of our more than
5,000 employees worldwide, we
thark you, our sharenolders, for
YOur ongeing suppon.

\GT remaing The Right Choce.

e

Thomas | Matthewss
Chaman, Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Operating Ciicer
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Forward-looking technology and
proven engineenng. Exciling game
content that appeals to players.
Proven favorites and exciting new
games. It's what we've built our
28-year reputation on. It's what
we're known for worldwide. it's
what makes IGT different. Differant
than any other gaming company.
But we're not just about designing
and developing the most innova-
tive games, network systerns and
solutions. And we're net just abolt
providing the best gualty products
and responsive customer senvice
around the globe. For us, that is
simply good business.

What makes IGT different is the
way we think. Bigger. Broader.
Further. And in the way we wark
and deliver. Smarter, Harder. Faster.
We are nct only diving the interaction
of games, systems and the open
network today. We are focused
on transforming the gaming indus-
try. Qur cusiomers count on us
{0 constantly imgrove the player

RIGHT CHOICE

experience and to make gaming
rmore exciting than it's ever baan,
with unprecedented innovation
in games, systems, features
and options.

At IGT, we believe that every
customer and every product s
important. Ordinary is not accept-
able. We must sirve for the extracr-
dinary to remain competitive.

It's our mission. Every day.
Thai is what makes IGT The
Right Chaice.

A ook back,

We can sum up the past year and
the year ahead in two words: Game
on. The total convergence of server-
based gaming, network systems
and casino gameas is happening
now and only trough IGT.

In 2007, we talked gbout IGT
supplyving The Right Vision for a
transformed casino indusiry. In
2008, we established 15T as The
Right Choice 10 lead that trans-

formation. At the 2008 Global
Gaming Expo (G2F), cperators
piaced their arders ior the shX™
Tier One product and entered a
new realm of what we call
Experience Management.

Fiscal 2008 brought unprecedent-
ed world-wide economic upheaval,
which continues to ripple through-
out global markets and the gaming
industry. In spite of the chalenges
that brought, IGT saw its second-
highest year for revenues.

IGT continued © prove itself
in 2008 as the lsader in gaming
technology. The first instalation of
IGT's G MLD¥ machines, which
use the innovative Mutli-Layer
Display® technology and exciting
new REELdepth™ 3-D games,
happened at Grand Casings in
Minnesota. The MLD® technology is
an ingenious layering of two Liguid
Crystal Displays {LCDs) that cre-
ates the visua! effect of true depth
without the use of 3-0 glasses. This
patenied, flexible technology
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allows the player 1o swiich from 3
resls 1o 4 reels 1o 5 reels, to avideo
slot game, to video poker — all on
the same maching,

"IGT bhas done a masterful
job with REELdepth™," Robert
Allen, the Corporate Vice President
of Slot Operaticns for Grand
Casinos Minnescta, said, "ghving
gaming operaiors the futest range
of flexible configuration options.
This machine represents a vir-
tually perfect server-based
gaming solution.”

Nefiwork Systems progress.

I fiscal year 2008, we completed
severgl significant phases on our
server-based gaming develop-
ment roadmap. We integrated
the server-based (sb™) system
with casino operating systems
ke IGT Advantage® slot account-
ing and set the stage to integrate
third-party systems that use stan-
dard protocols set by the Gaming
Standards Association (GSA). We
completed the first impertant steps
in this "integrated but madular’
strategy to more ully align IGT's
three Network Systems product
lines — sb™, IGT Advaniage®
and IGT Mariposa™. This will
levarage the breadth of our system
prodiuct offering to unlock the power
of the networked casino flcor. Wa
also saw the first third-party usae
of the "open” network te davelop

a uniqua drink ordering system
via IGTs Sendce Window. Overall,
it wil provide compeling value
to our operator custcmers by
allowing them to maximize
eamings from thefr skot machines
and drivae revenus from
their player databases through
delvery of unique marketing and
promotional ofiers.

We also installed our 200t IGT
Advantage® system in November
2008 at the new Aliante Station
Casino & Hotel in Las Vegas, and
we developed and launchad
I5T's first complete implementation
of Game to System (G2S) protocal
standards in Nevada.

Crame development in action.

The product development invest-
ment we make supporis the
foundation of our business - the
creation of game content delvered
to the player through our game
platforms and network systems.
Our seale and inanclal flexdblity give
us animportant spending advaniage
compared {0 our primary competitors
and allow us to deliver the broadast
product ine across the most mar-
kets, with the most first-io-market
game concepts and new features
in the industry.

We releasaed more than 700
games for &l gaming environments
in 2008. Thai number includas
Standard products, MegaJackpots®,

.ﬂ;bh

LT pEa

= e

Barcrest USA, international, and
mecified games for Class 1, Central
Determination System (COS) and
lottery junsdictions.

We improved our game davelop-
ment cycle time and mads great
strides in adapting proven math
models and delivering games with
new graghics. We also brought the
best of our existing stepper ot game
library to the: new AVP® platiorm via
the new S AV maching.

IGT was first-to-markat with a
number of new game features. We
offered innovative high-denomination
games: 9-credi, 5-res! product and
b-credit, 3-regt product with ires
games, 20-line, 3-reel themas
with free games,; and a 25-line,
3-reel offering. We introduced
horizontal expanding wild games
and animated wvertical bleed-
ing bonus symbols to video
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reg products. Our other innovations
include having the plavers wager
activate symbaols, payback and
volatility and having their
wager increase the symbaol
probability, bonus spins and
payback cffering.

el3cy ™ aned Wheel of Fortrune®

led the 1y

In traditional casino markets,
we focused on multi-level progres-
sives [MLPs), group play con-
cepts, and innovations using our
nine new machine modgls, 1IGT's
total installed base of MLP games
was 3,900 games at year end, with
nearty 2,300 incremental games
pleced throughous the vesr,

One of our most popular games
in fiscal 2008 was eBay™, a group
play product. We alse introduced

Whesal of Fortune® Super Spin™
Vidleo Slots Five-Station, a smaller
version of the nine-station Wheel
of Fortung® Super Spin™ for
custcrners with gpace limitations,
In the combined caiegory of
group play, Megaldackpots®
and MLP, Indiana Jones™ with
REELdepth™ and a new Star
Wars™ version wil egin installa-
tions in eary fiscal year 2009,

The ultimate goal in plaiform
development is 1o ensure that
game content can be deployed
through multiple channels
including our traditional global
garming clatforms, wirsless networks
and the Internet. In fiscal year
2008, we continued efforts 10
standardize the plaiform on a
global basis which wall increase
the quality and quantity of
our game library throughout
the world.

Nine new: machine models =

cdl bewsed on customer .

Fiscal year 2008 saw ihe suc-
cessiul release of our nine new
machine modals: the G20 Upright
and Round Top, G20 Bartop,
G17, G22 Sant, G MLD? Upright,
SMLLP S, and S A2 Upright and
Round Top. The new made! launchweas
the most expansive nthe Ristory "1GT.
W involed our customers, through-
out the diesign and buld process, 1o
get the best possible solutions

for the marketplace. The model
designs were based on stud-
ies performed oy well-respected
egonomic and industriat design experts
— gl to improve player comiont. The
new maching models feature AP
flexibilty and performance, and
&l are sh™ ready.

Commitinent to the
open netwark,

January 2008 marked the open-
ing of IGT's Global Technclogy
& Interoperabiity Cenier, a $10
million, 6,500-square-foot test-
ing lebh avaliable free of charge to
original equipment manuiac-
turers, strategic partners and
systam integrators. A dozen gam-
ing manufaciurers have aleady
had their products tested at
the Center. 'n September 2008,
IGT became the frst gaming manu-
facturer to be accredited o centily
its products according 1o the
Gaming Standards Association's
‘Protocol Certfication Program.”
Manufaciurers ¢an now ensurs con-
sisient GSA protood Lf‘ﬂpkamént&mtbn,
and operators can easly search for
prociucts thet have been tested and
certifed to mest GSA protocdl sian-
darcs That's a first for the industry.
January 2008 also marked the
launch of the Indiana Jones ™ Mult-
Level Progressive with its Group Play
ponus game, dual LCDs and four
in-housa progressive jackpots.

1
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WE MUST STRIVE FOR T

EXTRAORDINARY

{IT'S OUR MISSION EVERY DAY
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Inclustry: recogrition.

IGT"s sh™ Hoor Manager, Inciana
Jones™ Multi-Layer Display™
product, and the pew AVPY
machine models were honored
by Casing Journal in the "Top 20
Most Innovative Gaming Techndlogy'
competition. EZ Pay® Smart Card
and sb™ Foor Manager took first
placs honars in the Clobal Gaming
Business Gamirg & Technology
awards. IGT also swept the "Best
of Southern California Gaming'
awards by placing first in all cat-
egories. Wheel of Foriung® 1ook
the Bast Real Slct, Best Video Slot
and Best Prograssive Slot awards,
Star Wars™ was awarded Best
Penny Slot.

IGT's shixX™ NMedia Manager took
first place honors in Global Gaming
Business magazing's seventh annual
Gaming & Technology awards in
the Best Productivity-Enhancement
Technclogy category. Cur bonus
Delivery Games, S AVPY and
(G20 Round Top machine models
with dynarmic buttons, and Table
iD® Lucky Draw table bonus were
also recognized.

MG MIRAGE nekes
The Right Choice.

In Aprit 2008, we announced a
ground-breaking agreement with

MGM MIRAGE's CityCenter ARIA
Casino project for instalkation of a
senar-based network and related
IGT sb™ and gaming managemsnt
system products. CityCenter is an
$3 bilion mixad-use development
jointly owned by MGM MIRAGE and
Dubai World, scheduled io open
in late 2009. IGT's award-winning
Senvice Window and a server-based
casing floar network wil provide the
basis for the first floor-wide installa-
tion of a systern of this kind.

In June 2C08, K3T-UK acqured
mobile gaming company
Milion-2-1™, and in July 2008, IGT
acquired Cyberdew™ to provide
IGT access to the fixed-odds
betting market n the UK.

Our international story:

Annual operating income for the
Intermational Division toigled a record
$168 million in fiscal year 2008.
This was achieved with the ban-
glit of favorable exchange rates,
growth in game operations and a
strong product sa'es mix. Strong
contrioutions were reglized from the
Europe, Latin America, Austraia and
Alrica regions. In the New Zealand
market, IGT market share increased
to over 50% during the year.
In the UK, long-term contracts
were secured for the KCONICshy ™
gaming system in the UK Bingo
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market and Czech Republic video
iotiery market. The Cyberview™ and
Mison-2-1™ gcouisitions offer inroads
into the respeciive Licensed
Beiting Office and mabie gaming
markets. IGT's Intermnet gaming
revenue (through its Wagenhorks®
subsidiary) increased H6% versus
the previous vear.

Ners market update.

In Mandand, voters overwhemingly
approved the addition of 15,000
slot machines at five different
locations. Missourn voters repsaled
a loss Imit and agreed to a cne
percentage point increase in the
gaming tax o get Las Vegas-stvie
gamblrg. In Cclerado, volers allowed
the state's casinos to increase
wagering limits, extend casino
hours, and add craps and roulstie to

_the table mix.

" Voters in California and Florida
have already approved ballot
measwas 1o expand gaming
in their states by allowing
up to 17,000 more gaming
machines for Native American
casinos in California and up to
6,000 gaming machinas at
the pari-mutuel facilities in
Miami-Dada County,

We're pursuing new
opportunities in the Lotery
and Charitable gaming mar-
keis as our new technologies

are adapted for server-based
gaming and thin-client applcations.

Wheat’s ahecdd.

Center stage in IGT's booth
&t G2E 2008 was the convergence
of a new suite of IGT machine
models combining the award-
winning Senvice Window and the
power of the AVP® platiorm with
g new library of game themes
and sbX™. The shbX™ Tier
One package includes the
first G25 server-based game
management solution in an all-
inclusive package. It will allow
operators 1o experience shxX™
in a bank-by-bank sclution,
iGT also showcased new and
different sbX™ Tournament
and Bank Bonusing applica-
tions that will further enhance the
gaming expenence.

The biggest news in the year
ahecad will be the opening
of the MGM MIRAGE ARIA
project on the Las Vegas Strip —
and its full-scale server-based
casinofioor it wil represent the largast
implementation of a servar-based
casino systerm in the word.,

AL G2E 2008, IGT rolled out
the strongest Standard preducts
offering in its history. It included
more naw Standard games
and more first-to-market
concepts than ever before. A faw
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examples that will debut in fiscal
year 2008:
*» The MuttiPlay Video Slot, the only
slot product in the industry to
give players the option of playing
their favorite game up to four
times — simutaneousty — with
different outcomes on the
same maching. Some MuliPlay
games will have four prograssive
jackpots.
The REELdepth™ Magic
Butterfly ™ MLD® Slot with a
unique, Extra Wild featurg in
which 3-D butterflies fy around
the 3X5 reel interface, tuming
real symbols wild whan they land
on them.

* The REH depth™ Gilitter & Gold™
MLD® Shot, a 3-level standalone
progressive and the first slot in
the industry to featurs a 3-D,
4X4 reel corfiguration com-
prised of all stacked sym-
bols. We call it tha black-out
feature, where full stacks of ong
symbd il up the reels.

¢ The REELdepth™ 7 Storm™
MLD® Slot which festures 3-D
selective color replacements of the
7" symbols. With every spin, each
rel has the prababiity of turming
al 7s one of five colors.

s Seven never-before-geen bank
concepts including Greenback

L

Aftack™ Slots, Fire Balls™
Slots and Jackpot Bonarza™
Slots. Greenback Attack™
i5 a 5-reel, 30-line bank
cencept that includes special
symizols that reward players
with the actual dollar amount
shown on the regls. Mystery

[clar symbols can also appesr,

retriggering the LCD top

box feature and awarding
fanCm Winrings.

* The Joker's Wild®, the first
multi-level progressive, Multi-
Layer Display® Video Shol.

The months ahead will see
installations of tha Wheal of
Fortune® Muii-Level Progressive, a
new version of Megabucks®,
Whesdl of Fortune® MegaJackpots®
games ieaturing REFL depth™,
and new EMs® and Jeopardy!®
Mutti-Level Frogressives.

New 1o Class | gaming is
the power of the Advanced
Video Patform (AVP®) which opens
up never-before-seen features
far etectronic hingo games.
With ithe power of AVPY,
IGT has closed the gap between
Class I development and
the Class Il world, Class |l
operators can now draw
from the latest and greatest
the IGT game library has to offer.
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Fiscal year 2009, A year

of chenpe.
. [

Our industry is changing to keep up
with technclogy, to do business morg
efficiently and, most importanily, to
oxcite and entertain players like never
before. More change is coming.
Fast. And no gaming company is
driving change like IGT. With new
machines, new products and new
thinking, we're readly.

We hope that we have given you
an insigntful ovandew cf fiscal year
2008 as well as what we're exciied
ahout right now and going forward.
We encourage you to stay up-to-
date with the latest inIGT games,
network systemns, new groducts
and innovation throughout the year
by logging on to www.IGT.com.
News releases about significant
company develcpmeants and new
products can be found there under
the Investor Relations lirk.

All the latest information on our
Megadackpots® games can be
found at www.Megaackoots.com,
including jackpot levels and recent
Wwinners.

It's the Right place, the Right time.
IGT is The Right Cholce.
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TRADEMARKS &
COPYRIGHTS

©2008 IGT. Al rights resanvad,

Included in this report are the following tradermarks, senvice marks,
and/or feceraly registered rademarks of IGT.

7 Storm; AVP; Barcrest USA; Bettor Chance Feature; Double 3X4X5X
Dollars; Double Jackpot 7s; B Pay, Fire Bells: Game King; IGT Acvantage:
IGT Mariposa; Giitter & Gold; G MLD, Graenback Attack; Jackpot
Bonanza; Magic Butterfly, MegaJackpots; M-P Series; iMegabucks;
REELdepth; S AVIP; sb; sb NexGen: sbX; Secrets of Stonehenge;
Secrals of the Forast, Super Spin; Table iD; WagenWarks; Wageiworks
RGS; Wildwood.

We design, manufaciure, produce, operate, use, and/or otherwise
have permission 10 exploit certain gaming machings utiizing materials
under license from third-party licensors. Mere specifically, the games
which have been mentionad in this report and their related trademark
and copyright awnership are:

eBay is a trademark of eBay Inc. and is used under license; "Casino
Evolvg' i3 a tradernark of WIMS Gaming Inc.; "Casinolink” is a U.S. and
Intemational tradermark and registered trademark owned by Progressive
Gaming or their pariners; "Cybenview” is a trademark of Cyberview
Technology Limited; ® EPE, Reg. U.S. Patent & Trademark Cffice;
Guaranieed Play poker and dasign is a trademark of Walker Digital
Gaming, LLC.; “Indiena Jones" anc "Star Wars” © 2008 Lucasiim Lid.
& TM. All Rights Reserved. Usad Under Authorization.;  *Jeoparciyt”
5 & registered trademark of Jeopardy Procuctions, Inc. “Jeopardy!”
©2008 Jeopardy Productions, Inc. Al Rights Resarved.; "Milion-2-1"is a
trademeark of Milicn-2- 1; PureDepih ™, MLD®, Multi-Layer Display®, and
Aciual Depth? ara trademarks and registered trademarks of PureDepih,

. Inc. www. puredepth.com; "The Joker's Wid is a Trademark of Colurmnbia
TriStar Television, Inc. "The Jokers Wild" Tv & © 2008 Colurmbia TriStar
Television, Inc. All Rights Reserved.; "“Wheal of Fortune” Is a regstered
rademark of, and "Wheel! of Fortuna Special Edition” is a tradernark of,
Cdlifon Productions, Inc. "Whes! of Fortune” © 2008 Califon Productions,
Inc. All Rights Reserved.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains statements that do not relate to historical or current facts, but are “forward looking”
slatements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements relate
to analyses and other information based on forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet
determinable. These statements may also relate to future events or trends, our future prospects and proposed
new products, services, developments, or business strategies, among other things. These statements can
generally (although not always) be identified by their use of terms and phrases such as anticipate, helieve,
could, would, estimate, expect, intend, may, plan, predict, project, pursue, will, continue, and other similar terms
and phrases, as well as the use of the future tense.

Examples of forward looking statements in this report include, but are not limited to, the following categories of
expectations about:
a our ability to introduce new products and stimulate replacement demand

the timing, features, benefits, and expected success of new product introductions

the timing of the introduction of and revenues from server-based systems

a growing portion of our product sales coming from non-machine products

benefits from research and development efforts

results of our collaboration with the Gaming Standards Association

our ability 1o acquire, develop, or protect intellectual property

our market share, competitive advantage, and leadership position

the advantages offered to customers by our products and product features

the timing and estimated costs related to our company-wide strategic review and workforce reduction
gaming growth, expansion, and new market opportunities

our ability to benefit from and effectively integrate and utilize acquired businesses and assets
investments in other entities, expanding our product lines, and improving our position in related
markets

factors impacting future gross margins and tax rates

increasing growth or contributions from certain non-machine products and services

increasing machine sales or ptacements

legistative or regulatory developments and related market opportunities

available capital resources to fund future operating requirements, capital expenditures, payment
obligations, and share repurchases

» timing and amount of future share or debenture repurchases and dividends

Fy expectations regarding losses from off-balance sheet arrangements

> > F » ¥ > > b F r > >
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Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in our forward looking statements. Our
future financial condition and results of operations, as well as any forward looking statements, are subject to
change and to inherent known and unknown risks and uncentainties. See ltem 1A, Risk Factors, in this report
for a discussion of these and other risks and uncertainties. You should not assume at any point in the future
that the forward looking statements in this report are still valid. We do not intend, and undertake no obligation,
to update our forward locking statements to reflect future events or circumstances.



PART I
Item 1. Business

GENERAL

International Game Technology is a global gaming company specializing in the design, manufacture, and
marketing of electronic gaming equipment and network systems, as well as licensing and services. As a leading
supptier of gaming products to the world, we maintain a wide array of entertainment-inspired gaming product
lines and target gaming markets in all legal jurisdictions worldwide. We are committed to providing quality
gaming products at competitive prices, designed to increase the potential for operator profits by serving players
better.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, International Game Technology, IGT, we, our, or the Company refers to
International Game Technology and its consolidated entities. Italicized text in this document with an attached
superscript trademark or copyright notation indicates trademarks of IGT or its licensors. For more information
about our trademark and copyright ownership, please visit our website at www.IGT.com.

International Game Technology was incorporated in Nevada in December 1980 to acquire the gaming licensee
and operating entity, IGT, and to facilitate our initial public offering. Principally serving the US gaming markets
when founded, we expanded into jurisdictions outside the US in 1986. In addition to our main US production
facilities in Nevada, we manufacture gaming products in the UK and through a third-party manufacturer in
Japan.

We currently maintain sales offices in various gaming jurisdictions around the world. In addition to our
operations in the US and Canada, we have significant international operating centers located in the following
areas:

» Argentina - Mexico

A Australia A The Netherlands

a China ) New Zealand

a Japan ' South Africa

a Macau &  The United Kingdom

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We derive our revenues from the distribution of electronic gaming equipment and network systems, as well as
licensing and services. Operating results reviewed by our chief decision maker encompass all revenue sources
within each geographical customer region. We currently view our business in two operating segments, each
incorporating all types of revenues.
Iy North America consists of our operations in the US and Canada, comprising 76% of consolidated
revenues in fiscal 2008, 77% in 2007, and 79% in 2006.
'y International encompasses our efforts in all other jurisdictions worldwide, comprising 24% of
consolidated revenues in fiscal 2008, 23% in 2007, and 21% in 2006.

We measure segment profit on the basis of operating income. Certain income and expenses related to
company-wide initiatives are managed at the corporate level and not aliocated to an operating segment. Other
segment and financial information contained in BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS of our MDA and Note 18 of
our Consolidated Financial Statements is incorporated here by this reference.

REVENUE STREAMS

We have two revenue streams within each business segment -- gaming operations and product sales.

Gaming operations generate recurring revenues by providing customers with our proprietary gaming equipment
and network systems, as well as licensing, services, and component parts. Gaming operations comprised 53%
of consolidated revenues in fiscal 2008, 52% in 2007, and 50% in 2006.

Qur pricing arrangements are largely variable fees whereby casinos pay service fees to IGT based on a
percentage of the game's coin-in {amounts wagered) where the arrangement includes linkage to an IGT
sponsored WAP jackpot system, and are otherwise based on a percentage of the game’s net win. Fixed fee
pricing arrangements are typically based on a daily or monthly fee. We incur and accrue related jackpot
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liabilities with every wager an a WAP connected device. A portion of the casino fee paid to IGT is used for the
‘ funding and administration of WAP jackpot payments. The cost of funding WAP jackpot payments to winners is
| subject to interest rate volatility. See Note 1 of our Consolidated Financial Statements and MDA-CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES for additional information about gaming operations revenues and jackpot liability
accounting.

A number of factors influence gaming operations revenues and gross margins, including the number and type
of machines in service, levels of play (i.e. amounts wagered), and variations in pricing arrangements. Levels of
| play are dependent on game popularity, casino seasonality trends, economic conditions, and other player
preferences. We monitor the productive life cycle of our gaming operations machines and systematically
! replace units experiencing declining play levels with newer games.
\

The IGT installed base of gaming devices recorded on our balance sheet as part of our property, plant and
equipment includes both variable fee and fixed fee machines. Based on a change in management’s installed
base criteria, the IGT installed base has been revised to reflect additional international units previously
excluded, increasing 2008 and 2007 by 900 units and 2006 by 1,600 units. Casino owned units are machines
sold that also provide a recurring royalty fee. In addition to the units refiected in the table below, gaming
operations revenues also include recurring fees for internet gaming, content, and other gaming equipment
rentals and leasing.

GAMING OPERATIONS MACHINES at September 30,

......... r 80.0
687 . ._.---"
s = 17.7 17.6
5 17.5 60.1, — G505 l L 60.0
——— Casino owned % 512 MS l | 15.7
——IGT fixed fee 2 | 120 | | | | | 400
——— —IGT variable fee £ ' i ‘ .
----- Total gaming operations & ' 456
IGT Installed base 5 392 ' 448 L 20.0
, T T 0.0
2006 2007 2008

Product sales include the sale of gaming equipment and network systems, as well as licensing, services, and
component parts. Product sales comprised 47% of consolidated revenues in 2008, 48% in 2007, and 50% in
2006. As our gaming products become more systems-centric in nature, we anticipate a growing portion of sales
from non-machine products. Non-machine revenues (including network systems, licensing fees, parts, and
conversions, as well as other miscellaneous royalty fees and services) collectively comprised 33% of product
sales in fiscal 2008, 30% in 2007, and 29% in 2006.

PRODUCT SALES COMPOSITION

2006 2007 2008
02% o 1% m 58% 2% m651%

D 14% @ 60%
D 14
O 13% o 14%
1% 0 15% 12% 0 17%

2006 2007 2008
m Video & spinning reel machines 60% 58% 61%

O AWP & pachisuro machines 11% 12% 6%
o Network systems & licensing 13% 15% 17%
O Parts & conversions 14% 14% 14%
O Otherfees & services 2% 1% 2%



STRATEGIC BUSINESS ARRANGEMENTS

As part of our ongoing efforts to create shareholder value, we complement our internal resources through
strategic alliances, investments, and business acquisitions that:

- offer opportunities to diversify our geographic reach

a expand our product lines and customer base

A leverage our technological and manufacturing infrastructure to increase our rates of return

Our most significant acquisition was the purchase of Anchor in December 2001. This acquisition significantly
increased the size of our business and enabled us to consolidate all activities of the Spin For Cash Joint
Venture and afforded us opportunities to further integrate complementary resources, primarily the Wheel of
Fortune®brand and patents.

Over the last five years, we also completed a number of smaller acquisitions, including Acres, WagerWorks and
Cyberview. Acres further positioned us as a leading global provider of casino gaming systems, while
WagerWorks and Cyberview provided additional opportunities to expand the distribution of content across new
channels and mediums,

In addition to acquisitions, we have invested in several companies which we anticipate will further expand our
international footprint and/or product lines. Our investments over the last five years included: CLS to use our
gaming technology to assist or participate in the development and marketing of products and services to the
market in China for lottery related products and services; WDG for access to an expansive portfolio of gaming
application concepts; and DigiDeal to expedite access to the market for electronic table games.

PRODUCTS

We provide a broad range of electronic gaming equipment and network systems, as well as licensing, services,
and component parts that may be soid or placed under recurring revenue arrangements. Most of our electronic
gaming equipment is increasingly driven by its software components.

Gaming Equipment
We offer our customers a wide variety of video and physical reel slot machines that may be tailored to meet
specific needs. Customers can choose from an extensive library of games combined with several new machine
cabinet models designed to maximize functionality, flexibility, and player comfort. Additionally, IGT's AVA®
machines are designed to support server-based gaming networks. Machine configurations vary by jurisdiction
and may include:
a Stand-alone casino-style slot machines which determine the game play outcome at the machine,
known as Class lll in tribaf jurisdictions
r' WAP jackpot systems with linked machines across several casinos
'y CDS machines connected to a central server which determines the game outcome, encompassing
VLT's used primarily in government-sponsored applications, and electronic aids to the play of bingo
machines known as Class Il in triba! jurisdictions (also commonly referred to as electronic bingo)

We also offer multi-player community-style configurations with a common display, especially useful in
jurisdictions where live table games are not allowed. Qur electronic table games include live dealer hosted
configurations with digital cards and live chips or virtual chips/electronic credils, as well as a fully virtual
platform that can be approved as a slot game, providing table-like gaming far slot enly or limited table
jurisdictions.

Our international gaming machines also include AWP games in Europe, and pachisuro machines in Japan.
These games generally incorporate lower payouts with features that allow players to exercise an element of
skill and strategy.

Network Systemns

IGT network systems include applications for casino management, CRM, and server-based player
management. Our casino management solutions include integrated modules for machine accounting, patron
management, cage and table accounting, ticket-infticket-out, bonusing (jackpots and promotions), and table
game automation. Our CRM solution features integrated marketing and business intelligence modules which
provide analytical, predictive, and management tools for maximizing casino operational effectiveness. Our
server-based solutions are designed to enable casino operators to increase profits by enhancing the players’
experience and lower operating costs.



PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

The vision behind IGT product development is to
serve players better by utilizing the power of
networked gaming, information technology, game
design, and services 10 maximize the potential for
operator profitability. The foundation of our business
model is built on the creation and defivery of game
content through integrated casino systems solutions
to machine platforms. Qur product innovation
reflects the anticipation of consumer needs, as well
as customer feedback and market trends.

We support our product development efforts through
a considerable emphasis and investment in R&D of
future technology, which we believe enables IGT to
maintain a leadership position in the industry. We
dedicate nearly 1,700 employees worldwide to
product development in various disciplines from
hardware, software, and firmware engineering to
game design, video, muitimedia, graphics, and
sound. Our investment in R&D totaled $223.0
million in fiscal 2008, $202.2 millicn in 2007, and
$188.5 million in 2006.

Our primary development facilities are located in
Nevada, and we have several design centers
strategically located worldwide, allowing us to
respond to unique market needs and local player
preferences. IGT global design centers provide local
community presence, customized products, and
regiona! production where beneficial or required.
Our UK facility designs and configures AWP and
casino games. Our Japan team designs IGT
pachisuro games in conjunction with a third-party
manufacturer. Our Australia team designs club and
casino products. Qur corporate R&D group, IGT
Labs, is also dedicated to establishing strategic
parinerships with key technology providers.

During fiscal 2008, we continued our World Game
Ptatform initiative to unify and standardize our
technology, design, and development across all
global markets. We anticipate reducing time and
cost to market by having standardized development
worldwide, enabling content delivery through
uniform technologies. We believe this initiative will
facilitate development and deployment of games
into any combination of gaming markets, including
both thick (processing at the machine) and thin
(processing at the server) client-server
environments.

Our fiscal 2008 R&D activities are described under
the following sub-categories: Games, Network
Systems, Platforms, and Intellectual Property.
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Games

We combine elements of math, play mechanics, sound, ant, and technological advancements with our library of
entertainment licenses and patented intellectual properties to provide gaming products with a high degree of
player appeal. We continue to expand our game libraries, emphasizing development of game content to
address changing consumer preferences and other market trends. Our objective is to develop games that
incorporate exciting winning combinations and appealing graphics and sound.

Our games are created primarily by employee designers and artists, as well as third-party developers. We
develop video reel and poker games, as well as enhancements for our classic spinning reel games, such as
multi-line, multi-coin configurations. We build on our traditional game development with unique customization
for video lottery, CDS, Class Il, and international markets. We also continuously upgrade and optimize our
proprietary flagship themes, such as Whee/ of Fortune® and Megabucks®, with game refreshers and
innovative features to enhance play.

Fiscal 2008 highlights

We installed the first games from our new family of MLO® video slots in the fourth quarter, featuring the visual
effect of true depth animation sequences without 3-D glasses. Qur REELdepth ™ video slot games are designed
with MLLO® technology, pioneered by PureDepth™Inc., an ingenious layering of two liguid crystal displays.
MLD® video slots additionally enable players to choose spinning reel, video slots or video poker all in one
machine, as well as allowing server-based game download and configuration functionality for the operators.

Our new S AVP® Upright developed a new look and feel for video spinning reels, providing fresh slot themes,
crisper graphics packages, enhanced lighting schemes and sounds, and innovative bonus rounds. New game
themes include new features, such as high hit frequency, instant progressive capabilities with CMB option, 50-
payline action, Free Games, Easy Bet restricted betting ranges, buy-a-pay bonus wagering, two-for-one
wagering, two-level progressive jackpots, and configurable progressive increments and hold percentages.

We tested sixteen new AVFP®&games successfully for 26 weeks against all other leading manufacturers at
selected Fower Score™performance testing locations across North America. IGT's Power Score ™ program is
designed to verify the strength of new game themes and, by doing s0, supports operator confidence in newly
released titles. This comprehensive testing program compares the overall “real world” market for up to six
months, identifying the potential for slot floor success and assisting in identifying features that contribute to
game longevity.

Group play introductions in fiscal 2008 included eBay™ Wheel of Fortune® Super Spin™ Five-Station™ , and
The Frice is Right® Multi-Station™ Group play products provide a variety of community game play features,
such as the eBay™ feature where multiple players can participate in the same bonus for added player
interaction and high-stakes player attraction. MLP and Mystery Bonus MegaJackpots®releases included
Wheel of Fortune® MLF, Star Wars™ MLP, and Indiana Jones™ MLP with MLD®. MLP and Mystery Bonus
format games offer players free spin bonuses and frequent mid-level wins, as well as a chance to randomly win
a higher value jackpot while playing low-denomination themes. In fiscal 2009, we plan to release Wheel of
Fortune® MLD and Megabucks® MLD® MLF, as well as Scavenger Hunt™ MLP, the first server-based bank-
to-bank concept.

Our M-P Series™interactive, multi-player suite of electronic table games arranged in virtual pits continues
moving forward with the introduction of reulette and baccarat during fiscal 2008. With virtuat cards and virtual
chips, these products provide floor-layout flexibility, increased game security, limited staffing requirements,
increased hands-per-hour, and decreased operating costs, along with the addition of table game options for
slot-only jurisdictions.

We continue to develop our popular game titles for deployment through online and mobile gaming applications.
During fiscal 2008, we released the online version of Megabucks®on the internet casino platform and other
online versions of our popular MegaJackpots®themes are expected to follow. Other games migrated to these
platforms include Cleopatra®, WolfRun®, Eivis-A Little More Action™, Texas Tea®, Hi-5™ and Elvis Top 20™

Network Systems

Games and network systems continue to converge, as operators increasingly require this synergy for regulatory
purposes and to manage game performance and player preferences. As we develop and integrate gaming
systems, we recognize networks have the power to dramatically change the appearance and improve the
usefulness of gaming systems.




Our ongoing server-based gaming development continues to focus on a more comprehensive enterprise-wide
network systems solution designed to provide operators with:

I tools for more effective casino floor management

» new ways to engage and interact with piayers

During fiscal 2008, IGT’s sb™product line became s6X™ , the Experience Management solution. Our first
evolution of sb™ centered on server-based game management; s6X™is being developed into a new integrated
modular solution, incorporating input from real-life operators. With sbX™  an operator can create, manage, and
deliver customized player experiences that drive player loyalty. Coupled with our AVP®technology, sbX™
provides the flexibility and connectivity needed by operators to keep up with changing player demands and
enhance their competitive edge. All this functionality is designed to optimize an operator’s return and lower
operating costs.

During 2008, we opened the IGT Global Technology and Interoperability Center to facilitate third-party
manufacturers and strategic partners in the testing of GSA protocol products’ interface integration,
compatibility, and performance. The Center is actively testing our sbX™ system and its interaction with other
vendor systems, as we continue to engineer new applications and demonstrate the security, efficiency, and
innovative new casino player marketing features this technology can provide.

We are preparing to move beyond the development and testing phase in 2008 into the commercialization and
sales phase in 2009. During fiscal 2009, we expect to introduce both operational and player components of
shx™ for smaller scale, bank-by-bank installations, allowing operators to test operational and player features
prior to floor-wide investments. We anticipate the first casino-wide deployment of our sbX™gaming
management systems at the new CityCenter's Aria Casino Resort in Las Vegas scheduled to open in late 2009.

Our five field trials are in the process of upgrading to the latest version of sbX™ a milestone step that will
incorporate G2S and S25 GSA protocols and enable sbX™integration with various other casine management
systems. This new version of sbX™will allow operators to download multiple games on slot machine drives and
configure player menus with our award-winning Service Window interface that will overlay all future soX™
applications.

We will continue combining the power of the open network with other server-based applications, including
casino transactional systems, business intelligence software, and other unique new gaming products. The
integration of sbX™with our CRM, business intelligence, and predictive modeling applications will provide the
tools designed to help operators better understand and predict player behavior patterns, increase marketing
productivity, and analyze customer preferences and game performance. We also continue to support and
enhance our legacy gaming systems for casino management (such as Advaniage®), CRM, Ticket-in/Ticket-out,
CDS, and WAP.

Platforms

Platforms are the means by which players interact with the games, and we support several in order to maximize
our game distribution reach. The challenge of platform development is in determining how to effectively use a
wide range of technologies to satisfy evolving global markets with the best features, cost points, and delivery
dates. The goal is to ensure that our content can be deployed through a number of different channels, including
traditional gaming platforms, as well as wireless networks and the internet.

During fiscal 2008, we continued development for delivery through third-party platforms, interactive digital TV,
cell phones, the internet, and other mobile gaming outlets, as well as through network technology for remote
game management and downloading. We also expanded our Remote Game Server™1o facilitate further
deployment of our game content to internet platforms.

We incorporated customer feedback in the design of several new cabinet models released in fiscal 2008. The
new models were also designed with input from ergonamic and industrial design experts o create a product
that is flexible, functional and holds the greatest player appeal. These models diversify our AVP® cabinet styles
and are all s£X™ ready with supporting GSA open communication standards and video capabilities for the
service window.

Our AVP®is designed to support the next generation of video games and provide improved graphic capabilities
such as:

MLD® virtual 3-D spinning reels

liquid crystal wide- or full- screen live streaming videos

animations with vivid colors

enhanced stereo and surround sound

expanded storage capacity, allowing for complex bonus features

> r>rr >
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As we transition to AV/P&as our standard development platform, we also continue development support for the
following platforms:

» Game King®video platform using the 80960 processor

- S2000® and Reel Touch® 80960 spinning reel platform

a VLC 8800™ platform widely used in government-sponsored jurisdictions, with the ability to connect

with most major North America video lottery control systems

a Blue Chip platform used in Australia and New Zealand

T Barcrest MPUS (soon to be replaced by MPUB) AWP platform produced in the UK

P Pachisuro platform used in Japan

Intellectual Property

We consider our intellectual property portfolio of patents, trademarks, copyrights, and other licensed rights to be
a significant asset to our business. We currently own or license over 1,900 patents and over 2,100 trademarks.
Our capitalized patents have a weighted average remaining useful life of 8 years and our licensed
arrangements have various expiration dates through 2020, frequently with options to extend.

We seek to protect our investment in R&D and the unique, distinctive features of our products by perfecting and
maintaining our IP rights. We cbtain patent proteclion covering many of our products and have a significant
number of US and foreign patent applications pending. OQur portfolio is widely diversified, comprised of both
domestic and foreign patents related to a variety of gaming equipment and systems, including game designs,
bonus and secondary game features, and device componenits.

We market most of our products under trademarks and copyrights that provide product recognition and promote
widespread acceptance. We seek protection for our copyrights and trademarks in the US and various foreign
countries, where applicable. Certain intellectual property litigation is described in Note 16 of our Consolidated
Financial Statements.




SALES AND MARKETING REGIONS

We market our products and services in legalized gaming jurisdictions around the world. While our most
significant jurisdictions are in North America, we anticipate international jurisdictions will continue to grow in
significance to our business. We promote our products through a worldwide network of sales associates. We
use third-party distributors and agents in certain markets under arrangements that generally specify no
minimum purchase and require specified performance standards be maintained. We also offer equipment
contract financing for qualified customers and development financing loans to select customers for new or
expanding gaming facilities.

Customer service is an important aspect of our averall marketing strategy. We have over 50 customer service
centers worldwide to respond effectively to customer needs. In addition, we provide access to 24-hour
customer service and product information through our website and a fully staffed Global Support Center
telephone hottine, including a full range of field support engineering resources to resolve technical issues. We
also offer customers a variety of training to ensure their employees can successfully use our products to their
full potential.

North America
Customer service locations and estimated market bases are reflected below.

i Winnipeg, MB Southfield, Ml
Rapid City, SD 7 Oakdale, MN Mississauga, ON
Golden, CO l— - CrestHill, IL r Dorval, QC

CANADA
92,000

Renton, WA

Spokane, WA Moncton, NB

Missoula, MT

ke, N
ke, TV North Kingstown, Rl
Reno, NV
Roseville, CA | »— Egg Harbor Township, NJ

San Francisco, CA

Las Vegas, NV
Murrieta, CA
Phoenix, AZ

Albuguerque, NM

Tulsa, OK
Miramar, FL

Guifport, MS
Harahan, LA

Council Bluffs, 1A
Maryland Heights, MO

Gaming in the US and Canada continues to grow in popularity with the spread of tribal casinos and other
gambling venues such as racetracks (also known as racinos) and bingo parlors, resulting from legalization of
gaming in jurisdictions where governments are locking for ways to support public operations. We estimate the
base of gaming devices installed in North America increased nearly 5% in 2008 to over 930,000 machines.

Opportunities for additional sales ar placements of IGT products in North America are significantly impacted by
the machine replacement cycle, legalization of gaming in new jurisdictions, and new property openings or
expansions. | egislative actions and the passage of voter referendums are providing new and expanding
opportunities in jurisdictions across the US including California, Florida, indiana, Kansas, Maryland,
Pennsylvania, and Washington. We monitor ongoing tegislative developments contemplated in several other
states including lllinois, Kentucky, Massachusetts, and Texas.




International
IGT offices are located internationally to betier serve customer needs and address local regulatory issues.

~ Latvia . “d
Netheriands® ¢
YL!‘ * & Russia

h d
New Zealandx

Our international strategy capitalizes on our North America experience, while customizing products for unique
local preferences and regulatory requirements. Our international operations service:

' casinos in Asia, Europe, Latin America, Russia, and South Africa

'y clubs and casinos in Australia and New Zealand

'Y AWP facilities in the UK and continental Europe

Y pachisuro parlors in Japan

Our international gaming operations installed base has grown substantially since we expanded into Mexico in
fiscal 2005. Our online gaming provided from Alderney in the British Channel Islands continues to provide
additional growth opportunities. We believe further international opportunities will develop as support grows for
legalized gambling as a means of promoting tourism revenues.
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OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

Manufacturing end Suppliers

In addition to cur main production facility in Reno, Nevada, we manufacture AWP and UK casino products in
the UK and pachisuro machines through a third-party manufacturer in Japan. International casino and club
gaming devices are fabricated, whole or in kit form, at our Reno facility. Gur manufacturing operations primarily
involve the configuration and assembly of electronic components, cables, hamesses, video monitors, and
prefabricated parts purchased from outside sources. We also operate facilities for cabinet manufacturing,
silkscreen, and digital design.

We use a variety of raw materials to manufacture our gaming devices including metals, wood, plastics, glass,
electronic components, and LCD screens. We have a broad base of materiat suppliers and utilize multi-
sourcing practices to ensure component availability. We believe the availability of materials used to
manufacture our products is adequate and we are not substantially dependent on any single supplier.

Our Reno facility currently devotes more than 800,000 square feet to product development, manufacturing,
warehousing, shipping, and receiving. During the current year, we consclidated several Las Vegas leased
facilities into our newly constructed 37-acre central campus, which was completed in fiscal 2008. Maintaining
our commitment to quality during fiscal 2008, we renewed our 1ISO 9001.2000 Quality Management System
certification at all of our manufacturing facilities. ISO standards represent an international consensus with
respect to the design, manufacture, and use of practices intended to ensure ongoing customer satisfaction with
consistent delivery of products and services.

We generally carry a significant amount of inventory related to the breadth of our product lines. We reasonably
expect to fill our order backlog within the next fiscal year, totaling approximately $351.2 million at October 31,
2008 and $327.6 mitlion at October 31, 2007.

Regulatory Compliance

IGT is dedicated to regulatory compliance worldwide in order to ensure that our products meet requirements in
each gaming jurisdiction and that we obtain the necessary approvals and licenses. We conduct business in
most jurisdictions where gaming is legal and hold licenses where required.

Employees

As of September 30, 2008, we employed 5,800 individuals worldwide, consisting of 4,800 in North America and
1,000 internationally. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we began a comprehensive companywide review of
our costs and organizational structure to maximize efficiency and align our operating expenses with the current
and forecasted business environment. As a part of this effort, in November 2008, we announced a workforce
reduction of approximately 8% or 460 positions. For additional discussion concerning cost estimates
surrounding our realignment, see MDA-OVERVIEW and MDA—CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS.

COMPETITION AND PRODUCT DEMAND

A number of factors drive demand for both our and our competitors' gaming products.

We believe replacement sales are driven by customer strategies to upgrade casino floors with newer games
and technologies that combine higher yields with cost savings, convenience, and other benefits. New or
emerging technology that provides operators with a favorable return on investment has the ability to accelerate
a machine replacement cycle. This technology may come in the form of new machine cabinets with more
processing power or new game features that increase player appeal and/or operator profits.

New or expanding casinos generate new product demand and stimulate replacement demand at neighboring
casinos that upgrade their games and machines in order to remain competitive. New jurisdictions establishing
legalized gaming also create product demand and have contributed to significant growth in the overall installed
base of gaming devices during the past few decades.

The market for gaming devices and network systems is highly competitive, constantly evolving, and subject to
rapid technological change. We compete in both domestic and international markets and endeavor to create
products that are superior in functionality and features, architecture and technological innovations, and
customer acceptance and player preference. In addition 1o creating desirable products, we also strive to
maintain an edge in our quality of support and efficient product implementation.
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We believe IGT has a competitive advantage as a result of our broad alliances and long history with customers,
continued development of systems that enhance operator profitability, financial strength to aggressively invest
in R&D, and extensive collection of intellectual properties.

Further, the breadth of our gaming products and the diversity of our innovative game library contribute to our
competitive advantage. Our historically high levels of customer service and support, extensive and well-
established infrastructure of sales and manufacturing, worldwide recognition, and geographic diversity are
competitive assets. We believe our reputation for consistently delivering and supporting quality products will
encourage operators to select our products and enable us to maintain our market position.

Our competitors range from small, localized companies to large, multi-national corporations in every jurisdiction
in which we conduct business. Our most significant competitors include Aristocrat Leisure Limited, Bally
Technologies, Inc., and WMS Industries, Inc.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

IGT's principal corporate executive offices are located at: 9295 Prototype Drive
Reno, Nevada 89521
Telephone: (775) IGT-7777

All reporting information filed with or furnished to the SEC is available free of charge through the investor
Relations link on cur website at www.|GT.com. QOur corporate governance guidelines and charters for our Audit,
Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees are also available on our website. This
information will be mailed in print form free of charge to any shareholder upon request.
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GOVERNMENT GAMING REGULATION

We operate in most legal casino gaming jurisdictions worldwide, as well as in a significant number of legalized
lottery jurisdictions. The manufacture and distribution of gaming equipment, systems, and services, as well as
the operation of casinos, is subject to regulation by a variety of local and federal agencies, with the majority of
oversight provided by individual state gaming contro! boards. While the regulatory requirements vary from
jurisdiction to jurisdiction, most require:

A licenses and/or permits

'Y findings of suitability for the company, as well as individual officers, directors, major stockholders,

and key employees
a documentation of qualification, including evidence of financial stability
a specific approvals for gaming equipment manufacturers and distributors

Our operating entities and key personnei have obtained or applied for all required government licenses,
permits, registrations, findings of suitability, and approvals necessary to manufacture and distribute gaming
products in all jurisdictions where we do business. Although many regulations at each level are similar or
overlapping, we must satisfy ali conditions individually for each jurisdiction.

Laws of the various gaming regulatory agencies serve to protect the public and ensure that gaming related
activity is conducted honestly, competitively, and free of corruption. Regulatory oversight additionally ensures
that the local authorities receive the appropriate amount of gaming tax revenues. As such, our financial systems
and reporting functions must demonstrate high levels of detail and integrity.

Certain regulators not only govern the activities within their jurisdiction, but also oversee activities that occur in
other jurisdictions to ensure that we comply with local standards on a worldwide basis. As a Nevada
corporation, state regulatory authorities require us to maintain Nevada standards for all operations worldwide.
Violations of laws in one jurisdiction could result in disciplinary action in other jurisdictions. A more detailed
description of the regutations to which we are subject is provided in Exhibit 99 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K, incorporated herein by reference.

The nature of the industry and our worldwide operations make this process very time consuming and require
extensive resources. We employ additional community staff members and legal resources familiar with local
customs in centain jurisdictions 1o assist in keeping us compliant with applicable regulations worldwide. Through
this process, we seek to assure both regulators and investors that all our operations maintain the highest levels
of integrity and avoid any appearance of impropriety. We have never been denied a gaming related license, nor
have our licenses ever been suspended or revoked.

Responsible Gaming

RG is the industry's response to problem gambling, and fiscal 2008 marked the 11th anniversary of the IGT
Responsible Gaming Program. Corporate social responsibility has taken on a new dimension since the
inception of our program. Gaming jurisdictions can suffer negative consequences due to lack of attention 1o the
issue of problem gambling. As our markets expand internationally, so must our understanding of social
protections and responsible gaming in different cultures. IGT works closely with new gaming jurisdictions to
develop sound responsible gaming policies and guidelines to help ensure programs remain viable over the long
term.

As a technology provider to the gaming industry, our approach to responsible gaming differs only slightly from
that of the gaming operatoer, but the objectives are the same:
'y raise awareness of RG as a positive approach to problem gambling
'y coltaborate with the problem gambling community, others in the industry, our customers, and public
policy makers in developing RG practices and programs
A educate cur employees
A support research and treatment

Our experience has taught us that corporate social respensibility must be a comerstone of any sound gaming
program and is vital 1o sustaining our industry. We support our commitment to RG with funding for numerous
federal, state, and locat organizations, conferences, and events, including:

. National Center for Responsible Gaming » Problem Gambling Center
a National Council on Problern Gambling 'y Responsible Gaming Education Week
a National Problem Gambling Helpline o Problem Gambling Awareness Week
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

New products require regulatory approval and may be subject to complex revenue recognition standards, which

could materially affect our financial results.

As we introduce new products and transactions become increasingly complex, additional analysis and
judgment is required to account for them and to recognize revenues in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Transactions may include multiple element arrangements and/or software components.
As our products and transactions change, applicable accounting principles or regulatory product approval
delays could change the timing of revenue recognition and could adversely affect aur financial results for any
given period. For example, our deferred revenue increased approximately $38.1 million during the quarter
ended September 30, 2008 to a total of $62.1 million. This increase reflected our continued shift toward more
multiple element contracts that included systems and software.

Qur ability to operate in our existing markets or expand into new jurisdictions could be adversely affected by
changing regulations or problems with obtaining or maintaining needed licenses or approvals.
We operate only in jurisdictions where gaming is legal. The gaming industry is subject to extensive
governmental regulation by US federal, state and local governments, as well as tribal officials or organizations
and foreign governments. While the regulatory requirements vary by jurisdiction, most require:

'y licenses andfor permits

'y findings of suitability

Y documentation of qualifications, including evidence of financial stability

» other required approvals for companies who manufacture or distribute gaming equipment and

services
» individual suitability of officers, directors, major stockholders and key employees

Any delays in obtaining or difficulty in maintaining regulatory approvals needed for expansion within existing
markets or into new jurisdictions can negatively affect our opportunities for growth. Further, changes in existing
gaming regulations may hinder or prevent us from continuing to operate in those jurisdictions where we
currently do business, which would harm our operating results. In particular, the enactment of unfavorable
legislation or government efforts affecting or direcled at manufacturers or gaming operators, such as
referendums to increase gaming taxes or requirements to use local distributors, would likely have a negative
impact on our operations.

Slow growth in the establishment of new gaming jurisdictions or the number of new casinos and declines in the
rate of replacement for existing gaming machines could limit or reduce our future profits.

Demand for our products is driven substantially by the establishment of new gaming jurisdictions, the addition
of new casinos or expansion of existing casinos within existing gaming jurisdictions and the replacement of
existing gaming machines. The establishment or expansion of gaming in any jurisdiction typically requires a
public referendum or other legislative action. As a result, gaming continues to be the subject of public debate,
and there are numerous active organizations that oppose gaming. Opposition to gaming could result in
restrictions on or even prohibitions of gaming operations or the expansion of operations in any jurisdiction. In
addition, the construction of hew casinos or expansion of existing casinos fluctuates with demand, general
economic conditions and the availability of financing. The rate of gaming growth in North America has
diminished and machine replacements are at historically low levels. Slow growth in the establishment of new
gaming jurisdictions or delays in the opening of new or expanded casinos and continued declines in or low
levels of demand for machine replacements could reduce the demand for our products and our future profits.

Demand for our products and the level of play of our products could be adversely affected by changes in player
and operator preferences.

As a supplier of gaming machines, we must offer themes and products that appeal to gaming operators and
players. If we are unable to anticipate or react timely to any significant changes in player preferences, such as a
negative change in the trend of acceptance of our newest systems innovations or jackpot fatigue {declining play
levels on smaller jackpots), the demand for our gaming products and the level of play of our gaming products
could decline. Further, our products could suffer a loss of floor space to table games and operators may reduce
revenue sharing arrangements, each of which would harm our sales and financial results. In addition, general
changes in consumer behavior, such as reduced trave! activity or redirection of entertainment dollars to other
venues, could result in reduced demand and reduced play levels for our gaming products.
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Our business is vulnerable to changing economic conditions and current unfavorable economic conditions have
and could continue to neaatively impact the play levels of our participation games, our product sales, and our
ahility to collect outstanding receivables from our customers.

Existing unfavorable domestic and international general economic conditions and higher fuel or other
transportation costs reduce disposable income of casino patrons and result in fewer patrons visiting casinos.
This decline in disposable income likely results in reduced play levels on our participation games, causing our
cash flows and revenues from a large share of our recurring revenue products to decline. Current unfavorable
economic conditions have also resulted in a tightening in the credit markets, decreased liquidity in many
financial markets, and resulted in significant volatility in the credit and equity markets. A decline in the relative
health of the gaming industry and the difficulty or inability of our customers to obtain adequate levels of capital
1o finance their ongoing operations would reduce their resources available to purchase our products and
services, which would adversely affect our revenues. |f we experience a significant unexpected decrease in
demand for our products, we could also be required to increase our inventory obsolescence charges.
Furthermore, current unfavorable economic conditions could impact the ahility of cur customers to make timely
payments to us. If that were to occur, we may incur additional provisions for bad debt. For example, during
fiscal 2008, our bad debt provisions increased $15.0 million compared to fiscal 2007 related to credit concerns
on certain receivables.

A decline in interest rates causes an increase in our jackpot expense which could limit or reduce our future
profits.

Changes in prime andfor Treasury and Agency interest rates during a given period cause fluctuations in jackpot
expense largely due to the revaluation of future winner liabilities. When rates increase, jackpot liabilities are
reduced as it costs less to fund the liability. However, when interest rates decline the value of the liability (and
related jackpot expense) increases because the cost to fund the liability increases. For example, our results
were materially affected by the 200 bps decline in the prime rate during the second quarter of fiscal 2008. Our
results may continue to be negatively impacted by continuing low interest rates or further declines in interest
rates, resulting in increased jackpot expense and a reduction of our investment income, which could limit or
reduce our future profits.

Our success in the competitive gaming industry depends in large part on our ability to develop and manage
frequent introductions of innovative products.

The gaming industry is intensely competitive, and many of our competitors have substantial resources and
specialize in the development and marketing of their products. Increased competition has negatively impacted,
and may continue to negatively impact, our results. Because the gaming industry is characterized by dynamic
customer demand and rapid technological advances, we must continually introduce and successfully market
new themes and technologies in order to remain competitive and effectively stimulate customer demand. Our
customers will accept a new product only if it is likely 1o increase operator profits more than competitors’
products. There is no certainty that our new products will attain this market acceptance or that our competitors
will not more effectively anticipate or respond to changing customer preferences. In addition, any delays by us
in introducing new products on schedule could negatively impact our operating resuits by providing an
opportunity for our competitors to introduce new products and gain market share ahead of us. For example, our
business and results could be adversely affected if we experience delays or problems in our planned
introduction of our sbX™ gaming management systems, or if we do not gain market acceptance of these
systems.

Failure to atiract, retain and motivate key employees may adversely affect our ability to compete.

Our success depends largely on recruiting and retaining talented employees. The market for qualified
executives and highly skilled, technical workers is intensely competitive. The loss of key employees or an
inability to hire a sufficient number of technical staff could limit our ability to develop successful products and
cause delays in getting new products to market.

We may be unable to protect our IP.

A significant portion of our revenues is generated from products using certain IP rights and our operating results
would be negatively impacted if we are unsuccessful in protecting these rights from infringement. In addition,
some of our most popular games and features are based on trademarks, patents and other IP licensed from
third parties. The continued success of these games may depend upon our ability to retain or expand these
licenses with reasonable terms. We also depend on trade secret law to protect certain proprietary knowledge
and have enlered into confidentiality agreements with those of our employees who have access to this
information. However, there can be no guarantees that our employees will not breach these agreements, and if
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these agreements are breached it is unlikely that the remedies available to us will be sufficient to compensate
us for the damages suffered.

We may be subject to claims of IP infringement or invalidity and adverse outcomes of litigation could
unfavorably affect our operating results.

Periodically, we receive notification from others claiming that we are infringing upon their patent, trademark or
other IP rights. Regardless of their merit, such claims may cause us to incur significant costs. Responding to
these claims could also require us to stop selling or to redesign our products, to pay significant amounts in
damages or enter into agreements to pay significant licensing fees or royalties. Additionally, if any of these
claims prove successful, it could limit our ability to bring new products to market in the future. Our assessment
of current IP litigation could change in light of the discovery of facts not presently known to us or determinations
by judges, juries or others that do not accord with our evaluation of the possible liability or outcome of such
litigation.

Our gaming machines and online operations may experience losses due to fraudulent activities.

We incarporate security features into the design of our gaming machines and other systems, including those
responsible for our online operations, which are designed to prevent us and our patrons from being defrauded.
However, there can be no guarantee that such security features will continue to be effective in the future. If our
security systems fail to prevent fraud, our operating results could be adversely affected. Additionally, if third
parties breach our security systems and defraud our patrons, the public may lose confidence in our gaming
machines and operations.

Our outstanding Senior Convertible Debentures subject us to additional risks.

Our 2.6% Debentures issued in December 2006 contain a net settlement feature. This feature entitles holders
of Debentures 1o receive cash up to $1,000 and shares for any excess conversion value determined in a
manner in the indenture governing the Debentures. Consequently, if a significant number of Debentures are
converted or redeemed, we would be required to make significant cash payments to the holders who convert
their Debentures. Given current market conditions and the recent trading price of our stock, it is likely that
Debenture holders will exercise their right to require IGT to redeem the Debentures on December 15, 2009. Qur
liquidity, financial position, results of operations, and cash flows may be negatively impacted if we are unable to
satisty this obligation with existing capital resources as we may be required to obtain funding with terms that
include higher interest rates or additional restrictions.

Qur outstanding credit fagility subjects us to financial covenants which may limit our flexibility.

Our Senior Credit Facility subjects us to a number of financia! covenants, including a minimum ratio of EBITDA
to interest expense minus interest on jackpot liahilities and a maximum ratio of debt to EBITDA. Qur failure or
inability to comply with these covenants will cause an event of default that, if not cured, could cause the entire
outstanding borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility to become immedialely due and payable. In addition,
our interest rate under the Senior Credit Facility can vary based on our public credit rating or our debt to
capitalization ratio. Each of these measures may be adversely impacted by current unfavorable economic
conditions. The Senior Credit Facility alsc includes restrictions that may limit our flexibility in planning for, or
reacting to, changes in our business and the industry. Additionally, the facility expires in December 2010; if
credit markets do not improve prior to that time we may have difficulty refinancing these borrowings or it may be
necessary to refinance under less favorable terms. If this occurs, our liguidity, financial position, results of
operations and cash flows may be negatively affected.

Investments and development financing loans could adversely impact liquidity or cause us to incur loan losses
of record a charge to eamings if our investments become impaired.

We invest in and/or provide financing for expansion or construction of gaming locations and other business
purposes, including locations abroad. Such investment and financing activities subject us to increased credit
risk in certain regions, which could be exacerbated by current unfavorable economic conditions or other political
or economic instability in those regions. For example, we have investments in CLS, a portion of which have
declined in value and resulted in a hon-cash write down as described in Note 2 of gur Consolidated Financial
Statements. Although we have not to date realized any losses associated with our CLS investments, we are
monitoring them and will reassess impairment on a quarterly basis. We have in the past and may in the future
incur losses on these types of investments and loans. Qur results of operations, liquidity or financial position
may be negatively impacted if we are unable to collect on loans or benefit from investments we make.
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Current environmental laws and regulations, or those enacted in the future, could result in additional liabilittes
and_costs.

The manufacturing of our products may require the use of materials that are subject to a variety of
environmental, health and safety laws and regulations. Compliance with these laws coutd increase our costs
and impact the availability of components required to manufacture our products. Viclation of these laws may
subject us to significant fines, penalties or disposal costs, which could negatively impact our results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.

The risks related to operations outside of traditional US law could negatively affect gur results.

We operate in many countries outside of the US and in tribal jurisdictions with sovereign immunity which
subjects us to certain inherent risks including:
A political or economic instability
additional costs of compliance
tariffs and other trade barriers
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates outside the US
adverse changes in the creditworthiness of parties with whom we have significant receivables or
forward currency exchange contracts

» > >

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties
We expect our current properties will be adequate for our near-term business needs.
North America

Our largest manufacturing facility and corporate offices are located in Reno, Nevada, where we own a 1.2
million square foot facility that houses our manufacturing, cabinet production, silkscreen, engineering, sales,
and corporate administrative functions. This facitity supports production for all of North America and all
international markets, except Japan and the UK. We also lease 147,000 square feet of additiona! warehousing
facilities in Reno under agreements expiring through June 2013.

In fiscal 2008, we comptleted construction of our new 618,000 square foot Las Vegas campus. This new facility
houses our largest sales and service force, as well as warehousing and administrative functions, and its
completion allowed us to consolidate several leased facilities. At September 30, 2008, we leased approximately
25,000 square feet of additional administration facilities in Las Vegas under agreements expiring between
October 2009 and January 2013. Additionally, we leased approximately 396,000 square feet of warehousing,
sales, and service facilities throughout the US and Canada to support local market needs under leases expiring
between December 2008 and January 2016.

International

In the UK, we own a 149,000 square foot facility and lease 51,000 square feet under leases expiring through
June 2015 to support local manufacturing, sales, and administrative functions. In Australia and New Zealand,
we own two facilities with 15,000 square feet and lease 122,000 square feet under agreements expiring through
December 2011 used for subassembly, sales, and administration. All other international facilities total 213,000
square feet under leases expiring through February 2013.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

IGT has been named in and has brought lawsuits in the normal course of business. We do not expect the
outcome of these suits to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. A
description of cerain of these matters is contained in Note 16 of our Consolidated Financial Statements and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol “IGT.” The following table presents the high and
low prices of our common stock as traded on the NYSE and quarterly cash dividends declared for the last two

fiscal years.

Fiscal 2008
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

Fiscal 2007
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

Stock Price  Stock Price Dividends

High Low Declared
$45.72 $40.34 $0.140
49.41 35.80 0.140
41.87 2438 0.140
2590 15.22 0.145
$46.76 $40.49 $0.130
48.79 37.89 0.130
42.00 36.80 0.130
43.34 33.57 0.140

There were approximately 3,250 record holders of IGT’s common stock and the closing price was $9.00 as of

November 24, 2008.

¥GT's transfer agent and registrar is:

Share Repurchases

Wells Farge Shareowner Services
Manager of Account Administration
161 North Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, MN 55075-1139
(800) 689-8788

The purpose of our 1990 common stock repurchase authorization, as amended, is to return value to our
shareholders and reduce the number of shares outstanding. We use open market or privately negotiated
transactions, as well as Rule 10b5-1 trading plans, depending on market conditions and other factors. The
authorization does not specify an expiration date. Our share repurchases for the quarter ended September 30,

2008 are summarized below.

Maximum Number

Total Total Number of of Shares Still
Number of Average Shares Purchased as Available for
Shares Price Paid part of a Publicly Purchase Under the

Periods Purchased Per Share Announced Plan Plan
fin millions, except per share amounts)
June 29 - July 26, 2008 7.9 $ 239 7.9 11.4
July 27 - August 23, 2008 23 219 2.3 91
August 24 - September 27, 2008 1.4 20.2 1.4 1.7
Total 11.6 $ 230 11.6
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Performance Graph

The following graph reflects the cumulative total return {change in stock price plus reinvested dividends) of a
$100 investment in our common stock for the five-year period for our fiscal years ended September 30, 2003
through 2008 in comparison to the Standard and Poor’s 500 Composite Index and our peer group. Our peer
group consists of Bally Technologies, Inc., Progressive Gaming International Corporation, Scientific Games
Corp., Shuffle Master, Inc., and WMS Industries, Inc. The comparisons are not intended to be indicative of
future performance of cur common stock.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among International Game Technology, The S&P 500 Index, and A Peer Group
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~—4&—nternational Game Technology == S&P 500 —r=Peer Group

2003 2004 20056 2006 2007 2008

Intemational Game Technology $100.00  $128.74 $98.22  $153.38  $161.31 $65.65
S&P 500 100.00 113.87 127.82 141.62 164.90 128.66
Peer Group 100.00 127.05 160.49 170.68 215.78 152.57

19



item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following should be read in conjunction with ltem 7, MDA, and Item 8, Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As of and for Years ended September 30,

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

(i mitions, excepl per share 8mounts]

Revenues $
Gross profit 1,418
Operating income 659.3
Income from centinuing operations, net of tax 342.5
Discontinued operations, net of tax % .
Net income "2 342.5
Basic earnings per share "

Continuing operations $1.11

Discontinued operations 2 .

Net income 1.11
Diluted earnings per share "

Continuing operations $1.10

Discontinued operations @ -

Net income 1.10
Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 308.0

Diluted 3104
Cash dividends declared per share $0.565
Cash from operations $ 486.5
Cash from investing (365.7)
Cash from financing ! {(115.2)
Capital expenditures ¥ 268.2
Cash used for share repurchases 779.7
Cash and short-term investment securities $ 374
Working capital @ 733.4
Total assets 45574
Notes payable, net (current and non-current) % 2,263.1
Jackpot liabilities (current and non-current) * 650.7
Non-current fiabilities ® 2.911.7
Stockholders' equity 909.0

1,480.8
800.3
508.2

508.2

$1.54
1.54

$1.51

1.51

3301
336.1

$0.530

8215 §
(296.7)
{556.5)

344.3
1,118.3

400.7 $

593.5
4,167.5
1,508.6

643.1
2,023.3
1,452.7

1,371.7
725.1
4736

473.6

141

1.41

$1.34

1.34

336.8
355.8

$0.505

624.1
(234.0)
{386.9)

3105

426.7

589.1
129.1
3,902.7
8324
546.7
614.1
2,042.0

25286 § 26214 $ 25117 §

$

23794 $ 24847

1,190.7 1,319.2
663.7 8143
436.5 429.8

- 58.9
436.5 488.7
$1.27 $1.24

. 0.17

127 1.41
$1.20 $1.17
. 0.15
1.20 132
343.7 346.8
370.2 376.3
$0.485 $0.420
7264 $ 6236
(215.8) 364.8
(525.6)  (1,121.7)
2386 210.9
354.7 129.8
688.1 § 7667
219.6 949.7

3,864.4 3,873.0
811.0 791.9
705.8 719.3
741.1 1,336.4

1,905.7 1,976.6

(1) Fiscal 2004 includes $127.9 mitlion pretax ($81.4 million after tax or $0.22 per diluted share) for losses on early debt

redemption.

2 Centain discontinued Anchor operations were reclassified and sold subseguent to acquisition. Fiscal 2004 includes related gain

on sale of $56.7 million afier tax.

(3 Fiscal 2004 includes $969.6 million of principal debt reduction.

/) Capilal spending increases relate to additional investments in gaming operations equipment, as well as spending for our new
Las Veegas campus canstruction and Reno facifilies expansion in fiscal 2005, 2006 and 2007,

5 Jackpot liabilities increased in fiscal 2007 and 2004 due to VIE consolidations and decreased in fiscal 2006 due to VIE

deconsolidations.
) Cash and investment securities include restricted amounts.

¢7)  Fiscal 2008 includes $611. 1 million of convertible debentures classified in current liabilities because our common stock met the
conversion price threshold. Fiscal 2005 includes $602.2 million of debentures classified as current due to holders’ redemption

rights.

8 Fiscal 2008 and 2007 include additional borrowings on our Senior Credit Facility.
(@) Reductions in fiscal 2008 and 2007 are primarily attributable to treasury share repurchases.
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

The following MDA is intended to enhance the reader's understanding of our operations and current business
environment. MDA is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, our Item 1,
Business, and ltem 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

International Game Technalogy is a global company specializing in the design, manufacture, and marketing of
computerized gaming equipment, network systems, licensing, and services. We are a leading supplier of
gaming products to the world, providing a diverse offering of quality products and services at competitive prices
that are designed to increase the potential for operator profits by serving players better.

Our annual revenues totaled $2.5 billion in fiscal 2008. We operate in two segments, North America and
International, with certain unallocated company-wide income and expenses managed at the corporate level.
International continues to be a growing contributor at 25% of operating income in fiscal 2008. See BUSINESS
SEGMENT RESULTS below and Note 18 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional segment
information and financial results.

We are currently operating in a difficult domestic environment. The combination of economic uncertainty, lower
replacement demand, limited opportunities from new or expanding properties, and improved competition has
negatively impacted our North America results. Our gaming operations business has been negatively affected
by lower casino play levels which operators have largely attributed to unfavorable economic conditions, as well
as declining interest rates which increase jackpot funding costs. In the face of these challenges, we remain
focused on strategic initiatives that we believe will maintain our status as a leading provider of innovative
gaming products and services.

Our current product development efforts reflect our commitment to the future of gaming industry technology as
our business model continues to evolve toward a more systems-centric, networked gaming environment. In
support of the networked gaming environment, we released several new machine models during the current
year. Initial customer feedback on these models has been positive, and we anticipate replacement demand in
fiscal 2008 to exceed 2008 levels. However, the timing and amount of revenues from these releases remains
dependent, in part, on our customers’ capital spending, which may continue to be adversely impacted by
current economic conditions. We remain on track for initial deployment of our sbX™applications in 2009, and
expect to realize a meaningful financial benefit from s&X™technotogy beginning in fiscal 2010 as we further
differentiate IGT gaming products by offering operators new ways to engage and interact with players.

We are dependent, in part, on new market opporiunities to generate growth. We expect to benefit from a
number of new or expansion projects that are currently underway, but the extent and timing of such
opportunities remains uncertain due to the difficult credit environment and risk of prolonged economic
weakness. The uncertainty and lack of liquidity has led some gaming operators to delay or cancel construction
projects; however, we believe market opportunities may develop as credit markets recover and governments
consider gaming tax revenues as one means to address budget shortfalls.

In the current year, we saw new openings or expansions in a number of domestic jurisdictions including
Indiana, Nevada, Oklahoma, and Pennsylvania. During the first half of the year, California voters approved new
tribal compacts for 17,000 additional slot machines, and Florida voters approved 6,000 additional machines for
three pari-mutuel facilities in Miami-Dade County. In November 2008, voters in Maryland voted to legalize up to
15,000 gaming machines at five locations in that state. We also expect to benefit from further gaming
expansion in international markets, especially in Southeast Asia.

During fiscal 2008 we continued to deploy our capital for strategic business combinations and acquisitions of
important technologies and IP. We believe the Cyberview asset purchase and license agreement enabled more
immediate access to the fixed odds betting market in the UK, strengthened our IP portfolio and enhanced our
shX™initiatives. Additionally, we anticipate our acquisition of Million-2-1 will establish new markets and
channels for our game content in the mobile gaming business.

We will take a prudent and conservative approach to maintaining cur available liquidity while credit market
conditions and economic conditions remain unfavorable. We continue to focus on reinvesting in our business
through our installed base of gaming operations machines, as well as other strategic capital deployment
objectives inctuding investments and alliances to expand our geographic reach, product lines, and custamer
base. We will judiciously deploy our capital to preserve maximum flexibility.

Amid difficult operating conditions, we are conducting a company-wide strategic review of our costs and
organizational structure to maximize efficiency and align our expenses with our current and forecasted business
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outlook. We anticipate that these efforts will result in quarterly cost reductions ranging from $20.0 million to
$25.0 million beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. A large part of our cost-cutting measures relates to
workforce reductions that we expect to result in additional charges of $16.0 million to $21.0 million during the
first quarter of fiscal 2009. As we move forward in this challenging economic and credit environment, we intend
to continuously monitor our costs and make adjustments where necessary and feasible to improve our
operating efficiency.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP APB 14-1, Accounting For Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be
Settled in Cash Upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement). This FSP requires that convertible debt
instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion be separated into debt and equity components.
Although we are still quantifying the impact, we expect the adoption of this FSP in the first quarter of fiscal 2010
to increase interest expense related to our convertible debentures with a corresponding decrease to diluted
EPS.

See Note 1 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding recently issued
accounting standards that may impact IGT upon adoption.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the US. Accordingly, we are required to make estimates incorporating judgments and assumptions
we believe are reasonable based on our historical experience, contract terms, trends in our company and the
industry as a whole, as well as information available from other outside sources. Qur estimates affect amounts
recorded in the financial statements and actual results may differ from initial estimates.

We consider the following accounting estimates to be the most critical to fully understand and evaluate our
reported financial results. They require us to make subjective or complex judgments about matters that are
inherently uncentain or variable. Senior management discussed the development, selection, and disclosure of
the following accounting estimates, considered most sensitive to changes from external factors, with the Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors.

Revenue Recognition

We receive revenues from the distribution of electronic gaming equipment and network systems, as well as
licensing and services. Revenues are recognized when all of the following have been satisfied:

! persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

» the price to the customer is fixed and determinable

~ delivery has occurred and any acceptance terms have been fulfilled

a no significant contractual obligations remain

- collection is reasonably assured

Determining whether these requirements have been met may require us to make assumptions and exercise
judgment that could significantly impact the timing and amount of revenue reported each period. In addition, we
may enter into arrangements which include multiple elements or deliverables such as gaming devices, software
systems, and services. In such cases additional judgments and estimates are necessary to ensure the
appropriate amounts of revenue are recorded in a given period. These judgments relate primarily to the
allocation of proceeds based on VSOE or third-party evidence of each element’s fair value, and may affect the
amounts and timing of revenue recorded. If we are unable to establish VSOE for undelivered elements, we may
be required to defer all or a portion of the revenues from certain arrangements.

The application of our revenue recognition policies and changes in our assumptions or judgments affect the
timing and amounts of our revenues, cost of gaming operations, and cost of product sales. We anticipate an
increase in our deferred revenues as we enter into an increasing number of multiple element contracts that
include software and more of our product becomes subject to software rules for revenue recognition. Deferred
revenue increased to $62.1 million at September 30, 2008 from $28.7 million at September 30, 2007.

Gooawill, Other Intangible Assets, and Royalties

We measure and test goodwill for impairment using the two-step approach under SFAS 142, Gooawill and
Other Intangible Assets, at least annually or more often if there are indicators of impairment. If the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to that excess. Qur
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goodwill totaled $1.2 billion at September 30, 2008 and $1.1 billion at September 30, 2007, The last three
annual goodwill impairment tests indicate the fair value of each reporting unit is in excess of its carrying value.

In determining the fair value of our reporting units, we apply the income approach using the DCF method. We
then compare the implied valuation multiples of a group of comparable competitor gaming companies under the
market approach to test the reasonableness of our DCF results. The DCF analysis is based on the present
value of two components: the sum of our five year projected cash flows and a terminal vatue assuming a long-
term growth rate. The cash flow estimates are prepared based on our business plans for each reporting unit,
considering historical results and anticipated future performance based on our expectations regarding product
introductions and market opportunities. The discount rates used to determine the present value of future cash
flows are derived from the weighted average cost of capital of a group of comparable companies, considering
the size and specific risks of each IGT reporting unit.

Our portfolio of other intangibles substantially consists of finite-lived patents, contracts, trademarks, developed
technology, and customer relationships. We regutarly monitor events or changes in circumstances that indicate
the carrying value of these intangibles may not be recoverable or require a revision to the estimated remaining
useful life in accordance with SFAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Our
other intangibles totaled $248.9 million at September 30, 2008 and $245.5 million at September 30, 2007.

If an event or change occurs, we estimate cash flows directly associated with the use of the intangible to test
recoverability and remaining useful lives based on the forecasted utilization of the asset and expected product
revenues. In developing estimated cash flows, we incorporate assumptions regarding changes in legal factors,
related industry climate, regulatory actions, contractual factors, operational performance and the company's
strategic business plans, as well as the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other market
conditions. When the carrying amount exceeds the undiscounted cash flows expected fo result from the use
and eventual disposition of a finite-lived intangible asset or asset group, we then compare the carrying amount
to its current fair value. We estimate the fair value using prices for similar assets, if available, or more typically
using a DCF model. We recognize an impairment loss if the carrying amount is not recoverable and exceeds its
fair value.

We also regularly evaluate the estimated future benefit of prepaid and deferred royalties to determine amounts
unlikely to be realized from forecasted sales or placements of our games. The carrying value of our prepaid and
deferred royalties totaled $195.5 million at September 30, 2008 and $104.6 million at September 30, 2007.

Impairment testing for goodwill, other intangibles, and royatties requires judgment, including the identification of
reporting units, allocation of related goodwill, assignment of corporate shared assets and liabilities to reporting
units, estimated cash flows, and determinations of fair value. While we believe our estimates of future revenues
and cash flows are reasonable, different assumptions could materially affect the assessment of useful lives,
recoverability and fair value. If actual cash flows fall below initial forecasis, we may need to record additional
amortization and/or impairment charges.

Jackpot Liabilities and Expenses

A portion of our gaming operations recurring revenue arrangements incorporate IGT paid WAP jackpots for
which we recognize corresponding jackpot liabilities and expense. Changes in our estimated amounts for
jackpot liabilities and associated jackpot expense are attributable to regular analysis and evaluation of the
following factors:

4 variations in slot play (i.e. jackpot life cycles and slot play patterns)

& volume (i.e. number of WAP units in service and coin-in per unit)

& interest rate movements

& the size of base jackpots (i.e. initial amount of the progressive jackpots displayed to players)

Interest rates applicable to jackpot funding vary by jurisdiction and are impacted by market forces, as well as
winner elections to receive a lump sum payment in lieu of periodic annual payments. Current and non-current
portions of jackpot liabilities, as well as jackpot expense, may also be impacted by changes in our estimates
and assumptions regarding the expected number of future winners who may elect a lump sum payout.

Changes in prime and/or Treasury and Agency interest rates during a given period cause fluctuations in jackpot
expense largely due to the revaluation of future winner liabilities. The value of the liability (and related jackpot
expense) increases when rates decline because it increases the cost to fund the liability. Conversely, when
rates increase, jackpot liabilities are reduced as it costs less to fund the liability. Our results may be materially
affected by significant changes in interest rates such as the 200 bps decline in the prime rate during the second
quarter of fisca! 2008.

Our jackpot liabilities increased to $650.7 million at September 30, 2008 compared to $643.1 million at
September 30, 2007. Jackpot expense totaled $160.0 million for fiscal 2008, $164.7 miilion for fiscal 2007, and
$184.9 million in fiscal 2006. The decline in jackpot expense for fiscal 2008 resulted from lower volume and




variations in slot play partially offset by unfavorable interest rate movements. Fluctuations between fiscal 2007
and 2006 resulted from variations in slot play, fewer WAP units in service, and interest rate movements.

BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS, later in this MDA, discusses additional details regarding the fluctuation in
Jackpot expense. Note 1 of our Consolidated Financial Statements summarizes our accounting policies related
to jackpot liabilities and expense.

fnventory and Gaming Operations Equipment

The determination of obsolete or excess inventory reguires us to estimate the future demand for our products
within specific time horizons, generally one year or less. If we experience a significant unexpected decrease in
demand for our products or a higher occurrence of inventory obsolescence because of changes in technology
or customer requirements, we would recognize additional obsclescence charges. Inventory management
remains an area of focus as we balance the need to maintain strategic inventory levels to ensure competitive
lead times versus the risk of inventory obsolescence because of rapidly changing technology and customer
requirements. The increase in inventories to $218.3 million at September 30, 2008 from $144.8 million at
September 30, 2007 was primarily related to a build-up in support of the recent release of our newer platforms
and cabinets.

We are also required o estimate salvage values and useful lives for our gaming operations equipment. Trends
in market demand and technological obsolescence may require us to record additiona! asset charges which
would negatively impact gross profit.

Income Taxes

We conduct business globally and are subject to income taxes in US federal, state, local, and foreign
jurisdictions. Determination of the appropriate amount and classification of income taxes depends on several
factors, including estimates of the timing and probability of realization of deferred income taxes, reserves for
uncertain tax positions, and income tax payment timing.

Deferred income taxes reflect temporary differences between the book and tax basis of our assets and
liabilities, measured at tax rates expected to apply when taxes are actually paid or recovered. This process
involves estimating our current tax position in each jurisdiction, as well as making judgments as to whether our
taxable income in future periods will be sufficient to fully realize any deferred tax assets. We reduce deferred
tax assets by a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some ar all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. Changes in tax laws, enacted tax rates, geographic mix, or estimated annual taxable income
could change our valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, which in turn impacts our tax provision. Net
deferred tax assets totaled $251.3 million at September 30, 2008 and $208.8 million at September 30, 2007.

In the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ulimate tax
determination is uncertain. We adopted the provisions of FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes -
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 108, during the first quarter of fiscal 2008. This pronouncement
provides guidance for recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. Under FIN 48, we may recognize a tax benefit from an uncertain position if it is more likely than not that
the position will be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the issue.
The amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that we believe is more than 50% likely
of being realized upon settlement. We consider many factors when evaluating and estimating our tax positions
and related benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately anticipate actual
outcomes. Our income tax provision may be impacted to the extent that the final outcome of these tax positions
differs from amounts recorded. As of September 30, 2008, our net unrecognized tax benefits totaled $87.5
million, $53.4 million of which would impact the effective tax rate if recognized.

The implementation of FIN 48 as of the beginning of fiscal 2008 increased our unrecognized tax benefits and
related interest and penalties by $89.9 miillion, increased deferred tax assets by $55.4 million, and decreased
retained earnings by $34.5 million. See Notes 1 and 17 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information about FIN 48 and the impact of adoption.
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CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS - A Year Over Year Comparative Analysis

_Favorable (Unfavorable)
2008 __ 2007 2006 08 vs 07 07 vs 06

{in mitlions except units & EPS; pp = perceniage point)

Revenues $2,5286  $2621.4 $2511.7  § (92.8) -4% $109.7 4%
Gaming operations 13379 1,361.2 1,251.4 {23.3) 2% 109.8 9%
Product sales 1,190.7 1,260.2 1,260.3 {69.5) -6% (0.1} -

Machines 794.8 876.0 896.8 (81.2) 9% {20.8) -2%
Non-machine 395.9 384.2 363.5 1.7 3% 20.7 6%

Gross profit $1,4191 $1,480.8 $1,3711.7 $ (61.7) -4% $ 1091 8%
Gaming operations 7781 823.0 730.0 (44.9) -5% 53.0 13%
Product sales 641.0 657.8 641.7 (16.8) -3% 16.1 3%

Gross margin 56% 56% 55% - pp - 1pp 2%
Gaming operations 58% 60% 58% (2} pp -3% 2pp %
Product sales 54% 52% 51% 2 pp 4% 1 pp 2%

Units
Gaming operations installed base ! 60,500 60,100 51,200 400 1% 8,500 17%

Fixed 15,700 14,500 12,000 1,200 8% 2,500 21%
Variable 44,800 45,600 39,200 (800) -2% 6,400 16%
Machines sold 72,700 105,500 112,000 (33,2000 -31% {6,100} -5%

QOperating income $ 6593 $ 8003 & 7251 $(141.0)  -18% $ 75.2 10%

Operating margin 26% 3% 25% (5 pp -16% 2pp 7H

Net income $ 3425 $ 5082 % 4736  $(1657) -33% $ 346 7%

Diluted EPS $1.10 $1.51 $1.34 ($041)  -27% $0.17 13%

 Installed base has been revised to reflect additional international units previously excluded based on a change in
management's installed base criteria, increasing fiscal years 2008 and 2007 by 900 units and fiscal 2006 by 1,600 units.
Gaming operations revenues and gross profit were not affected by this adjustment,

Fiscal 2008 vs Fiscal 2007

Consclidated net income decreased during the current year compared to fiscal 2007 on lower gaming
operations play levels amid unfavorable economic conditions and continued weakness in North America
replacement sales demand. Comparability was also significantly affected by:

» favorable foreign currency exchange rates’ impact on revenues of $43.9 million

FY write-downs of investments in unconsolidated affiliates totaling $28.6 million

'Y interest rate declines unfavorably impacting jackpot expense by $25.3 million

'y prior year gains totaling $22.8 million from hurricane insurance settlements and an airplane sale

Consolidated Gaming Operations

Revenues were down compared to the prior year primarily due to lower play levels in North America.
Additionally, our installed base growth is increasingly from stand-alone lease and CDS units which generally
provide lower revenues and gross profit per unit compared to WAP units. International revenue and gross profit
improvements partially offset declines in North America refiecting the increasing geographic footprint of our
gaming operations.

In addition, gross profit and margin were adversely affected by unfavorable interest rate impacts on jackpot
expense totaling $25.3 million and technological obsolescence charges of $10.4 million related to the transition
toward new products, as well as the prior year hurricane property insurance gain of $5.0 million.

Consolidated Product Sales

Total product sales revenues and gross profit were down from the prior year primarily due to fewer machine
shipments across most markets. Gross margin improvements were due to a favorable product and jurisdictional
mix, including a greater contribution from non-machine sales. IGT increased systems installations from the prior
year by 100, with over 820 systems installed worldwide as of September 30, 2008. Product sales margins are
expected to continue to fluctuate depending on the geographic mix and types of products sold.
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Fiscal 2007 vs Fiscal 2006

Consolidated total revenue and gross profitimprovements far fiscal 2007 were predominantly due to growth in
gaming operations. Fiscal 2007 revenues included a favorable foreign currency exchange rate impact of $23.0
million. Total gross profit also benefited from a more favorable product sales mix. Total gross margin increases
were the combined result of a greater mix of gaming operations, as well as margin improvements in gaming
operations and product sales discussed below.

Significant items affecting comparability included:
& fiscal 2007 gains of $17.0 million from our Guif Coast hurricane insurance settlement and $5.8 million
from the sale of a company airplane
& fiscal 2006 R&D charges of $11.3 million related to the buyout of a third-party development contract

Consolidated Gaming Operations

Improved revenues and gross profit were primarily the result of growth in our installed base of recurring
revenue machines. The most significant year-over-year unit growth was in Mexico, Oklahoma, Florida, and New
York.

Gross margin improvements were mainly due to shifts in the composition of our installed base toward a lesser
share of WAP units, reduced jackpot expense due to variations in slot play, and a growing population of stand-
alone lease and CDS units. Due to the absence of jackpot expense, stand-alone and CDS units contributed to
higher margins despite generaily lower revenues and gross profit per unit.

Consolidated Product Sales

Total product sales revenues were comparable to fiscal 2006 with North America declines offset by
international sales growth, primarily in Japan. Gross profit and margin improvement was due to a greater mix of
higher margin non-machine revenues, mostly from machine systems sales which increased 14% over the prior
year.

Operating Expenses
Favorable {Unfavorable)

_ 2008 2007 2006 08 vs 07 07 vs 06
(/n miliions)
Selling, general and administrative § 460.1 $ 39879 $ 3755 $ (62.2) -16% $ (224) -6%
Research and development 223.0 202.2 188.5 {20.8) -10% (13.7) 7%
Depreciation and amortization 76.7 804 82.6 3.7 5% 2.2 3%
Total $ 759.8 $ 6805 $ 646.6 $ (79.3) -12% $ (339 5%
Percent of revenues 30% 26% 26%
Fiscal 2008 vs Fiscal 2007

Fiscal 2008 SG&A increases were attributable to current year increases in:
FY bad debt provisions of $15.0 million related to credit concerns on certain receivables
& staffing cost increases of $10.1 million
& higher legal and compliance fees of $9.9 million

In addition, comparability of current year SG&A was negatively affected by the fiscal 2007 gains of $12.0 mitlion
from Gulf Coast hurricane business interruption insurance settlement and $5.8 million from the sale of a
company airplane. Our investment in R&D increased in fiscal 2008 primarily due to additional staffing costs of
$17.0 million related to our continuing development of new technology and products, especially recent
networked gaming initiatives.

We are conducting a company-wide strategic review to maximize efficiency and align our operating expenses
with our current and forecasted business outlook. As part of this effort, we expect to reduce our workforce and
begin to realize lower operating expenses in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. As a result of the staffing
reductions we expect to incur additional charges ranging from $16.0 million to $21.0 million during the first
quarter of fiscal 2009.
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Fiscal 2007 vs Fiscal 2006

Fiscal 2007 SG&A increases over fiscal 2006 were attributable to additional staffing costs of $32.8 million in
support of business growth initiatives and higher professional fees of $15.0 million, largely related to IP
protection and regulatory compliance.

These increases in SG&A were offset by:

'y Gulf Coast hurricane business interruption insurance gains of $12.0 million

A favorable bad debt provisions of $6.0 million due to improving trends in receivables quality and
collections

& 2 $5.8 million gain on the sale of a company airplane

R&D increased in fiscal 2007 primarily due to additional staffing costs of $19.0 million and higher costs for
licensing and parts related to our continuing devetopment of new technology and products. Fiscal 2006

included a charge of $11.3 million related to the buyout of a development contract, which partially offset the
2007 increases.

Other Income (Expense) and Taxes

Favorable {Unfavorable)
2008 2007 2006 08 vs 07 07 vs 06

(In miflions; * = not meaninglul)

Interest Income $§ 674 $§ 820 $ 654 $ (148) -18% $ 166 25%
WAP 32.2 371 28.8 49y -13% 83 29%
Other 35.2 449 36.6 97 -22% 83 23%

Interest Expense (100.1) (77.6) (50.8) (225) -29% (26.8) -53%
WAP {28.6) (31.3) (23.2) 27 9% (8.1) -35%
Other {71.5) (46.3) (27.6) {25.2) -54% (187) -68%

Other (35.8) 0.1 7.2 (359) * @7y

Total other income (expense) $ (685 ¢ 45 § 218 § (730} - $ (17.3 '

Income tax provision $ 2483 § 2066 § 2733 § 483 $ (23.3)

Tax rate 42 0% 36.9% 36.6% {5.2) pp (0.3) pp

WAP interest income and expense related to previous jackpot winners accrete at approximately the same rate.
WAP interest income also includes earnings on restricted cash and investments held for future winners.

The fluctuation in total other income (expense) for the current year was primarily attributable to:
» $28.6 million related to write-downs of our investments in CLS and PGIC
A higher interest expense resulting from increased borrowings under our credit facility
Y reduced interest income due to lower investment balances and interest rates

Fluctuations in our tax rate were partially due to changes in the geographical mix of annual taxable income. The
increase in our 2008 tax rate was also impacted by the adoption of FIN 48 and the inability to report a tax
benefit for the write-downs on our CLS and PGIC investments. While our future effective tax rates may continue
to be volatile due to changes in uncertain tax positions, we anticipate our 2009 tax rate will be lower than the
2008 rate primarily due to the closure of the 2000 and 2001 IRS audits in the first quarter of fiscal 2009, as well
as the retroactive extension of the R&D tax credit. See Note 17 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information about FIN 48 and Note 2 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information about the CLS and PGIC investments.

The fiscal 2007 decrease in other income was primarily attributable to higher interest costs on our 2.6%
Debentures issued in December 2006 and increased line of credit borrowings, partially offset by higher interest
income on receivables and investments. Qur NJ WAP VIE trusts also contributed to fluctuations in interest
income and interest expense, causing increases in fiscal 2007 due to reconsolidation following the

deconsoclidation in fiscal 2006. Note 2 of our Consolidated Financial Statements provides further information on
these trusts.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS - A Year Over Year Comparative Analysis

Operating income for each division reflects applicable operating expenses. See Note 18 of our Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional business segment information.

North America
Favorable {Unfavorable)
2008 2007 2006 08 vs 07 07 vs 06

(i millions except units)

Revenues $1,9124 $2,021.7 $1978.2 $(109.3) -5% $ 435 2%
Gaming operations 1,180.8 1,235.0 1,173.8 (54.2) 4% 61.2 5%
Product sales 7316 786.7 804.4 {55.1) -7% (17.7) -2%

Machines 432.2 4916 521.2 {(59.4)  -12% (29.6) 6%
Non-machine 299.4 2951 283.2 43 1% 119 4%

Gross profit $1,083.4 $1.1725  $11223  § (89.1) -8% $ 502 4%
(Gaming operations 688.7 740.7 681.1 (52.0) -7% 59.6 9%
Product sales 3947 431.8 441.2 (37.1) 9% (9.4) -2%

Gross margin 57% 58% 57% (Npp -2% 1pp 2%
Gaming operalions 58% 60% 58% 2)pp -3% 2 pp I%
Product sales 54% 55% 55% (Hhpp -2% -pp -

Units

Gaming operations installed base 47,300 49,000 42,600 (1,700 -3% 6,400 15%
Fixed 6,800 6,500 5,400 300 5% 1,100 20%
Variable 40,500 42,500 37,200 {2,000) -5% 5,300 14%
Machines sold 35,000 43,000 51,100 (8,000) -18% (8,100) -16%
Operating income $ 6145 § 7697 § 7443  5(155.2)  -20% $ 254 3%

Operating margin 32% 38% 38% (6) pp -16% -pp -

Fiscal 2008 vs Fiscal 2007

North America operating results during the current year were unfavorably affected by lower gaming cperations
play levels and interest rate declines in the midst of the current economic downturn, as well as continued
softness in replacement demand. Operating income was also down compared 1o the prior year periods due to
higher operating expenses as previously discussed.

North America Gaming Operations

Gaming operaticns revenues and gross profit declined from the prior year periods due to lower play levels, as
well as the continued shift in our installed base. Declines in our installed base related to reductions in the
Florida and California Class Il markets as they transitioned to Class Ill for-sale games were partially offset by
increases in Alabama.

With approximately 85% of our installed base made up of variable fee units, a significant portion of our
revenues fluctuate directly with casing play levels. Thus, the declines in gaming revenue reported for most US
jurisdictions adversely affected our gaming operations during the year. In addition, our increasing mix of stand-
alone lease and CDS units compared to WAP units also contributed to the decline in revenues. These non-
WAP units generally provide lower revenues and gross profit mainly because they carry no IGT sponsored
jackpots.

Gaming operations gross profit and margin also declined due to the impact of lower interest rates on jackpot
expense, technological obsolescence charges of $5.3 million, and the prior year gain of $5.0 million from
hurricane property insurance.

Jackpot expense was negatively impacted compared to fiscal 2007 by $25.3 million due to declining interest
rates. Interest rates declined througheut fiscal 2008, with the most significant impact resulting from the 200 bps
decline in the prime rate during the second quarter. The additional cost due to interest rates was more than
offset by reduced play levels, fewer WAP units, and variations in slot play, for a net decrease to jackpot
expense of $4.7 million compared to last year.

See MDA-CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES—Jackpot Liabilities and Expenses for additional details
regarding the factors affecting jackpot expense.
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North America Product Sales

Product sales revenues and gross profit were down compared to fiscal 2007 primarily due to fewer units on low
replacement demand, partially offset by higher IP royalties. Machine revenues reflect an increase in the mix of
our premium-priced AVP®, which partially offset the effect of fewer units sold compared to the prior year. The
decline in gross margin is primarily attributable to the increased share of AVP®machines which provide higher
gross profit, but lower margins.

The continued decline in unit shipments is mainly attributable to low replacement demand. The current
economic conditions in North America have exacerbated the slump in demand as declining gaming revenues
have caused gaming operators to defer capital spending on replacement machines, as well as new or
expanded properties. New unit shipments were 19,000 during fiscal 2008 compared to 20,500 in the prior year.
Replacement sales consisted of 16,000 units during the current year compared to 22,500 in fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2007 vs Fiscal 2006

North America operating results improved in fiscal 2007 mainly due to growth in the installed base of recurring
revenue games, offsetting fewer machine sales.

North America Gaming Operations

Improvements in North America gaming operations revenues and gross profit were primarily the result of
installed base growth. The most significant incremental placements occurred in Oklahoma, Florida, and New
York.

Gaming operations gross margins in North America also improved during fiscal 2007 due to lower WAP jackpot
expense and changes in the installed base mix toward more non-WAP units. Although these non-WAP units
typically provide lower revenues and gross profit per unit, they provided higher margins due to the absence of
jackpot expense. Jackpot expense decreased $20.2 million due to a decline of $23.9 million in slot play
variations and to a lesser extent fewer WAP units. These decreases were partially offset by interest rate
movements. Gross profit and margin during fiscal 2007 also benefited from the $5.0 million hurricane property
insurance gain.

North America Product Sales

Product sales declined in fiscal 2007 as a result of fewer unit sales, partially offset by higher pricing, including
AVP®machines, and a greater mix of higher margin non-machine sales. The product mix included higher
contributions from our AVP®models, as well as increased gaming systems and license fees. Lower unit sales
resulted mainly from reduced demand following the cashless replacement cycle coupled with the anticipation of
new technology offerings related to server-based gaming. Shipments included replacement units of 22,500 in
fiscal 2007 versus 36,200 units in fiscal 2006, and 20,500 new units in fiscal 2007 compared to 14,900 in the
prior year.
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Intemnational

Favorable (Unfavorable) ;
2008 2007 2006 08 vs 07 07 vs 08 ‘

{In millions except units)

Revenues $§ 6162 § 5997 § 5335 $ 165 3% $ 66.2 12%
Gaming operations 157.1 126.2 716 309 24% 48.6 63%
Product sales 459.1 4735 455.9 (14.4) -3% 17.6 4%

Machines 3626 3844 375.6 (21.8) 6% 88 2%
Non-machine 96.5 891 80.3 74 8% 88 1%

Gross profit $ 3357 $ 3083 $ 2494 § 274 9% $ 589 24%
Gaming operations 894 823 48.9 7.1 9% 334 68%
Product sales 246.3 226.0 2005 20.3 9% 25.5 13%

Gross margin 54% 51% 47% 3 pp 6% 4 pp 9%
Gaming operations 57% 65% 63% (8) pp -12% 2pp 3%
Product sales 54% 48% 44% 6 pp 13% 4 pp 9%

Units

Gaming operations installed base "’ 13,200 11,100 8,600 2,100 19% 2,500 29%
Fixed 8,900 8,000 6,600 900 1% 1,400 21%
Variable 4,300 3,100 2,000 1,200 3%% 1,100 55%
Machines sold 37,700 62,900 60,900 (25,200) -40% 2,000 3%
Operating income $ 1676 $ 1598 $ 1112 § 78 5% $ 486 44%

Qperating margin 27% 27% 21% -pp - 6 pp 29%

 Installed base has been revised to reflect additional units previously excluded based on a change in management's installed
base ctiteria, increasing fiscal years 2008 and 2007 by 900 units and fiscal 2006 by 1,600 units. Gaming operations revenues
and gress profit were not affected by this adjustment,

Fiscal 2008 vs Fiscal 2007

International operating results improved during fiscal 2008 as favorable foreign currency rates, continued
growth in gaming operations and a favorable mix of product sales offset declines in sales to Japan and the UK.
Current year revenues benefited $34.4 million from favorable foreign currency exchange rates, Total gross
margin increased as improvements in product sales outweighed gaming operations declines. Operating income
for the current year also included higher operating expenses, primarily bad debt provisions.

Improvements in gaming operations revenues and gross profit during the current year were mainly due to
increased internet gaming and other non-installed base revenues, including leased equipment, casinc-owned
units and Japan rentals. Improved performance in Latin America and a higher average installed base also
contributed to increased revenues. Installed base growth was mainly in the UK and included 800 units from the
fourth quarter acquisition of Cyberview. Fiscal 2008 gaming operations gross profit and margins were
negatively impacted by $5.1 million in technological obsolescence charges; gross margin was also down due to
the additional contribution from new, lower-margin internet gaming products, Japan rentats and a shift to lower-
margin units in the UK.

~ Product sales revenues were down during the current year due to fewer unit shipments, primarily in Japan.
During fiscal 2008, we realized improvements in product sales gross profit compared to the prior year as our
higher-priced, higher-margin jurisdictions more than offset declines from the lower-priced, lower-margin
markets of Japan and the UK. Additionally, non-machine sales increased compared to fiscal 2007 with
increased sales of pants and systems. Margin improvement was attributable mainly to the favorable mix of non-
machine sales, as well as fewer low margin units sold in Japan.

Fiscal 2007 vs Fiscal 2006

International division improvements during fiscal 2007 were due to growth in gaming operations, as well as
product sales. Fiscal 2007 revenues included a favorable foreign currency exchange rate impact of $21.1
million.

Higher gaming operations revenues and gross profit resulted from a higher international installed base of
recurring revenue games. Year-over-year placement increases were most significant in Mexico, with an
installed base of 7,500 CDS units at September 30, 2007 compared to 5,100 at September 30, 2006.
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Growth in fiscal 2007 product sales revenues and gross profit was primarily due to additional machines sold in
Japan and Asia, as well as increased systems sales and conversions, partially offset by fewer UK machine
sales. We sold an additional 16,000 machines in Japan related to the market transition to Reg-5 gaming, which
was required by September 30, 2007. Gross profit also improved due to reduced costs, most significantly in
Europe.

Product sales gross margin during fiscal 2007 improved because of increased contributions from higher
yielding markets, mostly Europe, offsetting lower margin sales in Japan.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Sources of Liquidity

At September 30, 2008, our principal sources of liquidity were cash and equivalents (including restricted cashy},
cash from operations, and the $1.2 billion available on our Senior Credit Facility. Other sources of capital
include, but are not limited to, the issuance of public or private placement debt, foreign credit facilities and the
issuance of equity securities. However, due to current unfavorable conditions in the credit and capital markets,
there can be no assurance that these additional sources of capital will be available to us on terms that are
acceptable to us or at all. Based on past performance and current expectations, we believe the combination of
these resources will satisfy our working capital needs, jackpot liabilities, capital expenditures, and other liquidity
requirements associated with our existing operations for the foreseeable future.

Restricted cash and investments, as well as jackpot annuity investments, are amounts available only for
funding jackpot winner payments. As of September 30, 2008, we have sufficient cash and investments,
inclusive of restricted amounts, to satisfy our jackpot liabilities. Unrestricted cash and equivalents and
marketabte securities are summarized below.

Increase
September 30, 2008 2007 {Decrease)
(in millions)
Cash and equivalents $ 2664 $ 2613 $ 5.1
Short-term investment securities - 51.3 (51.3)
Total $ 2664 $ 3126 $ (46.2)

The decrease in total unrestricted cash and investments at September 30, 2008 was primarily related to
increased restricted cash needs and the reclassification of our remaining ARS investments to non-current.

At September 30, 2008, we held long-term investment securities totaling $19.6 million which consisted of AAA
rated ARS, collateralized by student loans guaranteed by the US government. As a result of auction failures in
early 2008, these investments are not currently trading and have no readily determinable market value. There
has been no interruption in interest receipts on these investments and we have the ability to hold them until the
market recovers. Additionally, in November 2008, we accepted ARS Rights offered by our broker entitling us to
sell our ARS at par plus accrued interest during the exercise period from June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012.
Based on our assessment of fair value, we have recorded a temporary impairment of $2.0 million to other
comprehensive income. See Note 6 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about
our ARS.

Working capital increased to $733.4 million at September 30, 2008 from $595.5 million at September 30, 2007,
primarily due to an increase in inventory related to our newly released machine models and additional current
deferred tax assets.

Cash Flows Summary

Favorable (Unfavorable)

2008 2007 2006 08 vs 07 07 vs 06
(i millions)
Operations $ 4865 3§ 8215 $§ 6241 $ (330 $ 1974
Investing {365.7) (296.7) (234.0) (69.0) 62.7)
Financing (115.2) (656.5) {386.9) 4413 (169.6)
Effects of exchange rates {0.5) {1.6) 25 1.1 {4.1)
Net Change $ 5.1 $ (333 § 5.7 $ 384 $  (39.0)
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Opersting Cash Flows

Reduced operating cash flows during fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 were primarily the result of lower net
income, increased inventories, additional prepayments of $80.0 million to secure long-term licensing rights, and
increases in receivables.

The increase in inventory resulted in a $83.0 million reduction to operating cash flows during fiscal 2008.
inventory turns for the trailing twelve months ended September 30, 2008 decreased to 2.5 versus 4.2 at
September 30, 2007, impacted mostly by inventory build-up related to the release of newer and more costly
platforms and cabinets.

The increase in operating receivables resulted in a reduction to fiscal 2008 operating cash flows of $76.8
million. Average days sales outstanding for the trailing twelve months at September 30, 2008 increased to 98
days from 79 days in fiscal 2007, primarily due to the issuance of additional long-term customer contracts and
loan financing.

Fiscal 2007 operating cash flows improved over fiscal 2006 primarily due to lower pre-payments for licensing
rights and reduced inventory levels, as well as improved net income.

Cash flows related to jackpot liabilities fluctuate based on the timing of jackpots and winner payments, volume
of play, and market variations in applicable interest rates as described in Note 1 of our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Investing Casl Flows

During fiscal 2008, we liquidated our restricted ARS and converted the proceeds into restricted cash resulting in
higher cash used for investing activities. Cash used for investing also increased during the current year due to
lower proceeds from the sale of investment securities, partially offset by a decline in capital expenditures.

Reduced capital expenditures, summarized below, during fisca! 2008 were primarily attributable to the
completion of our Las Vegas campus construction project and the purchase of a corporate airplane in fiscal
2007. Higher capital expenditures in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 were related to the Las Vegas campus
construction and the corperate airplane purchase.

Increase (Decrease)
Capital Expenditures 2008 2007 2006 08 vs 07 07 vs 06
{in mitlions)
Property, plant and equipment $ 925 § 1349 $ 831 $ @486 $ 510
Gaming operations equipment 190.6 1944 202.9 (3.8) (8.5)
Intellectual property 15.1 15.8 24.5 (0.7) (8.7)
Total capital expenditures § 2982 $ 343 § 3105 $ (46.1) % 338

During the year, we made significant investments in gaming technologies with payments of:
A $71.9 million, net of cash acquired, to purchase substantially all of the assets and licensing rights to
certain IP of Cyberview, a UK based provider of server-based downloadable gaming systems
'y $29.0 million for debt or equity interests in PGIC and WDG
&  $9.4 million, net of cash acquired, to purchase the UK based mobile gaming firm Million-2-1

Investing cash used in fiscal 2007 included investments in CLS of $105.6 million, as well as the business
acquisitions of DigiDeal for $18.8 million and VCAT for $18.4 million, net of cash acquired. Fiscal 2006 included
an equity investment of $56.0 million in WDG.

Financing Cash Flows

The reduction in cash used for financing during the current year was primarily due to less cash used for share
repurchases compared to fiscal 2007, as well as greater net debt proceeds with increased line of credit
borrowings on our senior credit facility.

Increased net cash used for financing activities in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to additional share repurchases
compared to fiscal 2006. Fiscal 2006 included proceeds from the cash settiement of a SSR prepaid in fiscal
2005. Net proceeds from our cenvertible debt refinancing and senior credit facility borrowings partially offset
additional share repurchases in fiscal 2007.
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Share Repurchases

We repurchase IGT common stock to return value to shareholders and reduce outstanding share dilution. We
use open market or privately negotiated transactions, such as accelerated share repurchases and structured
share repurchases, or Rule 10b5-1 trading plans, depending on market conditions and other factors to achieve
timing, cost, and volume objectives.

Common Stock Repurchases 2008 2007 2006
)

Shares 255 28.2 1.7
Aggregate cost $ 7797 $1,1185 § 426.7

Due to the current instability of global credit markets, our future share repurchase levels will be balanced with
maintaining sufficient liquidity to provide flexibility in this volatile environment. Qur remaining repurchase
authorization totaled 7.7 million shares as of November 24, 2008.

Credit Facilities and Indebtedness (See Note 11 of our Consolidated Financial Statements})

During fiscal 2008, we increased the outstanding balance on our revolving lines of credit by $754.8 million,
largely for the purpose of repurchasing IGT common stock. Borrowings on our credit facilities totaled $1.4 billion
at September 30, 2008 with additional availability of $1.2 biltion on our senior credit facility, which expires in
December 2010, and $63.8 million on foreign credit facilities.

On December 20, 2006, we issued $900.0 million principal amount of 2.6% Convertible Debentures due 2036.
The debentures pay interest semi-annually in June and December. Due to the holders’ put right to require IGT
to redeem the Debentures on December 15, 2009, they will be reclassified to current liabilities in the first
quarter of fiscal 2009.

Given current market conditions and the recent trading price of our common stock, we believe it is likely that
holders will exercise this put right and we may be required to redeem the outstanding Debentures during the
first quarter of fiscal 2010. We believe our cash on hand, operating cash flows and remaining capacity on our
senior credit facility will provide the necessary capital if we are required to redeem the Debentures. In addition,
we believe our credit rating, balance sheet, and operations should facilitate our ability to access additional
capital through the credit markets, if needed. Our ability to access, if needed, the credit markets on terms
acceptable or at all will be subject to market conditions existing at that time.

We may use open market, privately negotiated, or structured transactions to repurchase our 2.6% Debentures
depending on market conditions and other factors. Between September 30, 2008 and November 24, 2008, we
repurchased 70,600 outstanding Debentures with a $1,000 par value.

On December 26, 2006, we called our outstanding 1.75% Debentures for redemption. The call gave holders the
right to convert their Debentures before January 10, 2007 and receive aggregate consideration comprised of
shares and cash under the terms of the applicable indentures. In conjunction with the redemption and related
conversions, we paid holders $612.7 million and issued 7.3 million shares in fiscal 2007.

Financial Condition

Increase
September 30, 2008 2007 (Decrease)
(in millions}
Assels $ 45574 $ 41675 $ 3899
Liabilities 3,648.4 2,714.8 §33.6
Stockholders' equity 909.0 1,452.7 (543.7)

Assets increased primarily due to higher receivables on current period sales and increased development
financing, additional licensing arrangements, and a build-up of inventory related to the release of our new
machine models. Liabilities increased primarily as a result of additional net borrowings discussed above and
the adoption of FIN 48. See Note 17 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about
the adoption of FIN 438.

Stockholders’ equity decreased during fiscal 2008 due to share repurchases, dividends paid and the adoption
of FIN 48, partially offset by current period earnings and APIC related to employee stock plans. Although total
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stockholders’ equity was unaffected by the retirement of 400.0 million treasury shares in December 2007, it
decreased treasury stock by $3.7 billion, APIC by $0.9 billion and retained earnings by $2.8 billion,

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments ("

The following table summarizes our minimum contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of
September 30, 2008 with the expected effect on our future liquidity and cash flows.

el

2

@

4

(o)

16}

7

Payments due by fiscal years
2010 to 201210 2014 and

_ Total 2009 2011 2013 thereafter
{in miffions)
Debt @ $22631 $ 160 $22470 $ - § -
Interest and fees on debt @ 140.5 73.3 67.2 - -
Letters of credit @ 41 41 - - -
Previous and future winner payments 836.4 189.7 147.2 121.7 377.8
Licenses, royalties & IP rights 81.8 46.4 34.1 0.7 0.5
Employment contracts 12.2 6.1 6.1 - -
Operating leases 43.2 13.2 20.1 8.7 1.2
Open purchase orders 155.8 154.9 0.9 - -
IGT Synergy Holding Ltd. ® 135 6.2 7.3 - -
Acquisition commitments 13.8 8.0 5.8 - -
Unfunded loans " 116.0 103.8 12.2 - -
Totals $3,6804 $ 6217 $2548.0 $ 1311 $ 3796

We have net liabilities related to unrecognized tax benefits of $138.8 million, including interest and penalties, which are
excluded from the table above as we canno! reasonably estimate the timing of cash settlements with taxing authorities. We
expect these liabilities lo decline by $25.8 million with cash settlement of up to $19.0 million, including interest, within the next
welva months due to closure of US federal income tax audits for the periods 2000 and 2001. See Note 17 of our Consolidated
Financial Statements related to unrecognized lax benefils.

Credit facility interes! resets perodically and is estimated using current rates. Our letters of cradit are issued under our credit
facility line of credit to insure our payment to certain vendors and govemmenial agencies. Holders of our Debentures have the
night to require IGT to redeem the Debentures for cash at 100% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, on December 15, 2009, 2011, 2016, 2021, 2026 and 2031. Additional interest expense on the Debentures could tolal
$632.7 million if held to full maturity. See Note 11 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information related to
long-term debt.

Winner payments represent amounts payable to jackpot winners. The timing and amount of expected future winner payments
are estimated based on historical patterns of winners' lump sum payment elections. We maintain cash and investments at
sufficient levels to fund our jackpot liabilities and winner payments. See Notes 1 and 13 of our Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information related to jackpot liabilities.

Unconditional amounts payable for licenses, royalties, and IF were recorded as liabilities at September 30, 2008. Royaslties
contingent on future game sales or placements are not included in the table above. See Note 12 of our Consolidated Financial
Slaterents for additional information regarding operaling leases.

IGT Synergy Holding Litd., represents our unconditional commitment to contribute capital in our investment in the
unconsolidated affiliate. See Note 2 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information related to our joint
venttire with CLS.

ln connection with our acquisition of M-2-1 in June 2008, we committed to pay eam-out consideration up to a maximum of
$13.8 million, based on current exchange rates, payabie through fiscal 2011 contingent upon M-2- 1 meeting certain financial
targets. See Note 5 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about this acquisition.

Unfunded loans represent amounts yet to fund under development financing arrangements with select customers to finance
new or expanding gaming faciities. See Note 1 and 9 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
regarding facility notes.

Amangements With Off-Balance Sheet Risks

In the normal course of business, we are a party 1o financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk, such as
performance bonds and other guarantees not reftected in our balance sheet. We may provide indemnifications
of varying scope and terms to customers, vendors, lessors, business partners and other parties with respect to
certain matters, including but not limited to, tosses arising:

4« outof our breach of agreements with those parties
'y from services to be provided by us
Fy from IP infringement claims made by third parties
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Additionally, we have agreements with our directors and certain officers that require us, among other things, to
indemnify them against certain liabilities that may arise by reascn of their status or service as directors or
officers. We have also agreed to indemnify certain former officers and directors of acquired companies. We
maintain director and officer insurance, which may cover our liabilities arising from these indemnification
obligations in certain circumstances.

It is not possible to determine the maximum potential obligations under these indemnification undertakings due
to the unigue facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement. Such indemnification
undertakings may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. Historically, we have not incurred material costs
related to indemnification obligations.

We do not expect any material losses from, nor are we dependent on off-balance sheet arrangements to fund
our operations. We describe additional off-balance sheet arrangements in Note 16 of our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

tem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We use derivative financial instruments to minimize our market risk exposure resulting from fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The primary business objective of our hedging program, as defined
in our corporate risk management policy, is to minimize the impact of transaction, remeasurement, and
specified economic exposures to our net income and earnings per share. The counterparties to these
instruments are major commercial banks. We are not party to leveraged derivatives and do not hold or issue
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Foreign Currency Risk

We routinely use forward exchange contracts to hedge our net exposures, by currency, related to our monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctional foreign currencies. In addition, from time to time, we may
enter into forward exchange contracts to establish with certainty the US dollar amount of future firm
commitments denominated in a foreign currency.

Hedging

Excluding our investment in CLS discussed below, our net foreign currency exposure related to our monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctional currency totaled $51.4 million at September 30, 2008 and
$73.9 million at September 30, 2007. The notiona! amount of foreign currency contracts hedging this exposure
totaled $43.4 million at September 30, 2008 and $63.6 million at September 30, 2007.

Given our foreign exchange position, a 10% adverse change in foreign exchange rates upon which these
foreign exchange contracts are based would result in exchange gains and losses. Generally, these exchange
gains and losses should be offset by exchange gains and losses on the underlying net monetary exposures for
which the contracts are designated as hedges. We do not expect material exchange rate gains or losses from
unhedged foreign currency exposures.

Translation

As currency rates change, translation of our foreign currency functional businesses into US dollars affects year-
over-year comparability of equity. We do not generally hedge translation risks because cash flows from our
international operations are generally reinvested locally. Changes in the currency exchange rates that would
have the largest impact on translating our international net assets include the British pound, Australian doliar,
Japanese yen, Euro, South African rand, and Canadian dollar. We estimate that a 10% change in foreign
exchange rates would have impacted reported equity by approximately $24.4 million at September 30, 2008
versus $21.3 million at September 30, 2007. This sensitivity analysis disregards the possibility that rates can
move in opposite directions and that gains from one area may or may not be offset by losses from another area.

Interest Rate Risk

We define interest rate risk as the potential change in earnings resulting from a hypothetical 100 bps adverse
change in applicable interest rates.

Costs to fund jackpot liabilities

Fluctuations in prime, treasury and agency rates due to changes in market and other economic conditions
directly impact our costs to fund jackpots, and therefore our gross profit in gaming operations. If interest rates
decline, our costs increase, and correspondingly our gross profit declines. We estimate that a hypothetical
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decline of 100 bps in interest rates would have reduced our gross profit by approximately $14.4 million in fiscal
2008 and $15.0 million in fiscal 2007 due to corresponding increases in jackpot expense. Fiscal 2008 gross
profit and margin were adversely affected by unfavorable interest rate impacts on jackpot expense totaling
$25.3 million. We do not currently manage this exposure with derivative financial instruments,

Senior Credit Facility

Fluctuations in LIBOR due to changes in market and other economic conditions directly impact our interest
expense on our senior credit facility. We estimate that a hypothetical increase of 100 bps in interest rates on
amounts outstanding would have increased our interest expense by approximately $13.5 million in fiscal 2008
and $6.0 million in fiscal 2007. We do not currently manage this exposure with derivative financial instruments.
See Note 11 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about our senior credit facility.

Convertible Debentures

The fair value of our Debentures is affected by changes in the price of IGT stock and changes in interest rates.
Typically, the fair value of our Debeniures increases and decreases directionally with like movements in our
stock price. In general, the fair value of an investment in a fixed interest rate debt instrument increases as
interest rates fall and decreases as interest rates rise. The stock price and interest rate changes impact the fair
value of our Debentures, however, these changes had no material effect on our financial position, cash flows or
results of operations as of September 30, 2008.

We estimate the fair value of our 2.6% Debentures at September 30, 2008 totaled $846.0 million versus $895.5
million at September 30, 2007. See Note 11 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
about our 2.6% Debentures and the redemption of our 1.75% Debentures.

Investment in CLS

The value of our CLS investments are affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates of the Hong
Kong dollar and the trading price of CLS stock. The estimated fair value of our equity investment in CLS stock
declined to $12.2 million and we recorded a loss of $21.4 million at September 30, 2008. The estimated fair
value was $43.4 million at September 30, 2007.

Additionally, our investment in the CLS 4% convertible note is subject to interest rate risk and volatility in CLS
stock prices. Generally, the fair value of fixed-rate instrumenits increases as interest rates fall and decreases as
interest rates rise. The fair value of convertible notes increases as stock price volatility increases. The CLS note
had an estimated fair value of $72.4 million at September 30, 2008 versus $78.0 million at September 30, 2007.
We are using 5-year forward contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $49.9 million at September 30,
2008 to mitigate foreign currency risk on approximately 70% of the note. See Note 2 of our Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information about our CLS investments.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Stockholders and Board of Directors
International Game Technology
Reno, Nevada:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of International Game Technology and subsidiaries
{the “Company”) as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2008. We have also audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of

September 30, 2008, based on criteria established in /nternal Controf — integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible
for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
and an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of the financial statements included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of intermal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepled accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thal transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorale.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2008, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in al!
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2008, based on the criteria
established in /internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

As discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, on October 1, 2007, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, which changed its method of accounting for income tax
uncertainty. As discussed in Notes 1 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, on October 1, 2005, the
Company adopted SFAS 123R, Share-Based Payment, which changed its method of accounling for share-based
compensation.

/st DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Costa Mesa, California
November 25, 2008

37



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
{In miflions, excep! per share smounis)
Revenues
Gaming operations $ 1,337.9 $ 1,361.2 $ 12514
Product sales 1,190.7 1,260.2 1,260.3
Total revenues 2,528.6 2,621.4 2511.7
Costs and operating expenses
Cost of gaming operations 559.8 538.2 5214
Cost of product sales 549.7 602.4 618.6
Selling, general and administrative 460.1 397.8 375.5
Research and development 2230 202.2 188.5
Depreciation and amortization 76.7 80.4 82.6
Total costs and operating expenses 1,869.3 1,821.1 1,786.6
QOperating income 659.3 800.3 725.1
Other income (expense)
Interest income 67.4 820 654
Interest expense {100.1) (77.6) (50.8)
Other (35.8) 0.1 7.2
Total other income (expense) (68.5) 4.5 21.8
Income before tax 590.8 804.8 746.9
Income tax provision 248.3 296.6 273.3
Netincome $ 3425 $ 5082 $ 4736
Basic eamings per share $1.11 $1.54 $1.41
Diluted eamnings per share $1.10 $1.51 $1.34
Cash dividends declared per share $0.565 $0.530 $0.505
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic 308.0 330.1 336.8
Diluted 3104 336.1 355.8
See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

. September 30, 2008 2007
: in miuiions, except par vaiue)
' Assets
Current assets
' Cash and equivalenls $ 2664 $ 2613
Investment securities - 51.3
Restricted cash and investments 108.0 88.1
, Accounts receivable, net 436.8 4121
| Current maturities of notes and contracts receivable, net 93.5 91.0
! Inventories 218.3 144.8
i Jackpot annuity investments 67.5 66.5
Deferred income taxes 115.8 58.2
Prepaid expenses and other 163.8 113.7
Total current assets 1,4701 1,287.0
Notes and contracts receivable, net 148.2 63.6
Property, plant and equipment, net 590.9 567.4
Jackpot annuity investments 4234 441.5
Intangible assets, net 2489 2455
Goodwill 1,158.5 1,116.6
Deferred income taxes 136.9 150.6
Other assets 380.5 295.3
$ 45574 $ 41675
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Current maturities of notes payable $ 16.0 $ 586
| Accounts payabie 105.7 1211
| Jackpot liabilities 189.7 170.7
‘ Accrued income taxes 15.3 49.5
Dividends payable 429 444
Accrued employee benefits 64.7 816
Other accrued liabilities 302.4 218.6
Total current liabilities 736.7 691.5
Notes payable, net of current maturities 2,247.1 1,503.0
Non-current jackpot liabilities 461.0 4724
QOther liabilities 203.6 479
3,648.4 2,714.8
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock: $.00015625 par value; 1,280.0 shares authorized,
334.9 and 731.4 issued; 294.7 and 316.9 outstanding 0.1 01
Additional paid-in capital 1,262.0 2,040.3
Treasury stock at cost; 40.2 and 414.5 shares (798.5) (3,722.1)
Retained eamings 443.5 3,108.4
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1.9 26.0
909.0 1,452.7
$ 45574 $ 4,1675

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

See accompanying notes
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Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
T rons]
Operations
Net income 3425 $ 508.2 $§ 4738
Adjustments:
Depreciation, amortization, and asset charges 286.0 265.5 2354
Discounts and deferred issuance costs 53 10.5 14.7
Share-based compensation 38.4 35.7 37.0
Bad debt provisions 9.0 (6.0) {0.5)
Inventory obsolescence 22.6 101 19.5
(Gain) loss on fixed assets (21.0} (6.5) (2.4)
Loss on investments 28.6 - -
Property insurance gains - (5.0) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding
acquisitions and VIE consolidations/deconsolidations:
Receivables (76.8) {(22.8) {44.5)
Inventories (83.0) 232 (21.3}
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3.0) 36.6 214
Jackpot liabilities {22.3) 47.2) (49.4)
Income taxes, net of employee stock plans 237 10.8 13.6
Excess tax benefits from employee stock plans (15.1) (17.2) (33.6)
Other current assets (8.4) 3.2 (24.9)
Other non-current assets (40.0) 224 (14.5)
Cash from operations 486.5 821.5 624.1
Investing
Capital expenditures (298.2) (344.3) {(310.5)
Investment securities, net 874 147.6 74.8
Jackpot annuity investments, net 457 294 27.8
Changes in restricted cash (77.3) 124 17.6
Loans receivable cash advanced (63.6) (37.5) (3.9
Loans receivable payments received 20.5 18.8 11.2
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates (30.0) (105.6) {56.0)
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (84.3) {37.2) (3.9
Proceeds from assets sold M1 13.7 8.9
Property insurance proceeds - 6.0 -
Cash from investing {365.7) {296.7) {234.0)
Financing
Debt repayments (328.3) (792.7) (34.4)
Debt proceeds 1,082.4 1,463.1 46.8
Debt issuance costs - (17.5) (7.6)
Employee stock plan proceeds 70.9 65.5 514
Excess tax benefits from employee stock plans 15.1 17.2 33.6
Dividends paid (175.6) (173.8) (168.9)
Share repurchases (779.7) (1,118.3) (426.7)
Structured share repurchase transactions - - 78.9
Cash from financing (115.2) {556.5) {386.9)
Foreign exchange rates effect on cash (0.5) {1.6) 2.5
Net change in cash and equivalents 5.1 {(33.3) 5.7
Beginning cash and equivalents 261.3 294.6 288.9
Ending cash and equivalents 266.4 $ 2613 $ 2946




Supplemental Cash Flows Information

“Depreciation, amortization, and asset charges” reflected in the cash flows statements are comprised of
amounts presented separately on the income statements, plus “depreciation, amontization, and asset charges”
included in cost of product sales and cost of gaming operations.

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
Investment secutities
Purchases $ (301 $ (838.5) $ (674.0)
Proceeds from sales 117.5 986.1 748.8
Net $ 87.4 $ 1476 3 74.8
Jackpot funding
Change in jackpot liabilities $ (22.3) $ (47.2) $ (494
Jackpot annuity purchases (21.4) (35.6) (18.3)
| Jackpot annuity proceeds 67.1 65.0 46.1
Net change in jackpot annuity investments 45.7 29.4 27.8
Net jackpot funding $ 234 $  (17.8) $ (21.6)
i Capital expenditures
Property, plant and equipment $  (92.5) $ (134.0) $  (831)
Gaming operations equipment (190.6) (194.4} {202.9)
Intellectual property (15.1) {15.8} {24.5)
Total $(298.2) $ (344.3) $ (310.5)
Payments
Interest $ 61.3 $ 267 $ 15.4
income taxes 2225 2876 262.3
Non-cash investing and financing items:
Accrued capital asset additions $ 8.4 $ 8.0 $ 20.0
Business acquisitions/purchase price adjustments
Fair value of assets $ 1169 $ 458 $ 2.8
Fair value of liahilities 326 8.6 (1.1)
See accomparnying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
in IONIS,
Common stock
Shares issued
Beginning shares 7314 7205 712.8
Employee stock plans 35 36 76
Debentures converted - 7.3 0.1
Treasury share retirement {400.0 - -
Ending shares 334.9 7314 720.5
Ending balance $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ 0.1
Additional paid-in capital
Beginning balance $ 20403 $§ 18642 $ 16236
Employee stock plans
Proceeds 709 65.5 914
Share-based compensation 384 35.7 37.0
Tax benefil 18.0 26.2 43.1
FAS 123R adoption adjustment - - (11.4)
Structured share repurchase transactions - - 78.9
Debentures converted - 487 16
Treasury share retirement (805.6) - -
Ending balance $ 1,262.0 $ 2,040.3 $ 1,864.2
Treasury stock
Beginning balance $ (3,7221) $ (2,603.6) $ (2176.9)
Treasury shares acquired (779.7) {1,118.5) {428.7)
RSA forfeitures (1.0) - -
Treasury share retirement 3,704.3 - -
Ending balance $_ (798.5) $ (3,722.1) $ (2,603.6)
Deferred compensation
Beginning balance $ - $ - $  (11.4)
FAS 123R adoption adjustment - - 11.4
Ending balance $ - $ - $ -
Retained eamings
Beginning balance $ 31084 $ 27749 $ 247110
Dividends declared {174.2) (174.7) (169.8)
Net income 3425 508.2 4736
FiN 48 adoption adjustment (34.5) - -
Treasury share retirement (2,798.7) - -
Ending balance $ 4435 $ 31084 § 27749
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Beginning balance $ 26.0 $ 6.4 $ (0.8)
Other comprehensive income {loss}) (24.1) 19.6 7.2
Ending balance $ 1.9 $ 26.0 5 5.4
Unrealized gains on securities $ {3.3) $ 39 $ -
Foreign currency translation 5.2 22,1 6.4
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income $ 3425 $ 5082 $ 4738
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized holding gain {loss) (10.2} 6.3 {0.2)
Income tax (provision) benefit 3.0 (2.4) -
Foreign currency translation (16.9) 15.7 79
Income tax {provision) benefit - - {0.5)
Total comprehensive income $ 3184 $ 5278 $ 4808
See accompanying notes
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with SEC requirements and include the
accounts of International Game Technology and all majority-owned or controlled subsidiaries and VIEs of which
we are the primary beneficiary. All appropriate inter-company accounts and transactions are eliminated.

Our fiscal year is reported on a 52/53-week period that ends on the Saturday nearest to September 30 each
year. Similarly, our quarters end on the Saturday nearest to the last day of the quarter end month. For
simplicity, all fiscal periods are presented as ending on the calendar month end. Accordingly, this repont
presents the following periods:

Fiscal Year End

Actual Presented as
September 27, 2008 September 30, 2008
September 29, 2007 September 30, 2007
September 30, 2006 September 30, 2006

Use of Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the US. Accordingly, we are required to make estimates, judgments, and assumptions that we believe are
reasonable based on our historical experience, contract terms, observance of known trends in our company
and the industry as a whole, and information available from other outside sources. Our estimates affect the
reported amounis of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Our most significant estimates include revenue recognition, goodwill, other intangible assets, prepaid
and deferred royalties, jackpot liabilities, inventory obsolescence, income taxes, share-based compensation,
and bad debt. We evaluate our estimates on a regular basis and actual results may differ from initial estimates.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenues when all of the following have been satisfied:
» persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists
- the price to the customer is fixed and determinable
» delivery has occurred and any acceptance terms have been fulfilled
» no significant contractual obligations remain
r' collection is reasonably assured

Revenues are reported net of incentive rebates, discounts, sales taxes, and other taxes of a similar nature.
Amounts billed prior to completing the earnings process are deferred until revenue recognition criteria are met.

Garming Operations
Gaming operations revenues are generated from providing customers with our proprietary electronic gaming
equipment and related network systems, licensing, and services under a variety of recurring revenue
arrangements, including:

A&  WAP

'y CDs

~ stand-alone participation and flat fee

- equipment leasing and rental

- online gaming solutions

WAP systems consist of linked stot machines located in multiple casino properties, connecting to an IGT central
computer system. WAP systems games differ from stand-alone units in that a progressive jackpot increases
with every wager until a player wins the top award combination. Casinos with IGT WAP machines pay a
percentage of the coin-in (amounts wagered) for IGT services related to the design, assembly, installation,
operation, maintenance, and marketing of the WAP systems, as well as funding and administration of the
progressive jackpot.

Revenues from CDS, stand-alone, and other equipment leasing or rentals are recognized based on a
percentage of the net win or on a daily/monthly fee or rental basis. Online gaming solutions encompass online
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casino gaming software and content licensing, as well as back office operational support services. All online
gaming solutions are provided under revenue sharing arrangements based on net gaming revenues.

Product Sales

Our product sales revenues are generated from the sale of electronic gaming equipment and network systems,
as well as licensing, services, and component parts. Cenain of our products are deemed to be software-related
for accounting purposes, for these products we apply the provisions of AICPA SOP 97-2, Software Revenue
Recognition, as amended. Time-hased licensing and maintenance fees are typically recognized ratably over
the term of the agreement.

Our credit sales terms are predominately 90 days or tess. We also grant extended payment terms under
contracts of sale secured by the related equipment sold, and are typically paid within those terms,

Multiple Element Arrangements

For arrangements with multiple deliverables, we apply the guidance from SOP 97-2 and/or EITF 00-21,
Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. Deliverables are divided into separate units of accounting if:
F each item has value to the customer on a stand-alone basis
&  we have objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items, evidenced by
VSOE for software-related items or third-party evidence of the price at which the undelivered item is
regularly sold on a standalone basis
&  delivery of any undelivered item is considered probable and substantially in our control

The majority of our multiple element contracts are for some combination of machines, network systems, license
fees, maintenance, training, and other services. The contracts separately state pricing for each deliverable
based on our standard price list (the price charged for the deliverable when it is sold separately). VSOE for
maintenance agreements is determined based on the stated annual renewal rates. The terms of performance,
cancellation, termination, or refunds in our multiple element contracts are similar to those for an individual
stand-alone deliverable.

Revenues for each deliverable are recognized when the revenue recognition criteria for that element have been
met. If we are unable o establish VSOE for any undelivered element, revenue is generally deferred until all
elements have been delivered or until VSOE can be determined. If we do not have VSOE for a delivered
element, the VSOE of the undelivered elements is deferred, and the remaining portion is allocated to the
delivered elements and recognized as revenue under the residual method.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of amounts received or billed after product is delivered or services are rendered, but
prior to meeting all of the requirements for revenue recognition. Complex systems and/or multiple element
contracts may take several months to complete and our deferred revenues may increase as our products
evolve toward a more systems-centric environment. Deferred revenue totaled $62.1 million at September 30,
2008, of which $60.9 million is included with other accrued liabilities and $1.2 million with other non-current
liabilities. Deferred revenue totaled $28.7 million at September 30, 2007, of which $25.5 million is included with
other accrued liabilities and $3.2 million with other non-current liabilities.

Jackpot Accounting

Jackpot Liabilities and Expense

We incur and accrue jackpot liabilities with every wager on a device connected to an IGT WAP system. A
portion of the casino fees paid to IGT is used for the funding and administration of WAP jackpot payments.
Jackpot expense (included in Cost of Gaming Operations) represents the estimated cost to fund jackpots and is
subject to changes in the discount or interest rates used to present value progressive jackpot liabilities due
future winners.

WAP systems jackpots are generally payable in equal installments over a 20 to 26 year period or immediately
in the case of our instant win progressive jackpots. Winners may elect to receive a lump sum payment for the
present value of the jackpot discounted at applicable interest rates in lieu of periodic annual instaliments.
Discount rates eligible for use in the lump sum payment calculation vary by jurisdiction and are impacted by
market forces and other economic conditions,

Jackpot liabilities are comprised of payments due previous winners, as well as amounts due future winners of
progressive jackpots not yet won. Previous winner liahilities for periodic payments are carried at the amortized
cost of jackpot annuity investments in gualifying US government or agency securities used to fund future
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periodic payments. Liabilities due future winners are recorded at the present value of the amount carried on
progressive jackpot meters for jackpots not yet won.

We estimate the present value of progressive jackpot liabilities due future winners using current market prime,
treasury, or agency rates weighted with historical lump sum payout election ratios. The most recent historical
patterns indicate that approximately 85% of winners will elect the lump sum payment option. Additionally, we
estimate current liabilities for jackpots not yet won based on historical experience with winner payment
elections, in conjunction with the theoretical projected number of jackpots.

Restricted Cash and Investmenis

We are required by gaming regulations to maintain sufficient reserves in restricted accounts to be used for the
purpose of funding payments to progressive jackpot winners. Restricted amounts are based primarily on the
jackpot meters displayed to siot players and vary by jurisdiction. Cornpliance with restricted cash and
investments requirements is reported to the gaming authorities in various jurisdictions.

Jackpot Annuity Investments

These investments represent discounted qualifying US treasury or agency securities purchased and held to
maturity to fund annual jackpot payments due previous winners. We have both the intent and ability to hold
these investments to maturity. Accordingly, these investments are stated at cost, plus interest accreted over the
term of the security. Cerain jurisdictions require regulatory approval for liquidation of these annuity
investments.

WAP Systems Interest (included in Other Income/Expense)

Interest income accretion on jackpot annuity investments used to fund periodic payments is offset by interest
expense accretion on related jackpot liabilities for payments due previous winners. The interest income and
expense accrete at approximately the same rate and vary depending on the amount of jackpots won and the
number of winners electing periodic payments. WAP systems annuity interest accretion totaled $28.6 million in
fiscal 2008, $31.3 million in fiscal 2007 and $23.2 million in fiscal 2006.

We also hold a significant amount of cash and short-term investments related to our WAP operations on which
we eam interest income.

Share-based Compensation

On October 1, 2005, we adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R, Share-Based Payment, requiring a fair value
based method for the measurement and recognition of all share-based compensation. We implemented SFAS
123R using the modified prospective transition method and adjusted previously recorded deferred
compensation back to APIC.

Beginning fiscal 2006, we recognized compensation expense for all current award grants and for the unvested
portion of previous award grants based on grant date fair values reduced for estimated forfeitures. We use
historical data and projections to estimate expected employee behaviors related to option exercise and
forfeitures.

Prior to fiscal 2006, we accounted for share-based awards under the APB 25 intrinsic value method, which
resulted in compensation expense recorded only for restricted share awards and the modification or acquisition
of outstanding unvested options.

We expense the fair value of share-based compensation over the applicable vesting period using the straight-
line method for service based awards. We use the accelerated method 1o expense our outstanding
performance-based awards, as defined in SFAS 123R. Compensation for share-based awards granted prior to
the beginning of fiscal 2006 will continue to be recognized under the accelerated method.

The fair value of restricted share awards is based on the market price of IGT stock on the grant date. We
estimate the fair value of each stock option award on the grant date using the Black-Scholes valuation model.
Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, and changes in assumptions used
can materially affect the fair value estimate. Expected volatility and dividends are based on implied and
historical IGT stock factors. Expected term represents the estimated weighted average time between grant and
employee exercise. Risk free rate is based on US Treasury rates appropriate for the expected term. See Note 4
for more information on our share-based compensation plans.

Advertising Costs

We expense advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $22.3 million in fiscal 2008, $19.9
million in fiscal 2007, and $17.5 miflion in fiscal 2006.
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Research and Development

Our products reach technological feasibility shortly before the products are released and therefore R&D costs
are generally expensed as incurred. Employee related costs assaciated with product development are included
in R&D costs. :

in some cases, R&D performed for specific customers is charged to cost of product sales when the related sale
is recorded.

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes is based on estimated effective annual income tax rates, The provision differs
from income taxes currently payable because certain items of income and expense are recognized in different
pericds for financial statement purposes than for tax return purposes. We reduce deferred tax assets by a
valuation allowance when it is more fikely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. We determine the net current and non-current deferred tax assets or liabilities separately for federal,
state, and foreign jurisdictions.

Accrued income taxes are reduced by the tax benefits from employee stock options exercised. We receive an
income tax benefit on the difference between the market price of the stock issued at the time of exercise and
the option price. Our provision for income taxes includes interest, penalties and reserves for uncertain tax
positions.

On Octaober 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an
interpretation of FASB Statermnent No. 109. FIN 48 requires financial statement recognition of an uncertain tax
position taken or &xpected to be taken in a tax return, when it is “more likely than not” to be sustained upon
examination. This assessment further requires us to presume that tax authorities evaluate the technical merits
of transactions individually and with fuft knowledge of all facts and circumstances surrounding the issue. A
recognized tax position is recorded in the financial statements at the largest amount of benefit that has a
greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. FIN 48 also requires that changes in judgment
resulting in subsequent recognition, de-recognition, or change in the measurement of a tax position taken in a
prior annual period, including any related interest and penalties, be recognized as a discrete item during the
period in which the change occurs. See Note 17.

Eamings Per Share

We compute EPS using the weighted average number of common and potential shares outstanding. See Note
15.

Cash and Equivalents

Cash and equivalents consist primarily of deposits held at major banks, commercial paper, and other
marketable securities with original maturities of 90 days or less. The majority of our cash equivalents are in
100% US Treasury-backed money market funds.

Investment Securities

Our portfolio of short-term investment securities is available-for-sale and stated at fair value. Unrealized gains
and losses after tax are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income. Fair value is based on guoted
market prices, or when an active market does not exist, fair value is determined using a DCF model.

Our portfolio of investment securities at September 30, 2008 is comprised of ARS. These instruments are fixed
rate debt securities with underlying long-term maturities designed to reset to market rates when traded through
a modified Dutch auction process at predetermined short-term intervais, usuaily 7, 28, or 35 days. These debt
securities actively traded at par previous to auction failures which began in February 2008. Interest rates
generally reset to 8 maximum rate when the auctions fail.

With global credit and capital market uncertainties, investment banks and brokers have been unwilling to
purchase ARS when investor demand fell short, causing auctions to fail. With the resulting lack of current
liquidity, our ARS are carried at fair value and classified as other non-current assets. See Note 6.

Receivables
The carrying amount reflected in our consolidated balance sheet for receivables approximates fair value.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts on our trade, notes, and contracts receivable that we have
deemed to have a high risk of collectability. We analyze historical collection trends, customer concentrations,
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customer creditworthiness, current economic trends, and changes in our customer payment terms when
evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts.

Equipment Financing Contracts

We grant extended payment terms to qualifying customers under contracts of sale. These contracts are
generally for terms of one to four years, with interest recognized at prevailing rates, and secured by the related
equipment sold.

Facifity Notes

We provide development financing loans to select customers for new or expanding gaming facilities, generally
under terms of one 1o seven years with interest at prevailing rates. Certain agreements may aiso include
provisions for the facility to reserve a percentage of its floor space for the placement of IGT proprietary games,
which may be reduced if the machines do not meet certain performance standards. These agreements may call
for IGT to receive a portion of the net win on these proprietary games as repayment for some or all of the
amounts financed.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value. We regularly assess
inventory quantities for excess and obsolescence primarily based on forecasted product demand.

Property, Plant and Equipment

We depreciate our property, plant and equipment down to salvage value using the straight-line method.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred and improvements are capitalized. Asset charges related to
gaming operations equipment are recorded to cost of gaming operations. Proceeds from customers' gaming
operations units converted lo product sales are reflected as investing cash flows.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We amortize our finite lived intangible assets to reflect the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets
will be consumed based on projected usage and revenues over one to 18 years. We determine amortization
periods generally reflecting useful lives and the cash flow streams associated with them. When the pattern of
economic benefit is undeterminable, we amortize using the straight-line method. We consider certain factors
when assigning useful lives such as legal, regulatory, and contractual provisions, as well as the effects of
obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors.

We measure and test goodwill and other intangible assets not subject to amortization for impairment at least
annually or more often if there are indicators of impairment. We regularly evaluate our portfolio of finite-lived
intangibles to determine if changes or circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable or a
change in remaining useful life is needed. Indicators that could trigger an impairment review include legal and
regulatory factors, market conditions, and operational performance. Impairment is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the assets and is recognized as a component of income from
operations.

Other Assets

Other assets are comprised of investments in unconsolidated affiliates (see Note 2), deferred licensing rights,
and other deferred expenses, ARS, uncertain tax positions, and deposits.

Deferred Licensing Rights .

We pay royalty and license fees for the use of third-party trade names, celebrity likenesses, content, and other
IP rights. We classify licensing rights and deferred fees as current and non-current assets and amortize costs
based on the estimated period of expected consumption related to forecasted distribution schedules. If a
pattern cannot be reliably determined, we use the straight-line method over the contract life. We also contract
with centain parties for IP rights where fulure payments are contingent upon revenues generated.

Prepaid fees deemed unrealizable afier the related product is released for distribution are charged to cost of
product sales or gaming operations. Prepaid fees deemed unlikely to be realized before the related product is
released are charged to R&D.

Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

We apply the equity method of accounting for investments in unconsolidated affiliates when we exercise
significant influence, but do not control the financial and operating decisions. Equity earnings of our
unconsolidated affiliates are included in operating income because they are integral to our business operations.
Equity method earnings not material to our financial statements are presented as a component of SG&A.
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Investment securities in strategic unconsolidated affiliates are presented separately from investment securities
held for a return. Equity investments in unconsolidated affiliates not accounted for under the equity method and
restricted for more than one year are recorded under the cost method. All ather investments in unconsolidated
affiliates not accounted for under the equity method are available-for-sale securities camied at fair value based
on quoted market prices, or when an aclive market does not exist, fair value is determined using a DCF model.
Unrealized holding gains or losses are recorded in other comprehensive income, except those hedged with
SFAS 133 foreign currency derivatives which are recognized in other income (expense). Qur investments in
unconsolidated affiliates are included in other non-current assets.

Derivatives

We recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities at the fair value of the instruments. Fair value is
determined based on current market rates, or when an active market does not exist, fair value is determined
using a DCF model. Accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the intended use and
resulting designation. Resulting gains and losses from SFAS 133 embedded derivatives and free standing
derivatives are recognized in other income (expense). We are not a panty to leveraged derivatives and do not
hold or issue financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Foreign Currency Hedging
Subsidiary Operations

We routinely use derivative financial instruments to hedge our net exposure, by currency, related to our
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctional foreign currencies. The primary business objective
of our economic hedging program is to minimize the impact to our earnings resulting from foreign exchange
rate changes. These hedging instruments are subject to fluctuations in value that are generally offset by the
value of the underlying exposures being hedged. Counterparties to our agreements are major commercial
banks. These forward exchange contracts are generally not designated as SFAS 133 hedges and resulting
gains or losses are recognized in other income {expense).

Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

Additionally, we hedge significant investments denominated in foreign currency with forward exchange
contracts to protect the US dollar value of our investment. These forward exchange contracts are designated as
SFAS 133 fair value hedges and related gains or losses are recorded as a component of the hedged
transaction in other income (expense} together with the offsetting gains or losses on the change in the
investment's fair value attributable 1o foreign exchange rates. Time value is excluded from effectiveness testing.

Negotiated Share Repurchase Transactions

As part of our capital deployment activities, we use share repurchases to return capital to our shareholders and
1o reduce outstanding share count dilution. We use open market and negotiated share repurchases o achieve
our timing, cost, and volume objectives. Our negotiated share repurchase transactions may consist of ASR or
SSR that permit us to repurchase a large number of shares at certain prices or price ranges.

Qur ASR is a transaction that allows us to purchase a targeted number of shares immediately with the final
purchase price of those shares determined by their average market price over a fixed measurement period. itis
intended to combine the immediate share retirement benefits of a tender offer with the market impact and
pricing benefits of a disciplined daily open market share repurchase program. An ASR also guarantees
repurchase of a large number of shares while limiting our price risk through the use of a floor and cap feature.
The result of this transaclion is reflected in the treasury stock component of shareholders equity.

Our SSR transaction requires that we prepay a specified amount of cash in exchange for the right to receive
shares at a discount to the current market price or cash with an above market return, depending on the closing
share price on a specified date in the future. The form of this transaction allows us to either meet our cost
objectives regarding share repurchases or earn an above market yield on the cash investment. The pre-
payment amount is recorded as a reduction to APIC with final settlement recorded as either an increase to
APIC if we receive cash or an increase in treasury stock if shares are delivered, depending on the closing share
price on the specified date.

In accordance with EITF 99-7, Accounting for an Accelerated Share Repurchase Program, ASR transactions
are accounted for as an immediate reduction of outstanding shares for basic and diluted earnings per share.
Additionally, our ASR and SSR contracts qualify for equity classification in accordance with EITF 00-19,
Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed lo, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock,
and EITF 01-6, The Meaning of Indexed to a Company s Own Stock, as settlement is based on our stock price
and we are not required to deliver additional shares or pay additional cash upon settiement.
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Other Liabilities .

Other liabilities are primarily comprised of uncertain tax positions, deferred revenue, customer deposits,
accrued expenses, deferred compensation, and minority interest.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of certain IGT international subsidiaries is the local currency. For those subsidiaries, we
translate assets and liabilities at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and income and expense
accounts at average exchange rates during the year. Resulting currency translation adjustments are recorded
directly to accumulated other comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity. Gains and losses resulting
from transactions in non-functional currencies are recorded in income. For subsidiaries whose functional
currency is the US dollar, gains and losses on non-US dollar denominated assets and fiabilities are recorded in
income. )

Hurricane Damage Insurance Recoveries

In March 2007, we negotiated a final insurance settlement of $18.0 million related to 2005 US Gulf Coast
hurricane damages which destroyed or temporarily shut down our gaming operations machines. We received a
final payment of $13.0 million, net of $5.0 million advanced in fiscal 2006. We recorded insurance gains of $5.0
million, net of $1.0 million previousty accrued, for property damages in cost of gaming operations, and $12.0
million for business interruption in SG&A.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

FSP EITF 03-6-1

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based
Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities. This FSP mandates that unvested share-based payment
awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents be considered participating
securities and be included in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method. This change will
become effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, or the first quarter of IGT's fiscal 2010,
and requires retrospective application for all periods presented. We estimate the computation under the two-
class method incorporating unvested restricted stock awards as participating securities may reduce our annual
diluted EPS up to $0.01 per share.

EITF 075 A

In June 2008, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 07-5, Determining Whether an Instrument (or Embedded
Feature) Is Indexed to an Entity's Own Stock. EITF 07-5 mandates a two-step process for evaluating whether
an equity-linked financial instrument or embedded feature is indexed to the entity's own stock. Itis effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years, which is the first
quarter of IGT's fiscal 2010. EITF 07-5 may simplify share repurchase transactions and we do not expect the
adoption of this issue will have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

FSPAPB 14-1

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP APB 14-1, Accounting For Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be
Settled in Cash Upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement). This FSP requires that convertible debt
instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion be separated into a debt and equity component. The
debt component will be equal to the fair value of a similar liability and reflect the entity’s borrowing rate for
nonconvertible instruments. The equity component will be the residual difference between the proceeds and the
value of the debt component. The rule is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 and
interim periods within those fiscal years and requires retrospective restatement of all periods presented. We will
adopt FSP APB 14-1 in the first quarter of our fiscal 2010 and continue evaluating the extent to which it will
increase interest expense related to our convertible debentures and reduce diluted EPS.

SFAS 167

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities -
an amendment of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. This statement
requires disclosures about derivatives and hedging activities including enhanced disclosure about (a) how and
why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are
accounted for under SFAS 133, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect financial
position, financial performance, and cash flows. This statement is effective for periods beginning after
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November 15, 2008, which is IGT's second quarter of fiscal 2009. We expect the adoption of this statement will
expand our future disclosures.

SFAS 141(R) and SFAS 160

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141(R), Business Combinations, and SFAS 160, Noncontrolling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Staternents - an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin 51, These
statements will change the way companies account for business combinations and noncontrolling interests (i.e.
minority interests), requiring more assets and liabilities to be measured at fair value as of the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration liabilities will require remeasurement at fair value in each subsequent reporting
period. Acquisition related costs, such as fees for attorneys, accountants, and investment bankers, will be
expensed as incurred and no longer be capitalized as part of the business purchase price. Noncontrolling
interests will initially be measured at fair value and classified as a separate component of equity.

Both statements provide for prospective application in fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008,
which is IGT's fiscal 2010, and earlier application is prohibited. SFAS 141(R) applies only to business
combinations consummated after fiscal years beginning on or after the effective date, with the exception of
income taxes. For all acquisitions, regardiess of the consummation date, deferred tax assets and uncertain tax
position adjustments occurring after the measurement period will be recorded as a component of income tax
expense in accordance with SFAS 141(R), rather than adjusted through goodwill. SFAS 160 requires
retrospective application for presentation and disclosures in comparative financial statements presented after
the effective date (i.e. reclassifying noncontrolling interests to appear in equity).

SFAS 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, permitting entities to elect fair value measurement for many financial instruments and certain other
items. Unrealized gains and losses on designated items will be recognized in earnings at each subsequent
period. SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements for similar types of assets and
liabilitlies measured at fair value. We are required to adopt this statement in fiscal 2009, and we continue
evaluating the potential impact to our future results of eperations, financial position, or cash flows, which
depends on the extent to which we elect fair value measurement for eligible items.

SFAS 157 (including FSPs)

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurerents, which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements, but
provides guidance on how to measure fair value by providing a fair value hierarchy used to classify the source
of the information. We are required to adopt this statement is fiscal 2009. In February 2008, the FASB issued
FSP FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Staternent No. 157, delaying the effective date of SFAS 157 for
nonfinancial assets and liabilities until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, which is IGT's fiscal
2010. We continue evaluating to what extent it will impact our future results of operations, financial position, or
cash flows,

2. Variable Interest Entities and Investments in Unconsoclidated Affiliates

Variable interest Entities

As the primary beneficiary, we consolidated the WAP trusts in lowa and NJ beginning June 30, 2004 under FIN
46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable interest Entities. The trusts are primarily responsible for
administering jackpot payments to winners. The consolidation of these VIE trusts primarily increases jackpot
liabilities and related assets, as well as interest income and equivalent offsetting interest expense.
Consolidated lowa and NJ VIE trust assets and equivalent liabilities totaled $108.2 million at September 30,
2008 and $116.5 million at September 30, 2007.

Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

Walker Digital Gaming, LLC

In February 2006, IGT paid $56.0 million for a 10% equity interest in WDG, formerly known as Casino IP
Holdings, LLC, a VIE formed with our involvement to hold, develop, and license WDG IP identified for gambling
use. In January 2008, we invested $14.0 million in WDG for an additional 2% equity interest, bringing our total
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equity interest to 12%. This relationship facilitates the development, introduction, and integration of WDG
gaming application concepts into IGT product lines. We are not the primary beneficiary of WDG and apply the
equity method of accounting.

Additionally, in January 2008, we advanced the first of four $15.0 million annual funding commitments under a
new global license and development agreement. These annual advances will be applied to future |GT royaity
obligations due WDG. The new arrangement provides |GT exclusive license to and fixed pricing for WDG'’s P
portfolio, excluding certain pre-existing third-party licenses, for 12 years with an option to extend to 20 years for
a fifth payment of $15.0 million.

At September 30, 2008, our net equity investment of $55.7 million plus the $60.0 million in annual royalty
advances represents our maximum exposure to loss. We recognized losses of $5.8 million in fiscal 2008, $5.3
million in fiscal 2007, and $3.2 million in fiscal 2006, primarity comprised of intangible asset amortization.

China LotSynergy Holdings, Ltd.
Stock

In May 2007, we entered into strategic business arrangements with CLS, a company involved in the
development of the China lottery market and other related activities. As part of this arrangement, we invested
$33.6 million, including transaction costs, for approximately 5% of the outstanding ordinary shares of CLS, a
public company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Exchange. This equity investment is
accounted for under the cost method with our portion of net accumulated earnings recorded only to the extent
of distributed dividends.

At September 30, 2008, based on quoted market prices, the estimated fair value of the CLS equity investment
declined to $12.2 million. Because our investment in the stock had been in a loss position since January 2008

and lecal business conditions surrounding new regulations remain uncertain, we determined the impairment at
September 30, 2008 was other-than-temporary and recorded a loss of $21.4 million.

Convertible Notes

Additionally in May 2007, we invested $72.0 million, including transaction costs, in a 4% zero-coupon
unsecured convertible note of CLS due May 31, 2015, which becomes partially or wholly convertible after three
years at a split-adjusted initial conversion price of HK$0.96 per share. CLS may call the note for redemption in
full at accreted value under certain circumstances on or after May 31, 2012. IGT may require CLS to repay a
portion of or all of the note at accreted value on May 31, 2012. This note is accounted for as an available-for-
sale security. The amortized cost and unrealized gain (loss) at September 30, 2008 and 2007 are reflected in
the summary table below.

IGT simultaneously entered into a TCA to provide technical support, assistance, and consulting services to CLS
and exclusively explore opportunities for providing products and services in connection with the China Welfare
Lottery. IGT is restricted from selling or transferring any of its shares in CLS or the convertible note for three
years, after which either party may terminate the exclusivity provision in the TCA allowing IGT to sell or transfer
its shares in CLS or the convertible note.

With insufficient cbservable market information, we estimate the fair value of the note using a DCF mode!
incorporating market participant assumptions, including credit quality, market interest rates and stock price.
Based on our analysis, we recorded a temporary impairment of $2.1 miltion to other comprehensive income at
September 30, 2008. We believe this impairment is temporary primarily because CLS has sufficient cash to
satisfy the obligation.

Cur evaluation of the convertible note terms determined that no feature met the SFAS 133 definition of a
derivative requiring bifurcation at September 30, 2008. See Note 14 about related foreign currency derivatives.

IGT Synergy Holding Lid.

In September 2007, we also established a 50/50 joint venture, IGT Synergy Holding Ltd., to explore
opportunities in connection with the China Welfare Lottery. During fiscal 2008, we funded $1.0 million of an
unconditional commitment to contribute capital of $14.5 million to the joint venture. We account for IGT Synergy
Holding Ltd. under the equity method and recognized losses of $0.1 million during fiscal 2008.

Progressive Gaming International Corp.

In August 2008, we invested $15.0 million in a Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement with PGIC, a casino
management systems provider focused on smafler casinos. We anticipate expanding our mutual technology
alliance to further server-based gaming opportunities. The initial investment of $15.0 million was allocated to
three components of the agreement based on their respective fair values: convertible notes of $6.6 million,
embedded derivatives of $7.5 million and stock warrants of $0.9 million.
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The 7% senior secured convertible notes with a principal amount of $15.0 million are due August 15, 2014 and
interest is payable semi-annually. The notes are partially or wholly convertible at any time, provided IGT's
ownership remains less than 10%, at an initial conversion price of $0.89 per share. IGT may put or PGIC may
call the notes for redemption on or after February 15, 2012. The notes are accounted for as available-for-sale
securities and the discount is amortized to interest income using the effective interest method over the six year
term. The amortized cost and unrealized gain at September 30, 2008 are reflected in the summary table below.

The embedded derivatives, consisting of the notes® conversion option, contingent interest feature, and change
of control put, are bundled as a single, compound embedded derivative and accounted for separately under
SFAS 133. At September 30, 2008, the estimated fair value declined to $1.0 million and we recorded a loss of
$6.5 miltion.

Additionally, IGT received warrants to purchase 550,000 shares of PGIC publicly traded common stock for

$1.05 per share and 892,000 shares at $0.89 per share, partially or wholly exercisable at any time over 5 years.

IGT also received additional warrants to purchase shares contingent on PGIC's stock price leading up to
November 15, 2008. These warrants and contingent warrants are freestanding derivatives under SFAS 133. At
September 30, 2008, the estimated fair value declined to $0.2 million and we recorded a loss of $0.7 million.

Summary of available-for-sale investments in unconsolidated affiliates:

Amortized Unrealized Fair

September 30, Cast gain (loss) Value
{In millions)
2008

CLS Convertible Note $ 745 $ (2.1) $ 724

PGIC Convertible Note 6.7 0.1 6.8

Total $ 81.2 $ (2.0 $ 79.2
2007

CLS Convertible Note $ 716 $ 64 $ 780
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3. Balance Sheet Components

Inventories
September 30, 2008 2007
{in mithons)
Raw materials $ 99.8 $ 784
Work-in-process 9.5 45
Finished goods 109.0 61.9
Total $218.3 $144.8

Property, Plant and Equipment

Useful lives
September 30, 2008 2007 in years
(in millions)
Land $ 629 $§ 580
Buildings 219.7 139.7 3040
Leasehold improvements 12.8 13.1 lease tem
Machinery, furniture and equipment 2873 2426 25
Gaming operations equipment 813.2 7378 14
Construction in process, Las Vegas construction 8.7 64.0
Construction in process, other 13.9 16.3
Total 14185 12715
Less accumulated depreciation (827.6) (704.1)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 5909 $ 5674

Interest capitalized during fiscal 2008 totaled $1.9 million and $2.3 million during fiscal 2007. During the year
ended September 30, 2008, we reclassified $98.4 million related to the Las Vegas facilities from construction in
process to land, buildings and equipment as it was placed in service.

In March 2007, IGT sold a company airplane for $7.8 million 1o a limited liability company owned by Chuck
Mathewson, former chairman of the IGT Board of Directors and father of current IGT director, Robert
Mathewson. Robert Mathewson has no interest in the limited liability company or in the airplane itself. IGT
recognized a $5.8 million gain on the sale.

4, Employee Benefit Plans
We have established a variety of employee benefit programs to attract, retain and motivate our employees.

Cash Incentives

Our profit sharing and 401(k) plan was adopted for US employees. IGT matches 100% of an employee’s
contributions up to $750 per year. Participants immediately vest in their contributions and IGT’s matching
contributions. Additionally, IGT contributes a portion of profits to eligible employees, which vest over a six-year
period. Cash sharing is distributed semi-annually to all eligible employees and management bonuses are paid
annually to selected employees.

Our non-qualified deferred compensation plan, implemented in September 1999, provides an unfunded
incentive compensation arrangement for eligible management and highly compensated employees.
Participants may elect to defer up to 50% of their annual earnings with a minimum deferral of $2,000.
Distributions can be paid out as short-term payments or at retirement. Retirement benefits can be paid out as a
lump sum or in annual installments over a term of up to 15 years.

Benefits accrued for these plans totaled $75.1 million in fiscal 2008, $93.6 million in fiscal 2007 and $88.4
million in fiscal 2006.
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Share-based Compensation

The amount, frequency, and terms of share-based awards may vary hased on competitive practices, company
operating results, and government regulations. New IGT shares are issued upon option exercises or restricted
share grants.

IGT restricted share awards (referred to in SFAS 123R as non-vested share awards) are eamed over the
employee’s service (vesting) period, and hold no further restrictions upon vesting. Performance-based awards
vest based on achievement of specific financials goals as established in advance by the Compensation
Committee. Unrecognized costs related to all share-based awards outstanding at September 30, 2008 total
$90.8 million and are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 years.

Stock Incentive Plan

Under the IGT SIP, our eligible employees and non-employee directors may be granted non-qualified and

incentive stock options, restricted shares or stock appreciation rights. SIP grants may vest over time of service

or based on performance. We generally grant stock options at an exercise price equal to the market price at the |
date of grant, with a 10-year contractual term. SIP grants generally vest over 3-5 years in ratable increments ;
based on continuous service. At September 30, 2008, 14.3 million shares remain available for grant under the

IGT SIP. Each restricted share granted counts as four shares against this allowance.

Current year stock options activily as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008

Weighted Average
Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsie

QOptions Shares Price Term Value
(thousands) Tper share) Dears] . (PHons)
Quitstanding at beginning of year 17,454 $ 30.08
Granted 2,685 35.53
Exercised (2,716) 2278
Forfeited (559)  36.74 !
Expired (84) 29.90 :
Outstanding at end of period 16,780 $ 32.06 6.5 $ 52
Vested and expected to vest 16,279 % 32.06 6.5 $ 5.0
Exercisable at end of period 9280 $ 28.61 5.3 5 5.2

Current year restricted shares activity as of and for the yesr ended September 30, 2008

Weighted Average
Grant Remaining  Aggregate
Date Vesting Intrinsic
Restricted Shares/Units Shares Fair Value Period Value
T (Mousands]  (per share) {years] {rmons)
Qutstanding 8t beginning of year : 1568 § 35865
Granted 618 35.56
Vested {409) 4.9
Forfeited {114) 36.81
Outstanding at end of period 1,663 § 35.72 25 $§ 307
Expected to vest 1,576 $ 35.52 2.5 $ 291

Employee Stock Purchase Flan

Under the IGT qualified employee stock purchase plan, eligible employees are granted an option with a 12-
month term to purchase a limited number of shares, exercisable the last day in February each year. Eligible
employees may participate in this plan through payroll deductions up to certain limits. The option price is equal
to 85% of the market price of our stock on the grant date or exercise date, whichever is less. Approximately
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231,000 shares were issued in February 2008 under this plan. Based on enroliment through September 30,
2008, we expect to issue approximately 541,000 shares in February 2009 under this plan. At September 30,
2008, 2.5 million shares were available for future grants,

Additionally, eligible UK employees may enrolt annually in the Barcrest Savings Related Share Option Scheme
established in January 1999. Employees must elect to vest over three, five, or seven years and the option price
is equal to 80% of the market price of our stock on the grant date. Approximately 31,000 shares were issued
during fiscal 2008 under this plan and approximately 646,000 shares were available for grant at September 30,
2008. Based on enroliment through September 30, 2008, we expect to issue approximately 68,000 shares
under this plan over the next seven years.

Option Valuation Assumptions

Years Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
Expected volatility 0.31 0.26 0.29
Expected dividends 1.32% 1.26% 1.55%
Expected term (in years) 4.4 4.2 4.4
Risk free rate 2.61% 4.57% 4.45%

Reported Share-based Compensation

Years Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
fin millions)
Pre-tax $ 384 $ 357 $ 37.0
Tax benefit (11.6) (10.3) (11.1)
After-tax $ 268 $ 254 $ 259

Other Share-based Compensation Information
Years Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006

{in millions except per share smounts)
Weighted average grant date fair value per share:

Options granted $8.72 $9.50 $7.65
Restricted shares granied $35.56 $42.56 $36.14
Total intrinsic value of options exercised $ 573 $ 66.3 $ 1356
Total fair value of restricted shares vested 16.5 13.1 6.7
Tax benefit realized for tax return deductions 26.2 26.9 50.8

5. Acquisitions

Pro forma financial information is not provided, as these acquisitions are not material to our consolidated
financial statements.

Cyberview Technology, Inc.

In July 2008, we paid approximately $88.6 million for substantially all of the assets Cyberview, a group of
companies that develop, produce, and implement innovative, integrated gaming systems solutions. The
purchase price included a separate license agreement providing rights to certain additional Cyberview patents.
We anticipate this purchase will enable more immediate access to the fixed odds betting terminal market in the
UK, as well as further strengthen our IP portfolio and enhance our server-based initiatives.

With the business valuation not yet complete at September 30, 2008, we preliminarily allocated the purchase
price to:

tangible assets of $31.0 million, including cash of $16.7 million

identifiable intangible assets of $31.5 million

goodwill of $35.6 million, may be deductible {for tax purposes

liabilities of $9.5 million

| R N N 4
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Million-2-1

In June 2008, we completed the acquisition of M-2-1, a mobile gaming company based in Manchester, UK, for
approximately $10.2 million. Additionally, we committed to pay earn-out consideration up to a maximum of
approximately $13.8 million, based on current exchange rates, payable through fiscal 2011 contingent upon M-
2-1 meeting certain financial targets. If paid, a portion will be recorded as additional purchase price and a
portion as compensation expense ratably over the service period through June 2011. In addition to gaining
access to M-2-1's |P, we anticipate this business combination will enable us 1o establish new markets and
channels for IGT's game content. '

With the business valuation not yet complete at September 30, 2008, we preliminarily allocated the purchase
price to:

&  tangible assets of $1.6 million, including cash of $0.8 million

& identifiable intangible assets of $7.3 million

» goodwill of $6.2 million, may be deductible for tax purposes

I labilities of $4.9 million

DigiDeal Corporation

In June 2007, we invested $31.2 million in voting convertible preferred and common stock of DigiDeal, a
Spokane, Washington gaming technology firm. We acquired a 58% controlling interest and DigiDeal's results
were consolidated in our financial statements beginning June 22, 2007. In addition to gaining access to
DigiDeal’s IP portfolio, we plan to work jointly in expanding game content and electronic table game products.
Additional five-year agreements provide IGT exclusive manufacturing and distribution rights, as well as a fixed-
price option to purchase all remaining outstanding shares.

We allocated the aggregate purchase price to:
» tangible assets of $14.9 million, including cash of $12.4 million
»  identifiable intangible assets of $9.0 million
» in-process R&D of $0.5 million with no future alternative use, immediately charged to R&D expense
A goodwill of $11.1 million, not deductible for tax purposes
» liabilities of $4.3 million

During the second quarter of fiscal 2008, we increased our investment in DigiDeal by approximately 5% for $3.0
million, with an allocation of $2.2 million to goodwill and $0.4 million to identifiable intangible assets.

Venture Catalyst Incorporated

In December 2006, we completed the acquisition of VCAT, renamed Mariposa. We anticipate the Mariposa
casino systems applications for customer relationship management will enhance our server-based initiatives.

We allocated the aggregate purchase price of $21.9 million to:
4  1angible assets of $6.8 million, including cash of $3.5 million
identifiable intangible assets of $8.2 million
in-process R&D of $0.1 million with no future alternative use, immediately charged to R&D expense
goodwill of $10.9 million, not deductible for tax purposes
liabilities of $4.1 million

L I R A 4
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6. Investment Securities

Our portfolio of investment securities is available for sale. In the second quarter of fiscal 2008, we reclassified
our remaining ARS to other non-current assets (see discussion below). We realized $0.2 million in gains on
other investment securities sold in fiscal 2008 and no gains or losses in fiscal 2007 and 2006. At September 30,
2007, the portfolio included $57.4 million of restricted ARS.

Net Gross Unrealized Fair
September 30, Cost Gains Losses Value
{in millions)
2008
ARS $ 216 $ - $ (2.0 $ 196
2007
ARS $ 1033 $ - $ - $ 1033
Equity securities 5.1 - {0.1) 5.0
Mutual funds 0.4 - - 0.4
Total $ 108.8 $ - $ (0. § 1087
Auction Rate Securities

IGT held $21.5 million (par)} of “available-for-sale” ARS at September 30, 2008. These instruments are fixed
rate debt securities with underlying long-term maturities, designed to reset to market rates when traded through
a modified Dutch auction process at predetermined short-term intervals, typically 7, 28, or 35 days. These debt
securities actively traded at par previous to auctions failures which began in February 2008.

Our ARS consist of AAA rated issuances, collateralized by student loans guaranteed by the US government
under the Federal Family Education Loan Program. The issuers additionally provide certain credit
enhancements, such as over-collateralization, reserve accounts, insurance, and excess spread, to further
secure the value of the debt. The issuers provide a third-party guarantee, such that if a student loan defaults,
the guarantor is abligated to pay the issuer 100% of the outstanding principal and interest, The guarantor is
then able to submit a claim to the Federat Department of Education which guarantees payment of $7%-100% of
the outstanding amounts to the guarantor.

With global credit and capital market uncertainties, investment banks and brokers were unwilling to purchase
ARS when investor demand fell short and auctions for student loan ARS began failing in February 2008. The
effect of a failed auction is that hoiders cannot sell the securities at auction and the interest rates generally reset
to a maximum auction interest rate. As a result of the failed auctions, our ARS currently lack liquidity and are
carried at fair value in non-current assets.

Wwith insufficient observable ARS market information avaitable at September 30, 2008, we used market
participant assumptions, such as credit quality, multiple DCF scenarios, the probability of an issuer call before
the stated maturity, and the impact of extended periods of maximum auction rates, 1o estimate their fair value.
Based on our analysis, we recorded a temporary impairment of $2.0 million to other comprehensive income.
We believe this temporary impairment is primarily attributable to the limited liquidity. We continue to receive
ARS interest payments and have no reason 10 believe any of the underlying issuers are at risk of default. We
have the ability and intent to hold our ARS throughout the estimated recovery period. We expect to realize our
investments’ par value without significant loss.

Additionally, in November 2008, we accepted ARS Rights offered by our broker, UBS Securities LLC, entitling
us to sell our ARS through appropriate UBS entities at par plus accrued interest during the exercise period from
June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012, in accepting these rights, we also granted UBS the right to sell or auction
our ARS at par at any time up until the expiration date of the rights and released UBS from any claims related to
the marketing and sale of ARS. These ARS Rights are a separate freestanding instrument and will be
accounted for separately from our ARS investment.
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7. Jackpot Annuity investments ,

Book Gross Unrealized Fair
September 30, Value Gains Losses Value
{In mitlions)
2008 $ 490.9 $ 46.4 $ (0.3 $ 5370
2007 $ 508.0 $ 34.6 $ (54 $ 5372

Fair value is based on quoted market prices. Future maturities of these securities through 2033, including the
accreted interest at maturity, lotaled:

Within 1
Seetember 30, year 2-5 years 6-10 years Thereaftar Total
{in millions)
2008 $ 67.5 $ 246.8 $ 190.1 $ 172.2 $ 679.6
8. Receivables

Our notes and contracts receivable are presented net of uneamed interest income and deferred loan fees
totaling $6.6 million at September 30, 2008 and $2.3 million at September 30, 2007, and net of allowances for
doubtful accounts below.

September 30, 2008 2007 2006
{in millions)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Beginning balance $ 209 $ 18.2 $ 204
Provisions 52 4.0 3.1
Write-offs net of recoveries (7.0) (1.3) (5.3}
Ending batance $ 1941 $ 2098 $18.2
Allowance for doubtful notes and confracts:
Beginning balance $ 251 $ 39.0 $ 4238
Provisions 38 (10.0) (3.6)
Write-offs net of recoveries {12.6) (3.9) (0.2)
Ending balance $ 16.3 $ 25.1 $ 390
Current $ 101 $ 125 $215
Non-current _ $ 6.2 $126 $ 175

Estimated future collections below, as of September 30, 2008 are net of allowances for notes of $3.2 million
and contracts of $13.1 million:

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total
{in miflions)
Notes $ 138 $ 166 $ 200 $ 18,0 $ 153 $ 136 $ 971
Contracts 79.9 454 14.3 44 0.6 - 144 .6
$ 935 $ 620 $ 343 $ 224 $ 159 $ 136 $241.7
9. Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and
equivalents, investments, and receivables. We place short-term investments in high credit quality financial
institutions and in short-duration high-quality securities. With the exception of US Government and Agency
securities, our shori-term investment policy limits the amount of credit exposure in any one financial institution,
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industry group, or type of investment. Cash on deposit may be in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation limits.

Our receivables are concentrated in the following legalized gaming regions at September 30, 2008:

North America International
Nevada 17 % Argentina 10 %
Oklahoma 7 Other Latin America 5
Mississippi 5 Europe 5
Other {less than 5% individually) 37 Other (less than 5% individually) 14
66 % 34 %

Cur unfunded development financing loans totaled $116.0 million at September 30, 2008. During the first
quarter of 2008, IGT agreed to provide up to $75.0 million in development financing to a charitable gaming
property in Alabama, with $19.0 million funded through September 30, 2008. In April 2008, IGT agreed to
provide up to $140.0 million in new financing to a consortium of Argentina gaming operators, canceling previous
arrangements executed in April 2007. The new agreements include $40.0 million in gaming equipment
financing and a fully collateralized $100.0 million development loan of which $40.0 million was funded through
September 30, 2008.

10.  Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill
Activity by Segment for the year North
ended September 30, America international Total
{in mitiions)
Fiscal Year 2007
Beginning balance $ 9921 % 1030 § 1,0851
Acquisitions/purchase price adjustments 17.4 - 174
Faoreign currency and tax benefit adjustments (0.3) 44 4.1
Ending balance 1,009.2 1074 1,116.6
Fiscal Year 2008
Acquisitions/purchase price adjustments 343 14.3 486
Foreign currency and 1ax benefit adjustments (C.9) (5.8) (6.7}
Ending balance $ 10426 § 1159 $ 11585
Other Intanglbles

Patent additions in the following tables include capitalized legal costs. Business combination additions include
purchase price valuation adjustments during the first year subsequent to acquisition.

Additions for the year Business Other Woeighted
ended September 30, 2008 Combinations Additions Average Life
{in milfions, except life) (Years)
Finite lived intangibles
Patents $ 47 $ 144 9
Contracts 4.0 - 8
Trademarks 08 - 9
Developed technology 239 - 8
Customer relationships 1.1 - 3
Total $ 345 $ 144
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September 30, 2008 September 30, 2007

Accumulated Accumulated
Balances Cost Amortization Net Cost Amortization Net
{in millions)
Finite lived intangible assels
Patents $§ 376.7 $ 1840 $ 1927 $ 3583 $ 1517 $ 206.6
Contracts 25.1 15.5 9.6 214 1.7 9.7
Trademarks 3.3 19 1.4 240 1.8 0.2
Developed technology 68.4 271 41.3 472 224 248
Customer relationships 7.9 4.0 39 6.9 34 35
4814 2325 248.9 435.8 191.0 2448
Indefinite lived trademarks - - - 0.7 - 0.7
Total $ 4814 $ 2325 $ 248.9 $ 436.5 $ 191.0 $ 2455

Aggregate amontization expense totaled $45.1 miflion in fiscal 2008, $49.1 million in 2007, and $44.6 millicn in
2006.

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

{in miliions}

Estimated future annual amortization $45.1 $41.5 $37.2 $30.6 $26.3

1. Credit Facilities & Indebtedness

Qutstanding balance September 30, 2008 2007
i milfions}

Senior credit facility $1,3450 $ 600.0
Foreign credit facilities 15.0 5.2
2.6% Convertible Debentures 900.0 900.0
Installment purchase contract 3.1 34
Tota! notes payable, net $ 2,263.1 $ 1,508.6

As of September 30, 2008, book value approximates fair value for our credit facilities and installment purchase
contract because of their relatively short maturities and variable interest rates. The aggregate fair value of our
Debentures based on quoted market prices was $846.0 million as of September 30, 2008 and $895.5 million as
of September 30, 2007. We continue to be in comptiance with all applicable covenants at September 30, 2008.

The table below reflects our future debt obligations as of September 30, 2008:

_ 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter  Total
(In millions)
Principal payments  $16.0 $301.0  $1,346.1 - - - $2,263.1
Senior Credit Facility

On December 20, 2005, we entered intc an amended and restated unsecured $2.5 billion credit facility with a
syndicate of banks. The five-year credit facility provides a $2.5 billion revolving line of credit, of which up to
$100.0 million is available for letters of credit and up to $50.0 million is available for swingline (same day funds)
borrowing. As of September 30, 2008, $1.2 billion was available under the credit facility, $4.1 million was
reserved for fetters of credit and outstanding borrowings carried a weighted average interest rate of 3.46%.

Applicable interest rates and facility fees may fluctuate based on our public credit ratings or debt to
capitalization ratio. At September 30, 2008, the facility fee was 12.5 bps and the interest rate was LIBOR plus
37.5 bps. We can borrow for one, two, three, or six month durations at our discretion and other durations with
bank group approval. One, three, and six month LIBOR rates at the end of fiscal 2008 were 3.70%, 3.76%, and
3.88%, respectively.

Financial covenants (as defined in the facility agreement) include a minimum ratio of EBITDA to interest
expense minus interest on jackpot liabilities and a maximum ratio of Debt to EBITDA. Non-compliance with
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required covenants causes an event of default that, if not cured, could cause the entire outstanding borrowings
under the credit facility to become immediately due and payable.

The senior credit facility agreement also includes certain restrictions on our ability to:
a incur additional debt, guarantee debt, or enter into swap agreements

I’y incur liens
Fy enter into business combinations, liquidate, or dissolve
a sell, transfer, lease, or dispose of substantially all assets
a change the nature of the business

Foreign Credit Facilities

Our available foreign credit facilities totaled $78.8 million with a weighted average interest rate of 2.45% at
September 30, 2008. Of this amount, $15.0 million was drawn with a weighted average interest rate of 1.5%.
These subsidiary credit facilities renew annually and are guaranteed by the parent company, International
Game Technology.

2 6% Senior Convertible Debentures

On December 20, 2006, we issued $900.0 million principal amount of 2.6% Senior Convertible Debentures due
December 15, 2036 in a private placement. Interest on the Debentures is paid semiannually on June 15 and
December 15 of each year.

We may also pay contingent interest for the period commencing December 20, 2009 through June 14, 2010
and any six-month period thereafter, if the average trading price (as defined in the indenture) per $1,000
Debenture for the five trading day measurement period ending on the third trading day immediately preceding
the first day of the interest period equals 120% or more of an equal principal amount of Debentures. The
amount of contingent interest will equal 0.25% per annum of the average trading price per $1,000 Debenture
during the five trading day measurement period used to determine whether contingent interest must be paid.

Under certain circumstances, each $1,000 Debenture may be converted at an initial conversion rate of 16.1875
shares of IGT Common Stock, representing a stock price of $61.78 or a 35% conversion premium over the
market price at issuance. Upon conversion, for each $1,000 Debenture, a holder will receive cash up to $1,000,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, and shares for any excess conversion value determined in a manner
set forth in the indenture. We will adjust the conversion rate upon the occurrence of certain events as defined in
the indenture.

The Debentures are convertible under any of the following circumstances:
» during any fiscal quarter ending after March 31, 2007 if the closing price of our common stock is more
than 130% of the conversion price during the measurement period of the preceding fiscal quarter
P if the Debentures are called for redemption
- if specified corporate transactions occur
'y during the last three months prior to maturity

IGT may redeem some or all of the Debentures for cash on or after December 20, 2009, at 100% of their
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, up to the redemption date. If IGT redeems the
Debentures, holders will be notified at least 15 days, but not more than 60 days, prior to the redemption date.
Holders have the right to require IGT to redeem the Debentures for cash at 100% of their principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on December 15, 2009, 2011, 201 6, 2021, 2026, and 2031.

in evaluating all features of our 2.6% Debentures for SFAS 133 embedded derivatives, we determined the
contingent interest feature represents an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation. The value of this derivative
was nominal at September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007, and no related derivative liability is recorded.
Any future derivative value will be recorded as a liability and adjusted through interest expense for changes in
fair value.

We may use open market, privately negotiated, or structured transactions to repurchase our 2.6% Debentures
depending on market conditions and other factors. Between September 30, 2008 and November 24, 2008, we
repurchased 70,600 outstanding Debentures.

Redeemed 1.75% Zero-Coupon Senior Convertible Debentures

On December 26, 2006, we called all of our outstanding 1.75% Debentures for redemption, giving holders the
right to convent before January 10, 2007 for aggregate consideration comprised of shares and cash under the
terms of the applicable indentures. The call resuited in payments to holders of $612.7 million, as well as non-
cash increases to APIC of $1.2 million for 7.3 miflion shares issued and $47.5 million for related deferred tax
liabilities during fiscal 2007.
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12. Commitments

We lease certain of our facilities and equipment under various agreements for periods through January 2016.
The following table shows future minimum payments required under these leases that have initial or remaining
non-cancelable lease terms as of September 30, 2008, Certain facility leases provide that we pay utilities,
maintenance, property taxes, and certain cther operating expenses applicable to the leased property, including
liability and property damage insurance. For leased properties no longer in use, we have accrued lease
payments, net of anticipated sublease receipis,

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 _ Thereafter Total

{tn millions)

Operating leases $13.2 $11.0 $9.1 $5.6 $3.1 $1.2 %432

Rental expense totaled $16.2 million for fiscal 2008, $14.7 million for fiscal 2007, and $14.3 million for fiscal
2006.

13.  Jackpot Liabilities

September 30, 2008 2007
{in millions)
Payments due previous winners $ 6828 $ 7153
Payments due future winners 153.6 138.2
Unamortized discounts {185.7) {210.4)
Total jackpot liabiiities $ 6507 $ 643.1
Estimated fair value based on quoted market prices for
investments used to fund jackpots $ 696.7 $ 6697
Future jackpot payments due 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total
{In millions)
Previous winners $ 745 § 672 § 638 $§ 615 $ 578 $ 3580 $ 6828
Future winners 115.2 13.8 2.4 1.2 1.2 19.8 153.6

14.  Foreign Currency Derivatives

Subsidiary Operations

Net foreign currency exposure related to monetary assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctional currency
decreased to $51.4 million at September 30, 2008 from $73.9 million at September 30, 2007, primarily due to
reduced inter-company liabifities. The notional amount of foreign currency contracts hedging this exposure
totaled $43.4 million at September 30, 2008 and $63.6 million at September 30, 2007. These forward contracts
were recorded as a fair value asset of $0.2 million at September 30, 2008 and a fair value liability of $3.3 million
at September 30, 2007.

Investment in CLS

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we executed 5-year forward contracts designated as FAS 133 foreign
currency fair value hedges to protect 70% of the US dollar value of our Hong Kong dollar investment in the CLS
convertible note (See Note 2). The notional amount of foreign currency contracts hedging this exposure totaled
$49.9 million. We recorded a fair value liability of $0.4 million at September 30, 2008 and a fair value asset of
$0.2 million as of September 30, 2007. There was no ineffectiveness for fiscal 2008.
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15.  Eamings Per Share

Years Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
{in millions, excepl per share amounts)
Netincome $ 3425 $ 508.2 $ 4736
After-tax interest expense on 1.75% Debentures - - 4.3
Diluted EPS Numerator § 3425 $ 508.2 $ 4779
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 308.0 33041 3368
Dilutive effect of stock awards 24 4.1 4.4
Dilutive effect of 1.75% Debentures - 1.9 14.6
Diluted EPS Denominator 3104 336.1 355.8
Basic eamings per share 11 $1.54 $1.41
Diluted earnings per share $1.10 $1.51 $1.34
Weighted average antidilutive stock award shares
excluded frem diluted EPS 5.7 3.2 7.1

We made no share repurchases between September 30, 2008 and November 24, 2008.

Negotiated Share Repurchase Transactions

On September 6, 2007, we acquired 4.2 million shares through an ASR for an aggregate cost of $175.0 million
or $41.28 per share subject to a future purchase price adjustment based on our weighted average stock price
through October 3, 2007, subject to a specified collar. On September 7, 2006, we acquired 3.7 million shares
through a similar ASR for an initial payment of $150.0 million or $40.97 per share, subject to a future purchase
price adjustment based on our weighted average stock price through November 3, 2006, subjectto a specified
collar. We settled both transactions with no additional cash or shares delivered by either party because our
weighted average stock price was above the initial cap price.

On June 6, 2006, we prepaid $100.0 million in a SSR designed to settle in cash or IGT shares based on the
closing stock price on June 29, 2006. We received cash of $101.1 million upon settlement in July 2006 because
our stock price was above the predetermined threshold price of $35.50 per share. In September 2005, we
prepaid $74.0 million in a similar SSR, and received $77.8 million in cash because our stock price was above
the predetermined threshold price of $27.40 per share on November 15, 2005. No shares were acquired in
either SSR transaction because they settled in cash.

16.  Contingencies

Litigation

IGT has been named in and has brought lawsuits in the normal course of business. We do not expect the
outcome of these suits, including the lawsuits described below, to have a material adverse effect on our
financial position or results of future operations.

Bally
2004 Federal District Court of Nevada

On December 7, 2004, IGT filed a complaint in US District Court for the District of Nevada, alleging that
defendants Alliance Gaming Corp., Bally Gaming Int', Inc., and Bally Gaming, Inc. infringed six US patents held
by IGT: US Patent Nos. 6,827,646, 5,848,932, 5,788,573 5,722,891; 6,712,698; and 6,722,985. On January
21, 2005, defendants filed an answer denying the allegations in the complaint and raising various affirmative
defenses to IGT's asserted claims. Defendants also asserted fourteen counterclaims against IGT, including
counterclaims for a declaratory judgment of non-infringement, invalidity, and unenforceability of the asserted
patents, and for antitrust violations and intentional interference with prospective business advantage. IGT has
successfully moved for partial summary judgment on defendants’ counterclaims for intentional interference with
prospective business advantage and defendants’ antitrust allegations related to the gaming machine market.
IGT denies the remaining allegations. On May 9, 2007, the Court issued an order construing disputed terms of
the asserted patent claims. On October 16, 2008, the Court issued summary judgment rulings finding certain of
IGT’s patents, including patents that IGT believes cover bonus wheel gaming machines, invalid as obvious. The
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rulings also found that Bally was not infringing certain patents asserted by IGT. Bally’s antitrust and unfair
competition counterclaims remafn pending. On November 7, 2008, the Court issued an order staying the
proceedings and certifying the summary judgment and claim canstruction rulings for immediate appeal. IGT
intends to appeal.

Certain of the patents and associated technology subject to this ruling are intangible assets which had a net
carrying value of $72.4 million at September 30, 2008. Although IGT intends to appeal, this court ruling
represents an event which requires IGT to evaluate these intangible assets for recoverability in accordance with
SFAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Accordingly, we evaluated the
undiscounted cash flows from product lines directly attributable to the intangible assets relative to the carrying
value of the applicable asset group. We determined that the carrying value of the intangible assets is fully
recoverable. Additionally, we evaluated the useful life of the intangible assets and concluded the remaining life
of seven years is appropriate.

2006 Federaf District Court of Delaware

On April 28, 20086, IGT filed a complaint in US District Court for the District of Delaware, alleging that
defendants Bally Technologies, Inc., Bally Gaming Int', Inc., and Bally Gaming, Inc. infringed nine US patents
held by IGT: US Patent Nos. RE 38,812; RE 37,885; 6,832,958; 6,319,125; 6,244,958; 6,431,983, 6.607 441;
6,565,434; and 6,620,046. The complaint alleges that the "BALLY POWER BONUSING™” technology infringes
one or more of the claims of the asserted IGT patents. The lawsuit seeks monetary damages and an injunction.
On June 30, 2006, defendants filed an answer denying the allegations in the complaint and raising various
affirmative defenses to {GT's asserted claims. Defendants also asserted twelve counterclaims against IGT,
including counterclaims for a declaratory judgment of non-infringement, invalidity, unenforceability of the
asserted patents, antitrust violations, unfair competition, and intentional interference with prospective business
advantage. iGT denies these allegations. Pursuant to stipulation of the parties, all claims and counterclaims
except those relating to US Patent Nos. RE 37,885, RE 38,812, and 6,431,983 have been dismissed. All
proceedings relating to Bally's antitrust, unfair competition, and intentional interference counterclaims have
been stayed. Discovery is closed. A claim construction hearing and oral argument on various motions and
cross-motions for summary judgment is scheduled for January 16, 2009. Trial is scheduled for May 26, 2009.

2006 Feders! District Court of Nevada

On September 5, 2006, Bally Gaming, Inc. filed a complaint in US District Court for the District of Nevada
alleging that IGT is infringing US Patent No. 7,100,916, entitled “Indicator Wheel System.” The products named
in the complaint are 1GT’s gaming machines with “wheel” features, including, without limitation, Whee/ of
Fortune®, Wheel of Gold®, The Addams Family™ American Bandstand®. The Apprentice™ Dilbert's™
Wheelbert™ Drew Carey Great Balls of Cash™, Elvira®, | Dream of Jeannie™, | Love Lucy™ Indiana Jones™:
Raiders of the Lost Ark™, M"A"S™"H*™ Megabucks® with Morgan Fairchild, Regis On the Town™, Sinatra™and
The Twilight Zone® gaming machines. The lawsuit seeks unspecified monetary damages and an injunction.
On October 6, 2008, IGT filed an answer and counterclaims denying infringement and seeking a declaration
that the patent is invalid and non-infringed. On September 9, 2008, the Court granted IGT’s motion for summary
judgment of invalidity and final judgment in IGT'’s favor was entered on October 3, 2008. Bally has appealed.

Aristocrat
2005 Federal District Court of Nevada

On June 30, 2005, Aristocrat Technologies Ausliratia PTY Lid. filed a patent infringement lawsuit against IGT.
The complaint was served on IGT on December 13, 2005. Aristocrat alleged that IGT willfully infringed US
Patent No. 6,093,102. Aristocrat alleged that the patent covered its Reel Power® video slot technology and
IGT's Multiway®video slot games. The fawsuit sought unspecified damages and an injunction. On January 13,
2006, Aristocrat filed a First Amended Complaint adding Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. as a plaintiff. On April 20,
2007, the US District Court for the District of Nevada issued an order granting summary judgment in favor of
IGT declaring the Aristocrat patent invalid. Summary judgment was entered in favor of IGT on April 23, 2007.
Aristocrat appealed the decision to the US Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. The Federal Circuit affirmed
the judgment in IGT's favor on March 28, 2008. Aristocrat requesied & rehearing en banc, which was denied.
Aristocrat has filed a petition for certiorari in the United States Supreme Court. IGT is opposing this petition.

2008 Northem Federal District Court of California

On June 12, 2006, Aristocrat Technologies Australia PTY Ltd. and Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. filed a patent
infringement lawsuit against IGT. Aristocrat alleged that IGT willfully infringed US Patent No. 7,056,215, which
issued on June 6, 2006. On December 15, 2006, Aristocrat filed an amended complaint, adding ailegations that
IGT willfully infringed S Patent No. 7,108,603, which issued on September 19, 2006. The IGT products named
in the original and amended complaints were the Fort Knox®mystery progressive slot machines. On June 13,
2007, the US District Court for the Northern District of California entered an order granting summary judgment
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in favor of IGT declaring both patents invalid. The US Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit reversed this
decision on September 22, 2008. IGT's request for a rehearing was denied on November 17, 2008.

Brochu v. Loto Quebec

Loto Quebec commenced an action in warranty against VLC, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of IGT, and
another manufacturer of video lottery machines in October 2003, in the Superior Court of the Province of
Quebec, District of Quebec, seeking indemnification for any damages that may be awarded against Loto
Quebec in a class action suit, also filed in the Superior Court of the Province of Quebec. The class action claim
against Loto Quebec, to which neither IGT nor any of its affiliates are parties, was filed by Jean Brochu on
behalf of himself and a class of other persons who allegedly developed pathological behaviors through the play
of video lottery machines made available by Loto Quebec in taverns and other public locations. In this action,
the plaintiff seeks to recover on behalf of the class damages of approximately CAD$578.7 million, representing
CAD$4,863 per class member, and CAD$119.0 million in punitive damages. Loto Quebec filed its Plea in
Defense in the main action in February 2006. On August 1, 2008, Loto Quebec filed a discontinuance of the
action in warranty against VLC. Notwithstanding the discontinuance, Loto Quebec may still pursue the claims it
asserted, or could have asserted, in the action in warranty through arbitration against VLC. The trial of the class
action against Loto Quebec commenced on September 15, 2008 and is ongoing.

Environmental Matters

CCSC, a casino operation sold by IGT in April 2003, is located in an area that has been designated by the EPA
as an active Superfund site because of contamination from historic mining activity in the area. In order for
Anchor Coin, an entity IGT acquired in December 2001, to develop the CCSC site, it voluntarily entered into an
administrative order of consent with the EPA to conduct soil removal and analysis (a requirement imposed on
similarly situated propesty developers within the region} in conjunction with re-routing mine drainage. The work
and obligations contemplated by the agreement were completed by Anchor Gaming in June 1998, and the EPA
subsequently issued a termination of the order.

The EPA, together with other property developers excluding CCSC, continues remediation activities at the site.
White we believe our remediation obligations are complete, it is possible that additional contamination may be
identified and we could be obligated to participate in remediation efforts. Under the guidance in SOP 96-1,
Environmental Remediation Liabilities, we determined the incurrence of additional remediation costs is neither
probable nor reasonably estimable and no liability is recorded at this time.

Miller

In June 2003, a class action lawsuit was filed in Clark County, Nevada, District Court against Acres Gaming Inc.
and its directors, entitled Paul Miller v. Acres Gaming Incorporated, et al. The complaint alleged that Acres
directors breached their fiduciary duties to their stockholders in connection with the approval of the merger
transaction between Acres and IGT and sought to enjoin and/or void the merger agreement among other forms
of retief. On September 19, 2003, the Court denied plaintiff's motion for a temporary restraining order to prevent
Acres stockholders from voting on the merger. On September 24, 2003, plaintiff petitioned the Nevada
Supreme Court 1o vacate the denial of the temporary restraining order and to enjoin Acres from holding its
stockholder vote on the merger. The Nevada Supreme Court denied the petition on September 25, 2003.

On November 5, 2003, the plaintiff amended his complaint to recover damages. On December 23, 2003,
defendants filed a motion to dismiss plaintiffs second amended complaint for failure to state a claim on which
relief may be granted. On May 7, 2004, the Court issued an order denying defendants’ motion to dismiss.

Pursuant to stipulation of the parties, plaintiff filed a third amended complaint on September 9, 2004.
Defendants filed a motion to dismiss the third amended complaint on September 14, 2004. On March 15, 2006,
the Court issued an order denying defendants’ motion to dismiss the third complaint. On April 7, 2006,
defendant filed a Notice of Removal to US District Count for the District of Nevada {Las Vegas). Plaintiff filed a
motion to remand the action to state court, which was granted by order dated August 15, 2006. On November
30, 2006, the case was transferred to business court and discovery continues. Plaintiff filed a motion for class
certification on October 5, 2007, which was denied by decision dated December 4, 2007. Plaintiff filed a petition
for Writ of Mandamus, or in the alternative, prohibition in March, 2008 seeking to have the Nevada Supreme
Court vacate the District Court's order denying class certification. On May 9, 2008, the Nevada Supreme Court
denied plaintiff's petition. In August 2008, the parties to this action entered into a Stipulation for Dismissal With
Prejudice As to All Parties. An order of Dismissal with Prejudice was entered August 7, 2008.

OSHA / Wrongful Termination Matter

On July 8, 2004, two former employees filed a complaint with the US Department of Labor, OSHA alleging
retaliatory termination in violation of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The former employees allege that they
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were terminated in retaliation for questioning whether Anchor and its executives failed to properly disclose
information allegedly affecting the value of Anchor's patents in connectian with IGT's acquisition of Anchor in
December 2001. The former employees also allege that the acquired patents are overvalued on the financial
statements of IGT. Outside counsel, retained by an independent committee of our Board of Directors, reviewed
the allegations and found them to be entirely without merit.

On November 10, 2004, the employees withdrew their complaint filed with OSHA and filed a notice of intent to
file a complaint in federal court. On December 1, 2004, a complaint was filed under seal in the US District Court
for Nevada, based on the same facts set forth above regarding their OSHA complaint. IGT filed a motion for
summary judgment as to all claims in plaintiffs’ complaint. On June 14, 2007, the US District Court for the
District of Nevada entered an order granting summary judgment in favar of IGT as to plaintiffs’ Sarbanes-Oxley
whistle-blower claims and dismissed their state law claims without prejudice. Plaintiffs’ motion for
reconsideration of the District Court’s decision was denied. Plaintiffs appealed to the US Court of Appeals for
the Ninth Circuit. Appellate briefing has been completed. Oral argument has not been scheduled.

In conjunction with the Anchor acquisition purchase price allocation as of December 31, 2001, IGT used the
relief of royalty valuation methodolegy to estimate the fair value of the patents at $164.4 million. The carrying
value of the patents at September 30, 2008 totaled $67.8 million, with a remaining life of approximately seven
years,

Armangements with Off-Balance Sheet Risks

In the normat course of business, we are party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk, such as
performance bonds, guarantees, and product warranties not reflected in our balance sheet. We do not expect
any material losses to result from these arrangements, and we are not dependent on off-balance sheet
financing arrangements to fund our operations.

Performance Bonds

Performance bonds outstanding retated to gaming operations totaled $5.6 million at September 30, 2008. We
are liable to reimburse the bond issuer in the event of exercise due to nonperformance.

Letters of Credit

Outstanding letters of credit issued under our line of credit to ensure payment to certain vendors and
governmental agencies totaled $4.1 million at September 30, 2008.

IGT Licensor Arrangerments

Our sales agreements that include software and IP licensing arrangements may provide a clause whereby IGT
indemnifies the third-party licensee against liability and damages (including legal defense costs) arising from
any claims of patent, copyright, trademark, or trade secret infringement. Should such a claim occur, we could
be required to make payments to the licensee for any liabilities or damages incurred. Historicatly, we have not
incurred any significant costs due to infringement claims. As we consider the likelihood of incurring future costs
to be remote, no liability has been recorded.

Product Warranties

Our warranty costs in the table below are accrued based on historical trends in product failure rates and
expected costs to provide warranty services. The majority of our products are generally covered by a warranty
for periods ranging from 90 days to one year.

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006

(tn millions)

Balance at beginning of year $ 8.7 $ 33 $ 6.0

Reduction for payments made (10.2) (8.9) (7.9)

Accrual for new warranties issued 11.1 10.6 104

Adjustments for pre-existing warraniies (1.2} (1.3) (0.2

Balance at end of period $ 84 $ 8.7 $ 83
Selt-Insurance

We are self-insured for various levels of workers’ compensation, directors’ and officers’ liability, and electronic
errors and omissions liability, as well as employee medical, dental, prescription drug, and disability coverage.
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We purchase stop 108s coverage to protect against unexpected claims. Accrued insurance claims and reserves
include estimated settiements for known claims, and actuarial estimates of claims incurred but not reported.

State and Federal Taxes

We are subject to sales, use, income, gaming and other tax audits and administrative proceedings in various
US federal, state, local, and foreign jurisdictions. While we believe we have properly reported our tax liabilities
in each jurisdiction, we can give no assurance that taxing authorities will not propose adjustments thal increase
our tax liabilities.

17. Income Taxes

Years ended Septsmber 30, 2008 2007 2006

F?ﬂ m:ﬂrons)

Income before tax:
us $ 505.2 $ 6702 $ 658.6
Non - US 85.6 134.6 88.3
Total $ 5908 $ 8048 $ 746.9

Reconciliation of statutory federal rate to effective rate:

Federal statutory tax 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Stale income tax, net 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Foreign subsidiaries tax, net -0.2% -0.4% -0.4%
investment writedown 1.7% - -
Interest accrual 1.5% - -
Other, net 2.0% 0.3% -
Effective rate 420% _ 369% _ 366%

Components of income tax provision:

Federal $ 2064 § 251.8 $ 261.9
State 16.1 28.1 205
Foreign 33.7 44.3 30.6

Total current 256.2 324.2 313.0
Federal (0.9) (20.6) (25.8)
State 1.9 {2.8) (1.6}
Foreign (8.9) (4.2) {12.3}

Total deferred {7.9) (27.6} (39.7)
Total income lax provision $ 248.3 $ 296.6 $ 2733
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18. Business Segments

We view our business in two operating segments, each incorporating all types of revenues:
» North America includes our operations in the US and Canada
! ) International encompasses our efforts in ali other jurisdictions worldwide

North America includes revenues from Canada that totaled $53.3 million in fiscal 2008, $101.1 million in 2007,
and $127.5 million in 2006. Certain income and expenses related to company-wide initiatives are managed at

the corporate level and not allocated to any operating segment. We do not recognize inter-company revenues

or expenses upon the transfer of gaming products between operating segments. Segment accounting policies

are consistent with those of our consolidated financial statements and segment profit is measured on the basis
of operating income.

Our business segments are designed to allocate resources within a framework of management responsibility.
Operating costs from one segment may benefit other segments. We continually evaluate the alignment of our
business development and administrative functions for reporting purposes, which may result in changes to
segment allocations.

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(i miltionts)
NORTH AMERICA
Revenues $ 19124 $ 20217 $ 19782
Gaming operations 1,180.8 1,235.0 1,173.8
Product sales 7316 786.7 804.4
Gross profit 1,083.4 1,1725 1,122.3
Gaming operations 688.7 740.7 681.1
Product sales 3947 431.8 4412
Operating income 614.5 769.7 7443
Income before tax 640.8 793.0 7689
Interest income 528 56.0 458
Interest expense 289 N5 235
Depreciation and amortization 2251 2148 199.9
Long-lived assets 633.8 495.6 476.3
Additions to long-lived assets 2559 2131 208.7
Total assets 2,956.5 26406 2,558.9
INTERNATIONAL
Revenues $ 616.2 $ 5997 $ 5335
Gaming operations 1571 126.2 716
Product sales 4591 473.5 455.9
Gross profit 335.7 308.3 2494
Gaming operations 89.4 82.3 48.9
Product sales 246.3 226.0 200.5
Operaling income 167.6 159.8 111.2
Income before tax 154.8 175.8 113.4
Interest income 11.5 6.4 3.7
Interest expense 03 02 0.2
Depreciation and amortization 50.8 413 263
Long-lived assets 820 92.5 8.8
Additions to long-lived assets 34.6 45.5 59.8
Total assets 7901 7.7 5124
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We purchase stop loss coverage to protect against unexpected claims. Accrued insurance claims and reserves
include estimated settlements for known claims, and actuarial estimates of claims incurred but not reported.

State and Federal Taxes

We are subject to sales, use, income, gaming and other tax audits and administrative proceedings in various
US federal, state, local, and foreign jurisdictions. While we believe we have properly reported our tax liabilities
in each jurisdiction, we can give no assurance that taxing authorities will not propose adjustments that increase
our tax liabilities.

17. Income Taxes
Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
7in milions)
Income before tax:
us $ 5052  $ 6702 § 6586
Non - US 85.6 134.6 88.3
Total $ 590.8 $ 804.8 $ 746.9

Reconcillation of statutory federal rate to effective rate:

Federal statutory tax 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax, net 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Foreign subsidiaries tax, net 0.2% -0.4% -0.4%
Investment writedown 1.7% - -
Interest accrual 1.5% - -
Other, net 2.0% 0.3% -
Effective rate 42.0% 36.9% 36.6%

Components of income tax provision:

Federal $ 2064 $ 251.8 $ 261.9
State 16.1 28.1 205
Foreign 33.7 44.3 30.6

Total current 256.2 324.2 313.0
Federal (0.9) (20.6) (25.8)
State 19 (2.8) (1.8)
Foreign (8.9) {4.2) (12.3)

Total deferred (7.9} (27.6) (39.7)
Total income tax provision $ 2483 $ 296.6 $ 2733
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Significant components of our deferred income taxes are detailed below:

September 30, 2008 2007 !
(fn mitlions) |
Reserves $ 627 $ 492 [
Jackpot payment timing difference 1634 1315 ‘
Share-based compensation 22.9 15.6 |
Net operating loss carry forwards 18.2 19.6 ‘
State income taxes, net 12.6 12.3
Foreign 18.6 13.3
Property, plant and equipment us 42.8
Goodwill and intangibles 15.0 19.0
Inventory capitalization 8.7 1.4
Interest 12.4 -
Other 51 40

Deferred income tax assets 365.4 308.7

Valuation allowance (17.6) (1.8

Deferred income tax assets, net 347.8 307.1
Prepaid expenses (3.6) (4.2)
Interest expense on convertible debt (19.2) (8.0)
Foreign (3.1 (0.1
Intangibles {70.6) (79.2)
Other - (6.8)

Deferred income tax liabilities

(96.5) {98.3)

Net deferred income tax assets $ 2513 $ 2088

Our net deferred income tax assets aré reported on the balance sheets as follows:;

September 30, 2008 2007
{in miliions)

Current deferred income tax assets $ 1158 $ 582
Non-current deferred income tax assets 136.9 150.6
Non-current deferred income tax fiabilities {included in Gther Liabilities) 1.4 -

Our net operating loss carry forwards totaled $36.2 million for the US and $18.8 million for foreign countries at
September 30, 2008 and expire in tax years 2020 through 2028,

Our valuation aliowance increased by $16.0 million in fiscal year 2008, primarily due to investment write-downs
and acquisition-related net operating losses not expected to be fully realized. At September 30, 2008,
approximately $6.0 million of our valuation allowance was attributable to acquisition related assets, the benefit
of which will reduce goodwill when and if realized. At September 30, 2007, our valuation allowance related to
business acquisitions.

At September 30, 2008, we had not provided for US deferred income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on
$147.5 million in unrecognized temporary differences related to the basis of our investments in foreign
subsidiaries expected to be permanently reinvested in operations cutside the US. In calculating the
uniecognized temporary differences related to the basis in our invesiments in foreign subsidiaries, we are using
tax earnings and profits because we believe that, based on the information available, it represents the best
approximation of the unrecognized tax liability.
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We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 during the first quarter of fiscal 2008. FIN 48 requires financial statement
recognition of an uncertain tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, when it is “more likely than
not” to be sustained upon examination. This assessment further requires us to presume that tax authorities
evaluate the technical merits of transactions individually and with full knowledge of all facts and circumstances
surrounding the issue. A recognized tax position is recorded in the financial statements at the largest amount of
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. FIN 48 also requires that
changes in judgment resulting in subsequent recognition, de-recognition or change in the measurement of a tax
position taken in a prior annual period, including any related interest and penalties, be recognized as a discrete
item during the period in which the change occurs.

The implementation of FIN 48 as of the beginning of fiscal 2008 increased our unrecognized tax benefits and

related interest and penalties by $89.9 million, increased deferred tax assets by $55.4 million, and decreased
retained earnings by $34.5 million. Upon the adoption of FIN 48, we reclassified our reserves for uncertain tax
positions from accrued income taxes to other non-current tiabilities.

The aggregate changes in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits were:
Year ended September 30, 2008

(in mitiions)

Balance at adoption $ 922

Increases related to prior year tax positions 89

Decreases related to prior year tax positions (0.1)
increases related to current year tax positions 50

Decreases related to current year tax positions (18.5)

Reductions for settiements with taxing authorities -
. Reductions due to lapse of statutes of limitations -

Balance al year end $ 875

As of September 30, 2008, $53.4 million of our unrecognized tax benefits would affect our effective 1ax rate, if
recognized. In addition, interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are included in our income
tax provision, a policy that did not change as a result of the adoption of FIN 48. We recognized $7.9 million of
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions during fiscal 2008 and accrued interest and penallies
totaled $51.3 million at September 30, 2008. Amounts related to unrecognized tax benefits, including accrued
interest and penalties, are reported on the balance sheet within the following line items:

September 30, 2008

{tn millions}

Other accnued liabilities $ 278

Cther liabilities (non-current) 134.4

Prepaid expenses and other cument assets (2.0)

Other non-cument assets (21.4)
Net liabilities for uncertain tax positions $ 1388

We conduct business globally and file US federal, state, local, and foreign income tax returns. With few
exceptions, we are no longer subject to US federal, state, local, or non-US income tax examinations for fiscal
years before 2000. While we believe we adequately provided for all tax positions, amounts asserted by tax
authorities could be greater or less than our accrued position. We expect our net unrecognized tax benefits to
decline by approximately $16.7 million within the next twelve months, due to the closure of US federal income
tax audits for fiscal years 2000 and 2001 during the first quarter of fiscal 2009.
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18.  Business Segments

We view our business in two operating segments, each incorporating all types of revenues:
A North America includes our operations in the US and Canada
'Y International encompasses our efforts in all other jurisdictions worldwide

North America includes revenues from Canada that totaled $53.3 million in fiscal 2008, $101.1 million in 2007,
and $127.5 million in 2006. Certain income and expenses related to company-wide initiatives are managed at

the corporate level and not allocated to any operating segment. We do not recognize inter-company revenues

or expenses upon the transfer of gaming products between operating segments. Segment accounting policies

are consistent with those of our consolidated financial statements and segment profit is measured on the basis
of operating income.

Our business segments are designed to allocate resources within a framework of management responsibility.
Operating costs from one segment may benefit other segments. We continually evaluate the alignment of our
business development and administrative functions for reporting purposes, which may result in changes to
segment allocations,
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Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
{In mitlions}
NORTH AMERICA
Revenues $ 19124 $ 20217 $ 1,978.2
Gaming operations 11808 1,235.0 11738
Product sales 7316 786.7 804.4
Gross profit 1,0834 11725 1,122.3
Gaming operations 688.7 740.7 681.1
Product sales 394.7 431.8 441.2
Operating income 614.5 769.7 744.3
Income before tax 640.8 793.0 768.9
Interest income 528 56.0 458
Interest expense 289 31.5 235
Depreciation and amortization 2251 214.6 199.9
Long-lived assets 633.8 495.6 476.3
Additions to long-lived assets 2559 2134 208.7
Total assets 29565 2,640.6 2,558.9
INTERNATIONAL
Revenues $ 6162 $ 5997 $ 5335
Gaming cperations 1571 126.2 7786
Product sales 4591 4735 455.9
Gross profit 335.7 308.3 2484
Gaming operations 894 823 48.9
Product sales 246.3 226.0 200.5
Operating income 167.6 159.8 111.2
Income before tax 154.8 175.8 1134
Interest income 115 6.4 3.7
Interest expense 0.3 0.2 0.2
Depreciation and amortization 50.8 413 26.3
Long-lived assets 82.0 925 88.8
Additions 10 long-lived assets 346 455 59.3
Total assets 790.1 717.7 5124



19.

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
{in millions)
CORPORATE
Net unallocated operating expenses $ (122.8) $ (129.2) $ (1304)
Net unallocated expenses (204.8) (164.0) (135.4)
Interest income 3.1 19.6 159
Interest expense 709 45.9 271
Depreciation and amortization 101 9.6 9.2
Long-lived assets 124.0 2248 161.7
Additions to long-lived assets 11.2 785 44.7
Total assets 810.8 809.2 8314
CONSOLIDATED
Revenues $ 2,528.6 $ 26214 $ 25117
Gaming operations 1,3379 1,361.2 1,251.4
Product sales 1,190.7 1,260.2 1,260.3
Gross profit 1,419.1 1,480.8 1,3711.7
Gaming operations 7781 823.0 730.0
Product sales 641.0 657.8 641.7
Operaling income 659.3 800.3 7251
ncome before tax 590.8 804.8 746.9
Interest income 67.4 820 654
[nterest expense 100.1 77.6 50.8
Depreciation and amortization 286.0 265.5 2354
Long-lived assets 835.8 8129 726.8
Additions to long-lived assets 3017 3371 313.2
Total assels 45574 4,167.5 3.902.7
Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
September 30, First Second Third Fourth
{in millions, except per share amounts)
2008
Total revenues $ 6458 $ 5732 $ 6774 $ 6322
Gross profit 366.5 310.5 3877 3544
Operating income 195.7 126.6 187.0 150.0
Net income 113.7 68.4 108.3 521
Diluted EPS 0.36 0.22 0.35 0.18
2007
Total revenues 3 6423 $ 6097 $ 7065 $ 6629
Gross profit 352.0 356.5 396.6 375.7
Qperating income 185.2 202.2 216.3 196.6
Net income 121.0 128.2 1364 122.6
Diluted EPS 0.35 0.38 0.41 0.38
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on
Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed 1o provide reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed in our periodic reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC's rules and forms, and that
such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our CEO and PFQ, as
appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. We recognize that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving
desired control objectives. Judgment is required when designing and evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of
potential controls and procedures.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, with the supervision and participation of management,
including our CEO and PFO, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our CEQ and PFQ have concluded that, as of the end of
such period, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act)
refers to the process designed by, or under the supervision of, our CEQ and PFO, and effected by our board of
directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over our financial reporting.

We have evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2008.

This evaluation was performed using the /nternal Control - Integrated Framework developed by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, management has
conciuded that, as of such date, our internal control over financial reporting was effective. The attestation report
issued by Deloitte & Touche LLP on our internal control over financial reporting is included in the audit opinion
in ltem 8.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As a part of our normal operations, we update our internal controls as necessary to accommodate any
modifications to our business processes or accounting procedures. No change occurred during the most recent
fiscal quarter that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART Il

The information required by Items 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14, except as provided below, is incorporated by
reference from the Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year

covered by this report.

Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

We have adopted the “Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers of
International Game Technology™ (Finance Code of Ethics), a code of ethics that applies to our Principal
Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer, Principal Accounting Officer or Controller, or any persons
performing similar functions (together, the “Covered Officers”). The Finance Code of Ethics is publicly available
on our website. If we make any substantive amendments to the Finance Code of Ethics or grant any waiver,
including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to any of the Covered Officers, we will disclose the

nature of such amendment or waiver on our website.

item 11. Executive Compensation

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and

Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Equity compensation plans approved and not approved by shareholders as of September 30, 2008:

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of

Weighted average
exercise price of
outstanding options

Number of securities

remaining available

for future issuance
under equity

outstanding options,

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights compensation plans

h milio s, except per share amounts)
Equity compensation plans

approved by shareholders (¥ 18.4 $29.17 16.9
Equity compensation plans 0.1 $35.31 0.6
not approved by shareholders@
Total 18.5 $29.19 17.5

()  Includes shares under the Intemational Game Technology Stock Incentive Plan and Qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
ESPP shares are not included in securtties to be issued until exercised each year in February.

@ Includes shares available under the Barcrest Savings Related Share Option Scheme, 8 brosd-based UK employee stock
purchase program established in January 1999 to satisfy certain UK tax requirements. This program is generally intended to
provide UK employees the same benelits available under the US Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Shareholder approval was
not required for this plan.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director
Independence

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services
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PART IV

tem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1)

(a)2)

{(a)i3)
3.1

32

4.1

4.2

10.1*

10.2

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6"

10.7"

10.8*

109"

10.10"

10.11*

10.12*

Consclidated Financial Statements:

Reference is made 1o the Iindex and Financial Statements and Related information under Item 8 in Part |l hereof where
these documents are listed.

Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules are either not required or the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or Notes thereto.

Parent Company Financial Statements - Financial Statements of the Registrant only are omitted under Rule 3-05 as
modified by ASR 302.

Exhipits:

Articles of Incorporation of International Game Technology, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Registrant’s Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2006)

Fourth Restated Code of Bylaws of international Game Technology, dated Decernber 10, 2007 {incorporatet by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2007)

Indenture, dated as of December 20, 2006, between |GT and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee, relating
to the 2.60% Convertible Debentures due December 15, 2036 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s
Report on Form 8-K fited December 20, 2006)

Form of 2.60% Converible Debenture due December 15, 2036 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Registrant's
Report on Form 8-K filed December 20, 2006)

Form of officers and directors indemnification agreement {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant’s
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 19386)

Barcrest Savings Related Share Option Scheme (incorporated by reference to Registration Statement No. 333-94349,
Form S-8 flled by Registrant on January 10, 2000)

IGT Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s Report on Form 10K/A for the
year ended September 30, 2000)

International Game Technology 1993 Stock Option Plan (Amended and Restated Effective as of August 27, 1996)
(Composite Plan Document Incorporating Amendments 1998-1, 1998-11 and 2000-1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.15 to Registrant's Report on Form 10Q/A for the quarter ended March 31, 2001)

Internationa! Game Technology 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended February 27, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed March 3, 2008) .

IGT Profit Sharing Plan (as amended and restated as of April 1, 2002) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to
Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 28, 2002)

Amendments to IGT Profit Sharing Plan dated July 14, 2003 and November 15, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.8 to Registrant's Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2006)

Amendment 2006-1 to IGT Profit Sharing Plan effective as of January 1, 2006

Employment Agreement with Thomas J. Matthews, Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chief Operating Officer dated
Qctober 27, 2003 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’'s Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 2003)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with Thomas J. Matthews, Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chief
Operating Officer dated September 29, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K
filed October 4, 2006)

Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Thomas J. Matthews, Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chief Operating
Officer dated September 29, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed
October 4, 2006)

Performance Share Award Agreement with Thomas J. Matthews, Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chief Operating

Officer dated September 29, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's Report on Form 8-K filed
October 4, 20086)
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10.13°

10.14*
10.15*

10.16"

1017

10.18

10.18

10.20

21
23
24

311

31.2

321

32.2

99

IGT 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Agreement Forms: Directar Stock Option Agreement; Incentive Stock Option Agreement;
Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement; Restricted Stock Award Agreement; UK Stock Option Sub-Plan ("the UK Sub-
Plan™) Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15to Registrant's Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30, 2006)

IGT 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Agreement Forms: Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement

international Game Technology Employes Stock Purchase Plan, amended and restated effective as of December 8, 2005,
as subsequently amended

Summary of IGT Management Bonus Plan {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Regisirant’'s Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

Summary of Named Executive Officer and Director Compensation Arrangements at September 30, 2008

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated July 26, 2005, by and among International Game Technology, and Winter
Subsidiary, Inc., and WagerWorks, Inc., and Carl Berg and DDJ Capital Management, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.21 to Registrant’s Report an Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2005)

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2005, with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as Administrative
Agent, Bank of America, N.A. as Syndication Agent, The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC, Wachovia Bank, National
Associalion, and Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. as Co-Documentation Agents, and Banc of America Securities LLC, Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A. and The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Managers, and a
syndicate of other lenders (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed December
22, 2005)

Purchase Agreement dated as of December 14, 2006, between IGT and the Initial Purchasers, relating to the 2.6%
Convertible Debentures due December 15, 2036 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Report on Form
8-K filed December 20, 2006)

Subsidiaries

Independent Auditers’ Consent

Power of Attorney (see next page}

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a - 14(a) of the Exchange Act, &s adopted pursuant to section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a - 14{(a) of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to
section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a - 14(b) of the Exchange Act and section 18 U.5.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Centification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a - 14(b) of the Exchange Act and section 18 U.5.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Government Gaming Regulation

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Power of Attorney Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the duly authorized undersigned.

Date: November 26, 2008
INTERNATIONAL GAME TECHNOLOGY

By: /s/ Daniel R, Siciliano
Daniel R. Siciliano

Chief Accounting Officer, Treasurer
and Principal Financial Officer
International Game Technology

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
foliowing persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Each person whose signature appears below hereby authorizes Thomas J. Matthews and Daniel R. Siciliano,
or either of them, as attorneys-in-fact to sign on their behalf, individually, and in each capacity stated below,
and to file all amendments and/or supplements 1o this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Signature Title Date

{s/ Thomas J. Matthews Chairman of the Board of Directors and November 26, 2008
Thomas J. Matthews Chief Executive Officer

/sf Daniel R. Siciliano Chief Accounting Officer, Treasurer and November 26, 2008
Daniel R. Sicilianc Principal Financial Officer

fs/ Robert A. Bittman Director November 26, 2008

Robert A. Bittman

s/ Richard Bun Director November 26, 2008
Richard Burt

s/ Patti Hart Director November 26, 2008
Patti Hart

{s! Robert A. Mathewson Director November 26, 2008

Robert A. Mathewson

/s/ Robert Miller Director November 26, 2008
Robert Miller ’
{sf Frederick Rentschler Director November 26, 2008

Frederick Rentschler
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a - 14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

As Adopted Pursuant To Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Thomas J. Matthews, certify that:

1.
2

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of International Game Technology;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit 1o state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
repon, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f}), for the registrant and have:

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal contro! over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that invoives management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 26, 2008

/s Thomas J. Matthews

Thomas J. Matthews

Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a - 14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

As Adopted Pursuant To Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Daniel R. Siciliano, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of International Game Technology;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)),
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f} and 15d-
15(f)), for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

C. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter {the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intemal control over financial
reporting.

5. The registrant’s other centifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
regisirant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 26, 2008
s/ Daniel R. Siciliano

Daniel R. Siciliano
Principal Financial Officer

78




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of International Game Technology (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the
period ended September 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the “Report™}, |, Thomas J. Matthews, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: November 26, 2008

/s/ Thomas J. Matthews
Thomas J. Matthews

Chief Executive Officer
International Game Technology

This certification accompanies the above described Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by such Act, be deemed filed by the
Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of International Game Technology (the “Company”} on Form 10-K for the
period ended September 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
{the “Report™), |, Daniel R. Siciliano, Principal Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: November 26, 2008

[s/ Daniel R. Siciliano

Daniel R. Siciliano

Principal Financial Officer
International Game Technology

This centification accompanies the above described Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by such Act, be deemed filed by the
Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
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Exhibit 99
GAMING REGULATIONS

Nevada

The manufacture, sale, and distribution of gaming devices in Nevada or for use outside Nevada are subject to
extensive state and local laws, regulations, and ordinances of the Nevada Gaming Commission, the State
Gaming Control Board, and various county and municipal regulatory authorities (collectively referred to as the
Nevada gaming authorities). These laws, regulations, and ordinances primarily cover the responsibility,
financial stability, and character of gaming equipment manufacturers, distributors, and operators, as well as
persons financially interested or involved in gaming operations.

The manufacture, distribution and operation of gaming devices require separate licenses. The laws, regulations
and supervisory procedures of the Nevada gaming authorities seek to:
(i)  prevent unsavory or unsuitable persons from having a direct or indirect involvement with gaming at
any time or in any capacity
(i) establish and maintain responsible accounting practices and procedures
(i) maintain effective control over the financial practices of licensees, including establishing minimum
procedures for internal fiscal affairs and the safeguarding of assets and revenues, providing reliable
record keeping and requiring the filing of periodic reports with the Nevada gaming authorities
{iv) prevent cheating and fraudulent practices, and
{v) provide a source of state and local revenues through taxation and licensing fees.

Changes in these laws, regulations, procedures, and judicial or regulatory interpretations could have an
adverse effect on our gaming operations.

Our subsidiaries conducting the manufacture, sale, and distribution of gaming devices in Nevada or for use
outside Nevada, as well as the operation of slot machine routes and other gaming activities in Nevada, are
each required to be licensed by the Nevada gaming authorities. Our licenses must be renewed periodically and
the Nevada gaming authorities have broad discretion regarding such renewals. Licenses are not transferable.
Each type of machine we sell in Nevada must first be approved by the Commission and may require
subsequent machine modification. Qur gaming subsidiaries licensed in Nevada must also report substantially
all loans, leases, and sales of securities and similar financing transactions of a material nature to the GCB
and/or have them approved by the Commission. We believe we have obtained all required licenses and/or
approvals necessary to carry on our business in Nevada.

The Company is registered with the Commission as a publicly traded corporation and is required periodically to
submit detailed financial and operating reports to the Commission and to furnish any other information that the
Commission may require. No person may become a stockholder of or receive any percentage of profits from
our licensed gaming subsidiaries without first obtaining licenses and approvals from the Nevada gaming
authorities.

Our officers, directors, and key employees who are actively engaged in the administration or supervision of
gaming and/or directly involved in gaming activities of our licensed gaming subsidiaries may be required to file
applications with the Nevada gaming authorities and may be required to be licensed or found suitable by them.
Officers, directors, and certain key employees of our licensed gaming subsidiaries must file applications with
the Nevada gaming authorities and may be required by them to be licensed or found suitable.

In addition, anyone having a material relationship or involvement with us or any of our licensed gaming
subsidiaries may be required to be found suitable or licensed and to pay to the GCB all of its investigation costs
and fees. The Commission may deny an application for licensure or finding of suitability for any cause deemed
reasonable. A finding of suitability is comparable to licensing and both require submission of detailed personal
and financial information followed by a thorough background investigation. We must report changes in licensed
positions to the Commission. The Commission may disapprove any change in position by one of our officers,
directors, or key employees, or require us to suspend or dismiss officers, directors, or other key employees and
sever relationships with other persons who refuse to file appropriate applications, or whom the Nevada gaming
authorities find unsuitable to act in such capacities. Determinations of suitability or of questions pertaining to
licensing are not subject to judicial review in Nevada.

We are required to submit detailed financia! and operating reports to the Commission. If the Commission
determines that we are in violation of any gaming laws, our gaming licenses can be limited, conditioned,
suspended, or revoked. In addition, the Company, our licensed gaming subsidiaries, and any persons involved
may be subject to substantial fines for each separate violation of the gaming laws at the discretion of the
Commission. The Commission also has the power to appoint a supervisor to operate our gaming properties
and, under certain circumstances, earnings generated during the supervisor's appointment could be forfeited to
the State of Nevada. The limitation, conditioning, or suspension of our gaming licenses or the appointment of a
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supervisor could {and revocation of our gaming licenses would) materially and adversely affect our gaming
operations.

The Commission may require any beneficial holder of our voting securities, regardless of the number of shares
owned, to file an application, be investigated, and be found suitable, in which case the applicant would be
required to pay the costs and fees of the GCB investigation. If the beneficial holder of voting securities who
must be found suitable is a corporation, partnership, or trust, it must submit detailed business and financial
information including a list of beneficial owners. Any person who acquires more than 5% of the Company's
voting securities must report this 1o the Commission. Any person who becomes a beneficial owner of more than
10% of our voting securities must apply for a finding of suitability within 30 days after the Chairman of the GCB
mails the written notice requiring this finding of suitability.

Under cerain circumstances, an institutional investor, as this term is defined in the Nevada gaming regulations,
acquiring more than 10% but not more than 15% of our voting securities, may apply to the Commission for a
waiver of these finding of suitability requirements, provided the institutional investor holds the voting securities
for investment purposes only. An institutional investor will not be deemed 10 hold voting securities for
investment purposes unless the voting securities were acquired and are held in the ordinary course of its
business.

Our voting securities must not be acquired for the purpose of causing, directly or indirectly,
(i) the election of @ majority of our board of directors,
(i)  any change in our corporate charter, bylaws, management, policies or aperations, or
(iii} any other action the Commission finds to be inconsistent with holding our voting securities for
investment purposes only.

The Commission considers voting on all matters voted on by stockholders and the making of financia! and other
informational inquiries of the type normalty made by securities analysts, to be consistent with investment intent.

The Commission has the power to investigate any person who holds our debt or equity securities. The Ciark
County Liquor and Gaming Licensing Board, with jurisdiction over gaming in the Las Vegas area, may similarly
require a finding of suitability of a security holder. The applicant stockholder is required to pay all costs of such
investigation. Our bylaws provide for us 1o pay these costs that are related to our officers, directors or
employees. Any person who fails or refuses to apply for a finding of suitability or a license within 30 days after
being ordered to do 5o by the Commission or the Chairman of the GCB may be found unsuitable, The same
restrictions apply to a record owner who fails to identify the beneficial owner, if requested to do so. Any
stockholder found unsuitable and who holds, directly or indirectly, any beneficial ownership of our common
stock beyond such period of time as may be prescribed by the Commission may be guilty of a criminal offense.

We are subject to disciplinary action and possible loss of our approvals if, after we receive notice that a person
is unsuitable to be a stockholder or to have any other relationship with us or any of our licensed gaming
subsidiaries, we:
{i)  pay that person any dividend or interest upon our voting securities,
(i) allow that person to exercise, directly or indirectly, any voting right conferred through securities held
by that person,
(i) give remuneration in any form to that person, for services rendered or otherwise, or
(iv) fail to pursue all lawful efforts to require such unsuitable person to relinquish his voting securities for |
cash at fair market value. i

Additionally, the Clark County authorities have taken the position that they have the authority to approve all
persons owning or controlling the stock of any corporation controlling a gaming licensee. !

The Commission may, in its discretion, require the holder of cur debt securities to file an application, be
investigated and be found suitable to own any of our debt securities. If the Commission determines that a
person is unsuitable to own any of these securities, then pursuant to the Nevada gaming laws, we can be
sanctioned, including the loss of our approvals, if without prior Commission approval, we:

{iy pay tothe unsuitable person any dividend, interest, or any distribution whatsoever;

{iiy recognize any voting right by such unsuitable person in connection with such securities;

(i}  pay the unsuitable person remuneration in any form; or

(v) make any payment to the unsuitable person by way of principal, redemption, conversion, exchange,

liquidation, or similar transaction.

We are required to maintain a current stock ledger in Nevada, subject to examination by the Commission at any
time. If any of our securities are held in trust by an agent or by a nominee, the record holder may be required to
disclose the identity of the beneficial owner to the Commission. A failure to make such disclosure may be
grounds for finding the record holder unsuitable. We are also required to render maximum assistance in
determining the identity of the beneficial owner. The Commission has the power at any time to require our stock
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certificates to bear a legend indicating that the securities are subject to the Nevada gaming laws and the
regulations of the Commission. To date, the Commission has not imposed this requirement on us.

We may not make a public offering of our securities without the prior approval of the Commission if the
securities or their proceeds are intended to be used to construct, acquire, or finance gaming facilities in
Nevada, or retire or extend obligations incurred for such purposes. Such approval, if given, does not constitute
a finding, recommendation, or approval by the Commission or the GCB as to the accuracy or adequacy of the
prospectus or the investment merits of the securities. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

In July 2007, the Commission granted us prior approvai to make public offerings for a period of two years,
subject to certain conditions (referred to as a shelf approval). The chairman of the GCB may rescind the shelf
approval for good cause without prior notice upon the issuance of an interlocutory stop order. The shelf
approval does not constitute a finding, recommendation, or approval by the Commission or the GCB as to the
accuracy or adequacy of the prospectus or the investment merits of the securities offered. Any representation to
the contrary is unlawiul.

Changes in control of the Company through merger, consolidation, acquisition of assets or stock, management
or consulting agreements, or any form of takeover cannot occur without the prior investigation of the GCB and
approval of the Commission. Entities seeking to acquire control of us must satisfy the GCB and the
Commission in a variety of stringent standards prior to assuming control. The Commission may also require
controlling stockholders, officers, directors, and other persons having a material relationship or involvement
with the entity proposing to acquire control, to be investigated, and licensed as part of the approval process
relating to the transaction.

The Nevada legislature has declared that some corporate acquisitions opposed by management, repurchases
of voting securities, and other corporate defense tactics that affect Nevada gaming licensees, and publicly
traded corporations that are affiliated with those operations, may be injurious to stable and productive corporate
gaming. The Commission has established a regulatory scheme to guard against the potentially adverse effects
of these business practices upon Nevada's gaming industry and to further Nevada's policy to:

{i) assure the financial stability of corporate gaming operators and their affiliates

{ii) preserve the beneficial aspects of conducting business in the corporate form, and

(i) promote a neutral environment for the orderly governance of corporate affairs.

Approvals are, in certain circumstances, required from the Commission before we can make exceptional
repurchases of voting securities above their current market price and before a corporate acquisition opposed by
management can be consummated. Nevada’s gaming laws and regulations also require prior approval by the
Commission if we were to adopt a plan of recapitalization proposed by our board of directors in opposition to a
tender offer made directly to our stockholders for the purpose of acquiring control of us.

License fees and taxes are imposed by the Nevada gaming authorities and are payable either quarterly or
annually. The fees and taxes are computed in various ways depending on the type of activity involved by our
subsidiaries and the cities and counties where our subsidiaries conduct cperations. Annual fees are payable to
the GCB to renew our licenses as a manufacturer, distributor, and operator of a slot machine route. Nevada law
also requires persons providing gaming devices in Nevada to casino customers on a revenue participation
basis to pay their proportionate share of the taxes imposed on gaming revenues generated by the participation
gaming devices.

Any person who is licensed, required to be licensed, registered, required to be registered, or is under common
control with such persons (collectively referred to as licensees), and who propases to participate in the conduct
of gaming operations outside of Nevada is required to deposit with the GCB, and thereafter maintain, a
revelving fund in the amount of $10,000 to pay the expenses of investigation by the GCB of the licensee’s
participation in foreign gaming. This revolving fund is subject to increase or decrease at the discretion of the
Commission. As a licensee, we are required to comply with certain reporting requirements imposed by the
Nevada laws. We are also subject to disciplinary action by the Commission if we knowingly violate any laws of
the foreign jurisdiction pertaining to our foreign gaming operation, fail to conduct our foreign gaming operations
in accordance with the standards of honesty and integrity required of Nevada gaming operations, engage in
activities that are harmful to the State of Nevada or its ability to collect gaming taxes and fees, or employ a
person in the foreign operation who has been denied a license or finding of suitability in Nevada on the grounds
of personal unsuitability.
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Federal Registration

The Gambling Devices Act of 1962 makes it unlawful for a person to manufacture, transport, or receive gaming
devices, gaming devices, or components across interstate lines unless that person has first registered with the
Attorney General of the US Department of Justice. This act also imposes gambling device identification and
record keeping requirements. Violation of this act may result in seizure and forfeiture of the equipment, as well
as other penalties. As an entity involved in the manufacture and transportation of gaming devices, IGT is
required 1o register annually.

Native America

Federal law, tribal-state compacts, and tribal gaming regulations govern gaming on Native American lands. The
Indian Gaming Regulatory Act of 1388 provides the framework for federal and state control over all gaming on
Native American lands and is administered by the National Indian Gaming Commission and the Secretary of
the US Department of the Interior. The commission has authority to issue regulations governing tribal gaming
activities, approve tribal ordinances for regulating gaming, approve management agreements for gaming
facilities, conduct investigations and monitor tribal gaming generally. The act is subject to interpretation by the
commission and may be subject to judicial and tegislative clarification or amendment.

The act requires that the tribe and the state enter into a written agreement, a tribal-state compact, which
govemns the terms of the gaming activities. Tribal-state compacts vary from state to state and in many cases
require equipment manufacturers and/or distributors to meet ongoing registration and licensing requirements. in
addition, many Native American tribes, to regulate gaming-related activity on Indian lands, have established
tribal gaming commissions. Indian tribes are sovereign in their own government systems, with primary
regulatory authority over gaming on land within the tribes’ jurisdictions.

International

Certain foreign countries permit the importation, sale, and operation of gaming equipment in casino and non-
casino environments. Some countries prohibit or restrict the payout feature of the traditionat slot machine or
limit the operation and the number of slot machines to a controlled number of casinos or casino-like locations.
Each gaming machine must comply with the individual country’s regulations. Certain jurisdictions do not require
the licensing of gaming machine operators and manufacturers.

Internet

With the acquisition of WagerWorks in August 2005, we provide online gaming content and services for certain
jurisdictions. We provide online casino software and services from Alderney in the British Channel Islands,
which has a substantial regulatory structure for intemet based wagering under the Aldemey Gaming Control
Commission. Recognizing the legal uncertainties and legistative initiatives regarding online gaming in the US,
we do not accept wagers from US citizens. We have extensive operational control structures for regulatory
compliance encompassing software and game development, computer operations, consumer cash handling,
and identity checking.
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BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

Thomews S Metthews

CHAIRMAN

Thomas J. Matthews, 43, was appainted to our board of direciors in December 2001 and was
narmed Chairman in March 2005, Mr. Matthews has been IGT's President and Chief Executive
Ofiicer since 2003, and he was IGT's Chief Cperating Officer from 2007 to June 2007, Mr.
Maithews held a number of key positions at Anchor Gaming from 1994 until it was acquired by IGT
in December 2001, including President, Chief Execuiive Cificer and Chaiman of the Board. He
previously served as Presicent of Global Gaming Distributors, Inc. until it was acquired by Anchor
Gaming In 1894, Mr. Matthews helds a BS in Business Administration (Finance) from the University
of Southem California. Mr. Matthews is alse chairman ¢f ihe American Gaming Association and a
member of the board of trustees for the National Commission for Responsble Gaming.

Robert A. Bittiman

Rotert A, Bittman, &4, has served cn our board of diractors since May 2000, My, Bitiman was IGT's
Executive Vice President, Product Strategy from 2003 until his ratirement in December 2008,
Wr. Bittman majored in Systems Analysis al New York University, and Psychology at
Cueens College and the University of Nevada, Reno.

Paositicns previously held with IGT include:

» [Executive Vice Fresident of Product Developrment

» Vice President of Marketing

e Director of Markeling

= harkating Research Analyst

Prior to his tenure with (GT, M., Bitiman worked for Caesars Tahoe in all phases of slot oparations
management, including two years as Director of Slot Operations.




Richerd B Burt

Richard R. Burt, 61, has served on our board of direciors since Decernber 2001, when we
acquired Anchor Gaming, and is the chairman of the Nominaing and Corporate Governance
Committee and & member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Burt has been a Senior Director at
McLarty Associates in Washington, D.C. since Apdl 2007, and he was Chairman of Giligence,
Inc. from 2001 10 2007, Mr. Buri holds a BA in Government from Comell University and an MA
i International Relations from Tuits University. Mr. Burt also currenitly serves as:

* Founder and Chairnan of IEP Advisars, Inc. in Washington, B.C.

s Director of LUBS Mutual Funds

* Tiuslee of Deutsche Bank's Closed End Germany Funds Group

* hMerrber of Alfa Asset Management (Moscow International Advisory Councl)

Positions held previousty include:

¢ Director of EADS North America

¢ Director of the Protective Group, Miami Lakes, Horida

» Mamber of the Textron Corporation's Iniermnalional Advisory Council

» Tustee of Deutsche Scuddar (Naw York) Mutual Funds

» Director of Holinger International Inc.

» Director of Archer Daniels Midland (ADM)

¢ Chairman of the Board of Weirton Steel, Inc.

e Director and Vice Chairman of Anchor Gaming

» Director and Chairrnan of Powerhouse Technologies, Inc.

* Partner in McKinsey & Co.

+ Chief Negotiator in Strategic Arms Reduction Talks (START) with the Former Soviet Union

* |J.S. Ambassador io the Federal Republic of Gemmany

» Assistant Secratary of State for European and Canadian Affairs

« Diractor of Poltico-Miitary Affairs
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Puatti 5. Hart

Patti S, Hart, 52, has served on our board of direciors since June 2006 and is ihe Lead Independent
Direcior, the chairman of the Audit Committss and a member of the Compensation Corrmitiee. Ms,
Hart was the Chairman and Chief Exacutive Officer of Pnnacle Systerns, Inc. from 2004 to 2005,
and of Bxcite@Home, Inc. from 2001 to 2002, Ms, Hart holds a BS in Marketing and Economics
from flinois State University. Ms. Hart is also a member of the boards of directors for:

* Kom/Feny International, Inc.

e LinTV Corp.

Positions held previously include:

e (Charman and Chief Executive Officer of Telochy, Inc.

¢ President & COQ, Long Distance Division, Sprint Corporation

s President, Sprint Business Senvicas Group, Sprint Corporation

* President, Sales & Marketing, Sprint Business Senvices Group, Sprint Corporation

* Vice President, Sprint Business Servicas Group

* Asea Vice President and General Manager, National & Maijor Accounts, Sprint, Inc.

e [Uirector, Alternate Distribution, Strategic Planning, InteCom, inc.

¢ Consultant, United Technclogies Corparation

Former board affiliations:

s Spansion LLC

» Earhlink, Inc,

* Excite@Home, Inc.

s Mariner Networks

* Pinnacle Systerns, Inc.

e Panironics, Inc.

e ‘elocity, Inc.

* Vantive Corporation

¢ Phamaceutical Prociuct Development

IGT ANNUAL REPORT 2008 THE RIGHT CHOICE

Hobert A, Methernson

Robert A Mathewson, 44, has served on our beard of directors since Decembber 2003 and is
a member of the Audit, Nominating and Corporate Govermance and Compiliance Commitiees,
Since 1992, Mr, Matnewson nas bean President of RGC Inc., & private investrment company,
and he was Vice President of Business Developmeant for Televoke, Inc. from 1999 to 2000. Mr.
Mathawson holds a BA in Economics and an MBA from the University of Califomia at Berkeley and
a Juris Doclorate from University of Caliiomia Hastings College of the Law:. Mr. Mathewson is also
2 member of the board of drectors for FelCor Lodging Trust.




Robert Midler

Robert iiler, 83, has served on our board of directors since January 2000 and is a member i the
Compensation and Compliance Committees, Since July 2005, he has been a principal of Dutko
Worldwide, a mulii-ciisciplinary government affairs and stralegy management firm, and he was a
partner at the Jones Vargas law fim from 1999 {o 2005. Mr. Miller holds a Juris Doctorate from
Loyola Law School, Los Angeles. Mr. Miler is also 2 member of the boards of directors for:

e Newrmnont Mining Comoaoration

¢ Zenith Natioral insurance Corp.

e \Wynn Resorts, tid.

Positions held previously include:

* Governer of the State of Nevada

Lietitenant Governor of the State of Nevada

Clark County District Attorney

Las Vegas Township Justice of the Peace

First legal acvisor for the Las Viegas Metropditan Police Department

Clark County Ceputy District Attorney

Uniformed Commissioned Officer for the Clark Couniy Sheriffs Department and the Los Angeles
County Sheriff's Department

Frodorick B. Rentschier

Frederick B. Rentschler, 69, has served on our board of directors since May 1992 and is the
chairman of the Compensation Committee and a member of the Nominating and Corporate
Govemance Commitiee. Before his retiiement in 1991, Mr. Bentschier was President and Chiel
Executive Officer of Northwast Airlines. Mr. Bantschler received his undergraduate degree from
Vanderbitt University and an MBA from Harvard University, He was also awarded a Doctor of Laws,
causa honors, frorm the University of Wyoming. Mr. Rentschlar also currently serves as:

* Nember of the Board of Trustees for Vanderbilt University, Nasivile, Tennesses

s Emeriius trustee of the Sak Institute in La Jolla, Califomia

* Emeriius trustee of the Scottsdale Health Care Systerns in Arizona

Positions held previously include:

* President and Chief Fxecutive Officer of Beatrice Company

Presiclent and Chief Executive Cfficer of Beatrice U.S. Foods

President and Chief Executive Officer of Hunt Wesson, inc.

President of Armaour Dial
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Dricict Roberson

Danvicl E. Roberson, 54, has served on our board since Decaemiber 2008, Mr. Roberson ioined HP
in 2007, and is the Senior Vice President and General Manager of the Storage Works Division at
HP. Prior to that, Mr. Reberson was President and Chief Executive Officer of Hitachi Data Systemns
Corporation from 2006 to 2007, President and Chief Cperating Cfficer from 2002 to 2006, Chigf
Operaiing Officer from 2000 to 2002 and from 1981 to 2000, he held various management
positions at Hitachi. Mr. Boberson holds a BA (Social Ecology) from University of Celiformia Inine,
and a Juris Doctorate from Golden Gate University.




o Corporate Governance

Commitiee responsibilities, com-
position and chaners, govemance
documenis, biographies for the IGT
Board of Directors and Executives,
ownership data and contact infor-
mation for the Beard of Directors.

o Stock Information

Current and historical stock price
quotes, interactive stock chart,
dividend and siock split history.

e Financial Information

Enhanced SEC flings. section 16
fiings, annualrepoits, proxysiatements
and current Wall Strest estimales.

o News & Lvents

News raleases, event calendar
and presentations.

o Shareholder Services

Invastor FAQs, transfer agent
details and a regusst informa-
tion form for a mailed invester
kit or to view the online e-Kit.

o Corporvte Saciald Besponsibility

Community activism, employ-
ee diversity, supplier diversity,
responsible gaming,'green’
inttistives and contact information.

o Stgre up for -l alerts
gH D,

Enter your e-mail address to receve
dlerts for IGT news, avents, presen-
tations, finaencial reports, SEC flings
and an end-of-day stock guote.

o Hectronic Delieery: Enrolluent

Click here te sign up for al proxy
matarials via e-mail.

NAVIGATE

IGT.COM

IGT is dedicated to keeping our invesiors up-to-date through
Investor Relations web site. Investors can search for the latest
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CORPORATE

SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Commuuuty Activisin

IGT is serious about its role as a
gobal citizen in the countries and
communities where it does busi-
ness. IGT's community invovement
ranges from monetary gifis and in-
kind donations to emrployes velntesr
time, service on agency boards
and use of our faclities for public
evenis and meetings. IGT supporis
a varisty of needs including educa-
tion, health and human senvices,
and the arts with an emphasis on
"active” involernent.

Linployee Diversity

Diversity is a strong component of
IG's success, and our culture of
iNclusion involves recruiting, talent
development, and the overall build-
ing of a diverse workforce. IGT's
dversity counailis a cross-functional
organization that stewardls and cham-
picns a number of diversity intiatives.

Supplicr Diversity:

IGT is constantly expanding
iis local and national base of
suppiers, especialy thoss owned by
mironities, women, the physically and
mentally challenged, and senvice-
disablad veterans. We encourage

our suppliers and contractors to
involve these types of businesses
through partnershics, joint venturas
and subcontracts.

Hesponsible Gaming

IGT acknowledges problem gam-
bling as an issue that cannot and
must n¢t be ignored. IGT promotes
responsile gaming to its employ-
ess, customers and the public, and
SuUpPONs agencies and programs
commitied to researching, prevent-
ing and treating problem gamiling,
IGT elisves that all stakeholders
in the gaming industry must take
a pro-active approach 1o problem
and underage gamiding.

IGT is a major supporter and
member of the two largaest US
organizations dedicated to reducing
problem and underage gambing:
the National Councit on Problem
Gampling INCPG) and the Naticnal
Center for Responsitle Gambling
(NCRG). We work closely with tha
NCPG and its 34 state sfflates o
promote awareness and educa-
tion, and we provide funding for
the natiormide problern gambling
*Helpline.” KT senior executives serva
on the Boards of both organizations.
IGT recently renewed its commit-
ment of 1 million to the NCRG for

support of scientific research into
pathalogical gambling and to pro-
vide scientifically based rasponsiole
gaming education.

IGT is the only gaming equioment
manuiacturer in the world to have
a full-time Cirecter of Responsitle
Gaming, who implements the
Company's Responsible Gaming
Program,

Croen’ Initictives

IGT is proactive in its recycling and
anargy-saving afforts. IGT facilities
annually recycle milions of pieces
of cardboard, meial, paper and
glass, as well as aluminum cans,
plasiic boitles, printer cartridges,




wire hamesses, pallets and fluores-
cent light-bulbs. While IGT does not
) generata large amounts of hazard-
UK Ry ' ’ b ous waste, small quantiies of inks

" nm,?ﬂy B 5 and solvents are recycled by an
m A outside disposa company. Some

*tarue

of our recycling efforts include:
e 348,900 pounds of
mixed metals
* 114,870 pounds of
electronic wasie
s 805,120 pounds of cardboard

IGT is also recucing the enargy
consumzd in its daily oparations.
Energy savings have bean realized
through instalation of ightng coou-
pancy sensors and "as nesded”
use of senvice and glectnical equip-
ment instead of around-the-clock
cperation,

In compliance with the European
Union (EL)) Restriciion of Hazarocus
Substances (RoHS) Directive of
2006, IGT manufactures RoHS-
compliant machines for European
clistbution. Although not reguired
to do 50, IGT includes many parts
that mest or excesd the RoHS stan-
dards in machines manufactured
for the US and countries outsice
the EU.

For more information, vigit
www IGT.com/CSR.
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Incestor Relations

SHAREHOLDER

INFORMATION

Company News

Intemational Game Technology
9295 Prototype Drive

0. Box 10580

Renc, Nevada 89510-0580

Tel: (866) 206-4232

Fax: (775) 448-0777

Web: www.IGT.com

Security analysts, portfolio manag-
ers and reprasentatives of fnancial
institutions sesking niormation about
IGT should contact IGT Invesior
Relations at the Company's address,
or by caling (866) 296-4232.

Ondine: Anneed Report

Visit wwwUIGT.comAnvestorRelaiions
for current stock quotes, Securities
anc Exchange Commission
(SEC) filngs, quarterly earnings
releasas and other cormpany
news. Copies of our annual
report and Forms 10-Kand 10-Q
are available on the web siig;
you can also request this
information by contacting
IGT investor Relations af
the Company's address, or
by caling {864) 296-4232.

Annead Meeting

We invite you to visit our
online annual report at
www IGT com/AnnualReport.

Transfer Agent andd Registrar

Shareholders of record who have
quastions regarding addrass
changes, stock transfer, divi-
dends or lost cerificates should
drect their inquires to our stock
transfer agent and registrar:
Wells Fargo Bantk, N.A.
Shareowner Senices

161 N. Concord Exchange
Sauth St Pad, MN 55075 -1139
Tel: (80Q) 468-9716

Fax; (651) 400-4033

The annual meeting of share-
nolders will be on Tuesday,
March 3, 2009, at 11 am. at
our corporate headguarters
at 8295 Prototype Drive,
Heno, Nevada.

Sales and Service Offices

IGT Reno

92¢5 Protctype Dive
Reno, NV 88521-8986
Tel: (775) 448-7777

IGT Las Vegas

6355 South Buitalo Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89113-2133
Tel (702) 689-7777

Fax: (702} 669-8686

For information on sales offices
worldwide, please contact our
IGT |as Vegas dfice.

Stock Listing

IGT's common stock is actively
tracied on the New York Stock
Exchange {NYSE) under ihe
symbot 1GT"



Board Connniitees

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee assists

our Board of Directors in overseging

IGT's accounting and financial

reporting processes with

respect o

« the integrity and audits of our
financial siatements

» compliance with legal and
reguiatory requirements

» the qualfications, performance
and independence of our extamal
public accountants

» {he functions of our iniemnal
auditors
Patti S. Hart, Chairmnan
Richard R. Bunt
Raobent A, Mathewson

THE COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE

The Compensation Commiitee
discharges the responsibilities
of our Board of Direciors relating
0 compensation of IGT's execu-
tives and directors, and performs
speciied funciions under comparny
compensation plans.

Frederick B. Rentschier, Charman
Fattl 3. Hart

Robert Miler

THE NOMINATING
AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Nominating and Corporate
Govarnance Carmmittes ensures
to the IGT Roard of Cirectors:
» that qualified candidates are
presenied [or glection
as Directors
e that organizational documents
ars slructured to best serve our
oractices and objectives
* the development and
recommendation of a set of
corporate governance
principles
Richard R, Burt, Chairman
Robert A. Mathewson
Frederick B. Rentschler
For more information, please visit
www G T.comdnvestorRelations >
Comporate Governancs
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Deloitie & Touche LLP
695 Town Center, Ste 1200
Costa Masa, CA 92628

Annad CEO Certification
{Section 303A.12(a)

A Section 303A.12(a) CEQ
Certification was submitied o the
NYSE on March 10, 2008.




16T — Las Vegus

6355 South Buffalo Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89113-2133
United States
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North Americe

Intermcitioned

Anizona
Califormia
Colorado
Delaware
Horida

linois

lowa
Louisiana
Michigan
Minnesoia
Mississippi
Missourn
Moniana
Nevada
New Jarsey
New Mexico
New York
Oklahoma
Rhode Island
South Dakota
Washington
West Virginia

Canada

Australia
China

Japan

Latin America
Latvia

Macau
Maxico
Neiherlands
New Zealand
Philippines
Russia

South Africa
Spain

United Kingdom
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